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Date of Incorporation: January 15, 1996
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Contact Person: Mr, Rahul Agrawal; Email: rahul.agrawal@lcopta.in;
Websile: www. kogta.in

Information Memorandum for issue of Debentures o1 1 Private Plucement Basic
Daate: September 02, 2020

(Under Schedule I of SEBI (Issue and Listing af Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 as amended from
fire tor titme)

Issue of 300 (Three Hundred) Rated, Secured, Senior, Redeemable, Taxable, Transferable,
Listed, Non-Convertible Debentures denominated in INR ("Debentures” or "NCIs') of face
value of INR 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten lakhs) each, aggregating up to INR 30,00,00,000
(Indian Rupees Thirty Crove) on a private placement basis {the “Issue™).

Buackeround

This Information Memarandum is related to the Debentures to be issued by Kegta Financial (India)
Limited (the “Issuer” or “Company” or “IKopta™ on a private placement basis and comtains relevant
information and disclosures required for the purpose of issuing of the Debentures. The issue of the
Pebentures comprised in the Issue and described under this Information Memorandum (as defined below)
has been authorised by the Company through resolutions of the Board of Dircctors of the Issuer dated
January 29, 2020 and read together with the resolution of the board dated July 10, 2020 and the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to the resolutions
passed by the Company’s sharcholders dated August 27, 2018 in accordance with provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has been authorised to borrow, upon such terms and conditions as the
Roard may think fit for amounts up 1o INR 20,00,00,00.000 (Indian Rupees Tweo Thousand Crore). The
present issue of Debentures in terms of this Information Memorandum is within the overall powers of the
Beard as per the above shareholder resolution(s).

Issue Schedule
Issue Opening on: September 02, 2020
lssue Closing on: September 02, 2020
Deemed Date of Allotment: September 03, 2020

The Issue shull be open for subscription during the banking hours on each day during the period covered by
the Issue Schedule.




The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the WDM of the BSE within 20 (Twenty) days from the

Lrepied Date ol Allotment,
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SECTION 1t DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, the Tollowing terms shall have (hie meanings given
Ixlow in this Information Memorandum,

H_Tcrms | Description

Aet or Companies Act means the Companies Act, 2013, and shall include any te-enactment,
amendment or modification of the Companies Act, 2013, 45 in effect from
Lirme Lo time.

Applicable Law(s) means all applicable statutes, enactments or acls of any legislative body in
India, laws, ordinances, rules, bye-laws, regulations, notifications,
guidelines, policies, directions, directives and orders of any Governmental
Authority and any modifications or re-enactments thereof,

Applicant means a persen who has submitted a completed Application Form to the
lssuer.
Application Form means the application form enclosed as Annexure [V
Application [\f‘iu;m}f means the subseription amounts paid by the Debenture Holders at the time
| of submitting the Application Form.
Assels means, for any date of determination, the assets of the Company on such
date as the same would be determined in accordance with Indian GAAP,
Beneficial Owner{s) means the holder(s) of the Debentures in dematerialised form whose name
is recorded as such with the Depository in the Register of Beneficial
L Ohwners,
Board/Board of means the Board of Directors of the Issuer,
Directors
BSE means BSE Limited.
Business Day means any day (other than a Sunday er a public holiday under Section 25

ol the Megotinble Instruments Aet, 1881} on which banks are open for
peneral business in Mumbat, India,

CDSL Means the Central Depository Services ( tn-:-]'i'ﬂ}“],imitud

Capital Adequacy Ratio | means the capital adequacy ratio as defined under the NBFC Directions,

CERSAL Means Central Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and
Bavurity Interest of India,

Client Loan means each loan macde by the Issuer as a lender.

Change of Control means the sharcholders of the Issuer (a5 on the Gffective Date) ceasing to;
{a) have the power (whether by way of ownership of shares, proxy.

contract, agency or olherwise) to;

{1 cast, or control the casting of, more than 51% (1ifty one
percent) of the sharcholding (on a fully diluted basis) of
the Company; or

fiiy appoint or remove all or majority of the directors or the
"key managerial personnel” (a5 defined in the Act) of the
Company,

¢




OR

(I} hold at least 51% (fifty one percemt) of the sharcholding (on a
fully diluted Basis)y of the Company,

Change of  Control
Event

means any event, including withow limitation, the issuance of any shares
{(whether equity or convertible into equity), or any transfer, sale, creation
of security interest (including pledge) or encumbrance over any shares
(whether equity or convertible into equity), which by itself, or topether
with other actions (including the conversion of any  eonvertible
instiuments into eyuity shares) may result in a Change of Control,

Pﬂuntrnl

lns the meaning given to il in the Companies Aet, 2013,

Company/Issuer

means Kaopta Financial (India) Limited, o company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office at 'Kogta House' Azad
Mohalla, Near Rly. Station, Bijainagar - 305624, Rajasthan, India,

_Cnnditimls Precedent

means the conditions precedent sef out in Section 5.22.

_Conditions Subsequent

means the conditions subsequent set out in Section 5.22.

Constitutional means the certificale of incorporation of the Company, the memorandum

Documents of association and articles of association of the Company and the
- certificate ol registration issued by the RBI to the Company,

Crore means INR 1,00,00,000.

| Debentu res/NCDs/Bond
5

300 (Three Hundred) rated, secured, senior, redeemable, taxable,
lransferable, listed, non-convertible debentures denominated in Indian
Rupess ("INR") each having a face walue of INR 10,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Ten lakhs) apprepating to a face value of INR 30,00,00,000
(Indian Rupees Thirty Crore)

Debenture ITolders /
Investors

means the Applicants whose names and addresses are sel out in the
Application Form and for any subsequent Debenture Holders, each person
whe is;

(a) registered as a Benelicial Owner; and
() registered as a debenture lolder in the Register of Debenture
Holders,

Sub-paragraphs (n) and (b) shall be deemed o include transierces
ol the Debentures registered with the Issuer and the Depository
from time to time, and in the event of any inconsistency between
sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above, sub-paragraph (a) shall prevail.

Debenture Traslee

Catalyst Trosteeship Limited, a conmipany incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 with CIN UT4099PN1997PLC1 10262, having its
regisiered office at GDA House; Plot No, 85, Bhusari Colony, Paud Road,
Pune, Maharashtra - 411038 and acting through iz effices at Windsor, 6th
Floor, (ffice No-604, C.5.T. Road, Kaling, Santacrue (East), Mumbai,
Maharashira - 400098, India,

Debenture Trostee
Agreement

means the agreement exceutedfio be executed by and between {he
Debenture Trustee and the Issuer for the purposes of appointment of the
Debenture Trustee to act as debenture trustee in connection with the
issuance of the Debentures,




Debenlure Trustees
Regulations

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees)
Regulations, 1993,

MrD/Debenture Trust
Beed

means the debenture trust decd executedfio be executed by and bétween
the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer which will set out the terms upon
which the Debentures are being issued and shall include the
representations und warranties and the covenants to be provided by the
Issuer,

“Deed of H ypolhecation

shall have the meaning ascribed to it under Section 522 of this
Information Memaorandum,

Jﬁcrmcd Date of

means the date on which the Debentures are deemed to be allotted o e

 Allotment Debenture Holders, being September 03, 20240,

Debt Disclosure means, collectively, the private placement offer letter cum application
Doeuments Issuedito be issued by the lssuer and this Information Memorandum, and
L Debt Disclosure Document means any one of them, N
Demat means the dematerialized securities which are securities that are in

electronic form, and not in physical form, with the entries noted by the

| Depository.

Depositories Act

means the Depositorics Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

Depository

means the depository with whom the Company has made arrangements for
dematerialising the Debentures, being NSDL and/er CDSL.

Depository Participant /
nr

means a depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act.

| Director(s) means the director(s) ol the Issuer,
Due Date means the date on which any interest or liquidated damages, any
Redemption Payment or premature redemption amount and/or any ather
[l . amoumls payable, are due and pavable.
EBP Guidelines means the guidelines issued by SEBI with respect to electronic book

mechanism pursuant too the SEBI circular dated January 5, 2018
(bearing reference number SEBLHO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/05) on
"Eleetronie book mechanism for issuance of securities on private
placement basis" read with the SERI Circular dated August 16, 2018
(bearing reference number SERIHO/DDHS/CIR/P018/122) on
“Electronic bogk mechanism for issuance of securities on private
placement hagis - Clarifications" and the operational guidelines issued
by the relevant Elecironic Beok Provider, as may be restated,
amended, medified or updated from time to time.

Electronic Book
| Provider /| EBP

ERP Platform

EFT

has the meaning given to it under the EBP Guidelines,

has the meaning given o it under the LBP Guidelines.

mmcans Electronie Fund Transfer,

Early Redemption Event

means the oceurrence of any one of more of the following events:

the ocewrence of any bregch of any covenants set out in the YT which,
il capable of remedy, are not remedied o the satisfaction of the Debenture
Holders within 30 (thirty) calendar days of occurrence.

Lligible Investors

Means domestic investors, including scheduled commercial bank, in
accordance with the applicable law, and other directions and guidelines

preseribed by the RBIL

i
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Effective Date

means the date of execution of the DT,

_i'."v_r_-n ts of Default

means the events of default specified in Seetion 5,22 below.

Final Redem ption Date
o Redemption Date

means March 03, 20232,

Financial Indebtedness

means any indebtedness for or in respeel of

]
()

(e)

(d)

{e)

(f)

(g)

{h)

(1}

(i)

(k)

(1)

moneys borrowed;

any amount raised by acceptance under any acceptance credit,
bill aceeptance or bill endorsement facility or dematerialised
equivalent;

nny amount raised pursuant to any note purchase facility or the
issue of bends, notes, loan stack ar any similar instrument;

the amount of any liability in respect of any lease o hire
purchase contract which would, in accordance with the Indian
GAAT, be treated as a finanee or caplital lease;

receivables sold or discounted (other than any receivables ta
the extent they are sold on a non-recourse basis);

any amount raised under any other transaction (including any
forward sale or purchase agreement) having the commercial
elfect of a borrowing;

any derivative transaction entered into in connection with
protection against or benelit from fluctuation in any rate or
price (and, when caleulating the value of any derivative
transaction, only the marked to market value shall be taken
into account);

shares which are expressed (o be redecmable or shares which
are the suhject of & put option or any form of fruarantee;

any obligation under any put option in respect of any
securities;

any counter-indemnity ebligation in respect of a guarantee,
indemnity, bond, standby or documentary letter of credit or any
other instrument issucd by a bank or financial institut i,

any carparatefpersonal puarantee; a letler of comlort or any
oiher similar contractual comfort issued or incurred in respect
of a liability incurred by any other third person; and

the amount of any liability in respect of any puarantee or
indemnity for anv ol the items referred o in paragraphs {a) 1o
(k) aliowve,




[ Tinancial Year/ FY

means each period of 12 (welve) months commencing on April | of any
_calendar year and ending on Marcl 31 of the subsequent calendar year,

" inal Settlement Date

means the date on which all Secured Obligations have been irrevocably
and unconditionally paid and discharged in full to the satisfaction of the
Debenture Holders,

Governmental
Authuority

means any government (central, state or otherwise) or any governmental
agency, scmi-governmental or judicial er quasi-judicial or administrative
entity, department or authority, agency or authority including any stock
exchange or any self-regulatory organisation, established under any
Applicahle Law,

Gross Loan Portfolio

means the outstanding principal amount of all Client Loans originated by

Hypothecated Assets

Has the meaning piven to it in Section 522 of this Information
Memorandum,

CICCL

Means the Indian Clearing Corporation Limited.,

Increased Costs

means:

i) 4 reduction in the eate of return from the Debenlures or inoa
[rebenture Halder's overall capital (ineluding as o result of any
reduction in the rate of return on capital brought aboul by maote
capilal being required (o be allocated by the Debenture Holder);

() an additional or incredsed cost; or

] a reduction of any amount due and payable under any Transaction
rocument,

which is incurred or sulfered by a Debenture Holder to the extent
that it is attributable to the undertaking, funding or performance
by the Debenture Trustee of any of its obligations under any
Transaction Document or any subscription of the Debenture
Haolder of the Debentures,

Indian GAAT

Information
Memorandum

means the generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time and
consistently applied by the Company, and includes, to the extent
applicable, Ind-AS.

means this information memorandum issued by the Issuer in respect of the
issuance of the Debentures.

Interest Payment Date

means the payment dates as specified in Annexure 11 below, unless such
diy is nol a Business Day, in which case the pavment date will be the next
Business Day,

II‘HI‘EH Rate

means 9.50% (hine decimal five vero percent) per annum, and will be
repaid at par in 2 tranches

Issue

means this issue of Debentures by the 1ssuer on & private placement basis.

September 02, 2020 from 10,00 A.M,

| Issue Closing Date

september (12, 2020 till 03.00 P.M.

LODR Regulations

i

means the SEB| (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)




Regulations, 2015,

’i'rlajm'it}' Debenture
Holders

means such number of Debenture Holders collectively holding more than
30% (Nifty percent) of the value of the Outstanding Principal Amounts of

" Majority Resolution

the Debentures.

means a resolution approved by the Majority Debenture Holders who are
present and voling or il a poll is demanded, by the Majority Debanture
Holders who are present @nd voling in such poll.

E terial Adverse Effect

[ Moratorium Directions
(COVID-19)

means the effect or consequence of an event, circumstance. dccurmrence or
condition which has caused or could reasonably be expected to cavse, as
of any date of determination, o material and adverse effect:

(a) on the financial eondition, business or pperations of the Company,
environmental, social or otherwise or prospects of the Company; or

(b} on the akility of the Company o perform its obligations under the
Transaction Documents or in respect of the Secured Obligations; or

(e) on the valldily or enforceability of any of the Transaclion Documenls
{including the ability of any party to enforce any of ils remedies
thereunder),

means, collectively, the RBI's circular no.

DORMNe.BP.BC.AT/21.04.048/2019-20 dated Mareh 27, 2020 on
"COVID-19 — Regulatory Package (Revised)', the RBI circular no.
DORNo.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020 on
"COVIING Repulatory Package — Asset Classification and Provisioning",
the RBI circular no. DOR.No.BP.BC.71/21.04.048/2019-20 dated May
23, 2020 on "COVID-19 ~ Reguwlatory Package", and the RBI circular no.
DOR.No.BP.BC.72/21.04.048/2019-20 dated May 23, 2020 on
"COVIDG Regulatary Pockage — Review of Resalution Timelines under
the Prudential Framewark on Resolution of Stressed Assets" (each as
amended, modified or restated from time to timea).

NEFC Dircetions

means the Non-Banking Financial Company — Systemically Important
Mon-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016 and/or the Non-Banking
Financial Company — Non-Systemically Important Mon-Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Dircelions, 2006 dated September 1, 2016 (each
as amended, modified or restated from lime toime) as may be applicable,

i

Mot Applicable.

NBFC

MNet Warth

Means a Non-banking financial company.

has the meaning given to it in the Act.

 NSDL

Means the National Securities Depository Limited,

CDSL
O Balanee Sheet
Porifolio

Means the Central Depository Services Limited

means the outstanding principal balance of all Client Loans securitised,
assigned, originated on behall ol other institutions otherwide sold off in
respect of which the Company has provided credit enhangements in any
form or manner whatsoever including Client Loans originated on behall of
ather entities by entering into partnership agreements but nat included on




the Company's own book, excluding interest receivables and accruoed
interest,

Outstanding Amounts means, al any date, the f)ufsl%mdi‘:'\g P’rin{}ilmF Amounts together with any
interest, additional interest, costs, {ees, charges, and other ameunts
pavahle by the Company in respect ol the Debentures.

Uyistanding Principal means, at any date, the principal amounts outstanding under the
Amounts Debentures.

AN Means the Permanent Account Number,
Payment Default Means any event, gct or condition which, with notice or lapse ol time, or

bath, would constitute an Bvent of Defaull under paragraph (i) of the
column titled "Events of Default" under Section 5.22.,

" Tortfolio At Risk Over means, on the Company's entire assets under management at any point of
90 Days time, the outstanding principal amounts of the relevant portfolio of the
Company that has one or more instalments of principal, interest, penalty
interest, fee or any other expected payments overdue for 90 (ninaty)
calendar days or more, including restructured Client Loans but excluding
Client Loans that have been wrillen ofl by the Company.

| Private Placement Offer | Means the private placement offer cum application letter dated September

Litter/PTOA 02, 2020 issued by the 1ssuer in respeet of the Debentures.
“Tromoters has the meaning given to it under the Act.
Quarterly Date means each of March 31, June 30, September 3} and December 31 of a
== calendar year, and "Quarierly Diles" shall be construed accordingly,
Rating Means the rating of "A-; Stable (pronounced as Single A Minus: Outlook:
Stable)" assipned to the Debentures by the Rating Ageney.
Rating Agency means CARE Ratings Limited, having its registered office at 4'" Floor,

Godrej Coliseum, Somaiya Hospital Read, OIT Eastern Express Highway,
Sien (East), Mumbai — 400 022,

:ﬁBI means the Reserve Bank of India.
Record Date Shall have meaning ascribed to it under Section 5.22
Ilcflu_'mmon Date means March 03, 2022,
_ﬁcdemption Payment means the payment of the Outstanding Principal Amounts of the

Debentures on the Kedemption Date, or on any other date due to early
redemption in accordance with the DTL, or on any other date due to
voluntary redemplion in sceordance with the 1Y

Register of Benelicial means the register of beneficial owners of the Debentures maintained in
Owners the records of the Depository,

Repister of Debenture means the register of debentuie holders maintained by the Company in
Holders accordance with Section 88 of the Acl

Repistrar / R&T Agent | Means the registrar and transfer agent appointed Tor the lssue, being Klin
Technologies Private Limited (Formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private

Il B | Limited), ) B
Related Party has the meaning given o il in the Act,
| ROC means the jurisdictional registrar of companies.
s/ INR — means the Indian Rupee,
RTGS means Real Time Gross Settlement,
SEB] | means the Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the

e
1 o

N,

AL

=




Securities and Exehunge Bourd ol Inchia Act, 1992 (a5 amended [rom Lime
to timed.

"SEBI Debt Listing
Il{-gnlalin ns

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008 issued by SEBI, as amended from time
lo fime.

" Secured Obligations

N

means all present and future abligations (whetheractual or cantingent and
whether owed jointly or severally or inany capacity whatsoever) of the
Company to the Debenture Holders or the Debenture Trustee under the
Transaction Documents, including withoul limitation, the making ol
payment ol any interest, redemption of principal amounts, defaull intérest,
additional interest, liguidated damages and all costs, charges, expenses
and other wimounts pavable by the Company in respect of Lhe Debentures,

Security

_'Eucut'ily Cuover

has the meaning given 1o it in Section 522 of this Information
Memorandun,

has the meaning given W i1 in Section 5.22° of this Information
Memorandum,

H_Ept:cin! Majority
Debenture Holders

means such number of Debenture Holders collectively holding more than
75% (sevenly five percent) of the value of the Outlstanding Principal
Amounts of the Debenlures,

E[I'L‘Ei.ﬂl Resalution

means resolution appraved hy the Special Majority Debenture Holders
who are present and voting oc if a poll is demanded, by the Special
Majority Debenture Holders who are present and voting in such poll.

Tax

Tax Dedueetion

means any present or future tax, levy, duty, charge, fees, deductions,
withholdings, surcharges, cess, turnover tax, transaction tax, stamp tax or
ather charge of a similor nature (including any penally or interest payable
on account of any failure to pay or delay in paying the same), now or
hereafter, imposed pursuant to any Applicable Law or by any
Governmental Authority and as maybe applicable in relation to the

payment obligations of the Company under the DTD.

means a deduction or withholding for or on aceount of Tax from a
payment under a Transaction Document pursuant to Applicable Law,

Tier 1 Capital

Tier H Capital

shall have the meaning given to it in the NBFC Directions.
ghall have the meaning aiven (o it in the NBFC Direclions,

Total Assets

Transaclion Documents

means, for any date of determination, the total Assets of the Company on
_such date. R ——

means, collectively, the DD, the Deed of Hypotheeation, the Debenture
Trustee Agreement, the Debl Disclosure Documents, cach tripartite
agreemen! between the Company, the Registrar and any Depository, the
letters issued by, and each memarandum of understanding entered into
with, the Rating Agency and the Registrar, and all other decuments in
relation to the issuance of the Debentures, and any other document
designated as such by the Debenture Trustee (acting on the insttuctions of

| the Debenture Holders).

| WDM
Willul Defuulter

Wholesale Debt Market o N
shall mean an lssuer who is calegorized asa willul defaulier by any Bank
or financial institution or econsortivin thereof, in accordance with the
guidelines on willul defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

I




SECTION 22 NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS

2. ISSUER'S DISCLAIMER

This Information Memerandum is neither a prespectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus and should
nat be construed to be a prospectus or a statement in liew of a prospectus under the Companies Act. The
isiue of the Debentures to be listed on the WDM segment of the BSE (upon request from Debenture
Thistee) is being made strictly on a private placement basis. Multiple copies hereof given to the same
eitity shall be deemed to be given to the same person and shall be treated as such. This Information
Memorandum does not constitute and shall not be deemed ta constitute an offer or invitation to subscribe
tathe Debentures to the public in general.

/s per the applicable provisions, it is not necessary for a copy of this Information Memarandum to be filed
orsubmitted 1o the SEBT for its review and/or approval.

This Information Memorandum has been prepared in conlormity with the SEBL Debt Listing Repulations
as amended from time to time and applicable RBI regulations governing private placements ol debentures
by NBFCs, This Information Memorandum has been prepared solely to provide general information about
the Issuer to Eligible Investors to whom il is addressed and who are willing and eligible to subscribe to the
Debentures, This [nformation Memorandum does not purport to contain all the information that any
Eligible Investor may require, Further, this Information Memarandum has been prepared for informational
purposes relating to this transaction enly and upon the express understanding that il will be used only for
the purposes set forth herein.

Meither this Information Memorandum nor any other information supplied in connection with the
Debentures is intended o provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and any recipient of this
Information Memorandum should not consider such receipt as a recommendation to subseribe to any
Debentures. Each potential Investor contemplating subseription to any Debentures should make its own
independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer, and its own appraisal of the
creditworthiness of the Issuer. Potential investors should consult their own {inancial, legal, tax and other
professional advisors as to the risks and investinent considerations arising lrom an investment in the
Debentures and should possess the appropriate resources (o analyse such investment and the suitahility of
such investiment to such potential Investor’s particular ciicumstances,

The lssuer eonfirms that, as of the date hereof, this Information Memorandum (including the documents
incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all the information that is material in the context of the
Issue and regulatory requirements in relation to the Issue and is accurate in all such material respects, No
person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained or
incorporated by reference in this Information Memarandum ar in any material made available by the Issuer
to any potential Investor pursuant heveto and, if given or made. such information or representation must not
be relied upon as having being authorized by the lssuer. The lssuer certifies that the disclosures made in
this [nformation Memorandum are adequate and in conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations.
Further, the lssuer accepts no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in the Information
Memorandum or any other material issued by or at the instance of the Issuer and anyone placing reliance
on any source of information other than this Information Memorandum would be doing so at its own risk.

This Information Memorandum and the respeetive contents hercol respectively, are restricted only
for the intended recipient(s) who have been addressed direetly and specifically through a
communication by the Issuer and only such recipients ave eligible to apply Tor the Debentures. All
Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for
investing in this Issue. The contents of this Information Memorandum are intended to be used only

12 -
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b} those Investors to whom it is distributed. It is not ntended for distribution to any other person
a1l should not be reproduced by the recipient.

i invilation is being made to any persons other than those to whom Application Forms along with this
Inlormation Memorandum being issued have been sent, Anv application by a person to whom the
[rlarmation Memorandum has not been sent by the Issuer shall be rejected without assigning any reason.

Tl person who is in receipt of this Information Memorandum shall not reproduce ar distribute in whole or
inpart or make any announcement in public or to a third party regarding the contents hereof without the
cansent of the Izsucr. The recipicnt aprees o keep conlidential all information provided (or made availabie
hereafter), Including, withoul limitation, the exigtence and terms of the Issue, any specific pricing
inioppation related o the lssue or the amounl or terms of any fecs payvable to us or other parties in
comnection with the lssue, This Information Memorandum may nol be photocopied, reproduced, or
didributed to others at any time without the prior written consent of the Issuer. Upon request, the recipients
will promptly return all material received from the Issuer (including this Information Memorandum)
without retaining any copies hereof, If any recipient of this Information Memorandum decides not to
paticipate In the [ssue, that recipient must promptly return this Information Memorandum and all
repreductions whether in whole or in part and any other information statement, notice, opinion,
memarandum, expression or forecast made or supplied at any time in relation thereto or received in
caonnection with the Issue to the Issuer,

The Issuer docs nol undestake to update the Information Memorandum to reflect subsequent events after
the date of Information Memorandum and thus it should not be relied upon with respeet to such subsequent
events without first confirming its accuracy with the Issuer,

Neither the delivery of this Information Memorandum nor any sale of Debentures made hereafter shall,
under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create any implication that there has been no
change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof.

This Information Memorandum does not constitite, nor may it be used for or in connection with, an offer
or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or o any
person ta whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. No action is being taken to permit an
offering of the Debenlures or the distribution of this Information Memotandum in any jurisdiction where
such action is required. Persons into whose possession this Information Memorandum comes are required
to inform themselves of, and to observe, any such restrictions. The Information Memorandum is made
available to potential Investors in the lssue on the strict understanding that it is confidential.

22 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF STOCK EXCHANGES

As required, aocopy of this Information Memorandum has been Gled with the BSL in terms of the SEBI
Debt Listing Regulations. [t is to be distinetly understood that submission of this Information
Memorandum to the BSE should not incany way be deemed or construed to mean that this Information
Memorandum has been reviewed, eleared, or approved by the BSE; nor does the BSE in any manner
warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Information
Memorandum, nor does the BSE warrant that the Issuer's Debentures will be listed within 20 (twenty) days
from intimation by the Debenture Trustee or will continue 1o be listed on (he BSE; nor does the BSE take
any responsibility for the soundness of the financial and other conditions of the Issuer, its promoters, ils
management or any scheme or project of the Issuer,

2.3 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI
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At per the provisions ef the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations, it is not stipulated that a copy of this
I ivemation Memorandum has to be filed with or submitted to the SEBI for its review / approval. It is to be
ditinetly understood that this Information Memorandum should rot in any way be deemad or construed to
h@ve been-approved or vetted by SEBT and that this Issue is not recommended or approved by SEBI, SEBI
dees not ke any responsibility either for the financial soundness of any proposal for which the Debentures

ismed thereof is proposed 1o be made or for the correctness of the statements made or opinions expressed
inthis Information Memorandum,

24 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

This Tssue is made in India to investors @ speeilied under the paragraph titded “Eligible Investors”™ of this
Information Memorandum, whe shall befave been identified upfromt by the lssper. This Information
Mlemorandum does not constitute an ofTer W sell or an invitation te subscribe o Debentures olfered herehy
toany persan to whom it is not specifically addressed, Any disputes arising outl of this 1ssue will be subject
o the exelusive jurisdiction of the courls and tribunale as sel out in the Transgction Documents. This
Information Memprandum does nol constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe 1o the
Dibentures herein, in any other jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make an offer or
invitation in such jurisdiction.

2.5 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCIES

Ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not tecomunendations 1o sanction, renew, disburse or recall
the concerned bank facilitics or to buy, sell or hold any seeurity. The Rating Agency has based its ratings
o infarmation obtained from sources believed by it W0 be seeurate and reliable. The Rating Agency does
nol, however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information and is not responsible
[or any errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such information. Most entities
whose bank facilities/instruments are rated by the Rating Agency have paid a credit rating fee, based on the
amount and type of bank facilities/instruments,

2.6 ISSUE OF DEBENTURES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

The Debentures will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issuer has made arrangements with the
Depositories for the issue of the Debentures in dematerialised form. Investors will have to hold the
Debentures in dematerialised form as per the provisions of Depositories Act, The lssuer shall take
necessary steps to eredit the Debentures allotted to the beneficiary account maintained by the Investor with
its depositary participant. The Issuer will make the allotment to the Investors on the Deemed Date of
Allotment after verification of the Application Form, the accompanying documents and en realisation of
the application money.

29 DISCLAIMER OF THE RBEI

The Debentures have not been recommended or approved by the RBI nor does REBL puaraniee the accuracy
or adeguacy of this document. It is to be distinctly understood that this document should not, inany way,
be deemed or construed that the sceurities have been recommended [or investment by the RBLL It does not
take any responsibility either Tor the financial soundness of the Issver, or (he securities being issued by the
Issuer or for the corrcetness of the statements made or opinions expressed in this dogument. Potential
investors may make investment decision in the securitics offered I terms of this Information
Memorandum solely on the basis of their own analysis and RBI does nol accept any responsibility about
servicing/ repayvment of such investment,




SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS

I'te following are the risks relating to the Company, the Debentures and the market in general envisaged
B2 the management of the Company. Patential Investars should carelully consider all the risk factors stated
irithis Information Memorandum for evaluating the Company and its business and the Debentures before
miking any investment decision relating to the Debentures. The Company believes that the factors
described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing in the Debentures, but does not represent
thut the statements below regarding risks of holding the Debentures are exhaustive, The ordering of the risk
[etars is intended 1o facilltate case of reading and reference and does not in any manner indicale the
irmportance of one risk factor over another. Potential Investors should alse read the detailed information set
o elsewhere in this Information Memorandum and reach their own views prior to making any investment
detision.

3.1 THE SECONDARY MARKET FOR DEBENTURES MAY BE TLLIQUID.

The Debentures may be very illiquid and no secondary market may develop in respect thereof. Even if
tlere is a secondary market for the Debentures, it is not likely to provide significant liquidity, Potential
Irwestors may have to hold the Debentures until redemption to realize anv value.

3.1 REPFAYMENT IS SUBIECT TO THE CREDIT RISK OF THE 1SSULIR.

Potential nvestors should be aware that receipt of the principal amount, (i.e. the redemplion amount) and
ary olher amounts that may be due in respect of the Debentures is subject 1o the credit risk of the Tssuer
including whereby the Investors may or may nat récover all er part of the invested funds In case of default
by the Issuer, Potential Investors assume the risk that the Issuer will nat be able to satisfy their obligations
under the Debentures, In the event that bankrupicy procecdings or composition, scheme of arrangement or
similar proceedings 1o avert bankrupley are instituted by or aeainst the [ssuer, the payment of sums due on
the Debentures may not be made or may be substantially reduced or delayed,

3.3 CREDIT RISK & RATING DOWNGRADFE RISK

The Rating Apency will assipn eredil rating to the Debentures prior to the Issue Opening Date. In the event
of deterioration in the financial healh of the Issuer, there is a possibility that the Rating Apency may
dewngrade (hie rating of the Debentures. 1n such cases, polential Investors tay incur losses on revalualion
of their investment or make provisions towards sub-standard’ non-performing investment as per their vsual
Ners,

34 CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES MAY AFFECT THE FRICE OF DEBENTURES.

All securities where a feced rate of interest is offered, such as this 1ssue, are subject to price risk. The price
of suel seeurities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing inlerest rates, i.e. when interest rates rise.
prices of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The extent of fall or
rise in the prices is a function of the existing coupen, days to maturity and the increase or decrease in the
level of prevailing interest rates, Inereased rates of interest, which frequently accompany inflation and/ora
growing economy, are likely 1w have a negative effect on the pricing of the Debentures.

3.5 TAX CONSIDERATIONS AND LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS
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Siecial tax considerations and legal considerations mav apply to certain types of investors. Potential
[Mvestors ave urged to consull with their own nancial, lesal, wx and olher advisors o determine any
firancial, legal, tax and other implications of this investment,

34 ACCOUNTING CONSIDERATIONS

Syecial accounting considerations may apply 1o certain types of taxpavers, Potential Investors are urged to
cansult with their own accounting advisors to determing implications of this investment,

3.1 MATERIAL CHANGES IN REGULATIONS TO WHICH THE ISSUER IS SUBJECT
COULD IMPAIR THLE ISSUER'S ABILITY TO MEET PAYMENT OR OTHER
OBLIGATIONS. :

Tle Issuer is subject penerally to ehanges in Indian law, as well as to changes in government regulations
anl policies and accounting principles. Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect the
profitability of the Issuer or its future financial performance, by requiring a restructuring of its activities,
intreasing costs or otherwise,

3.4 LEGALITY OF PURCHASE

Potential Investors in the Debentures will be responsible for the lawfulness of the acquisition of the
Debentures, whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of their incorporation or the jurisdiction in which
they operate or for compliance by that potential Investor with any law, regulation or regulatory policy
applicable to it,

3.9 POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC RISK IN INDIA

The Issuer operates only within India and, accordingly, all of its revenues are derived from the domestic
market. As a result, it is highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and its results of
operations are significantly alfected by factors influencing the Indian gconomy, An uncertain economic
situation, in India and globally, could result in a further slowdown in econemic growth, investment and
consumption. A slowdown in the rate of growth in the Indian economy could result in lower demand for
credit and other financial products and services and higher defaults. Any slowdown in the growth or
negative prowth of scetors where the Issuer has a relatively higher exposure could adversely impact its
performance. Any such slowdown could adversely affect ils business, prospects, results of operations and
linancial condition.

310 RETURNS ON DEBENTURES ARE SUBJECT TO MODEL RISK

The returns on the Debentures are based on the basis of complex mathematical models involving multiple
derivative exposures which may or may not be hedged and the actual behaviour of the securities selected
for hedping may significantly differ from the relums predicted by the mathematical models,

311 RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

A I the Isswer is wnable to control the fevel of non-pecforming loans (“NPAs") ia the future, or if
the Fssuer's loun loss reserves arve insufficient to cover future loan loyses, the financial condition
and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.
The client loans are secured against hypothecation of stock, receivables and other current assets
and the clients of these loans are of the high-risk category. There is uncertainty on the client’s
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ability to fulfil its loan obligations: Such non-performing or low eredit quality loans can negatively
impuet our results of operalions,

As on 31 March 2020, the gross NPA was Re. 32,18 Crore on a gross partfolio of Rs. 1071,58
Crore,

The Issuer cannot assure that the Issuer will be able to effectively control and reduce the level of
MNPAs in its otal loan pertfolio. The amount of the Issuer’s reported non-performing loans may
increase in the future as a result of growth in the total loan portfolio, and also due to factars beyond
the [ssuer's control. Failure to manage NPAs or effect recoveries will resull in operations being
adversely affected.

The Issuer’s current loan loss reserves may nol be adequate to eoveran increase in the amount of
MNPAs or any fulure deterioration in the overall eredit quality of the Issuer’s total loan portfolio, As
a result, il the quality of the Issuer’s total loan portfolio deteriorates the [ssuer may be required to
increase the loan loss reserves, which will sdversely affeet the lssuar's financial condition and
results of operations.

The Issuer’s business operates theough a farge number of rural and semi wrban branches and is
exposed to operativnal risks including fraud

The lssuer is exposed to operational risks, including fraud, petty theft and embezzlement, as it
handles a large amount of cash due to high volume of small transactions. This could harm its
operations and its financial position,

As the [ssuer handles a large amount of cash through a high volume of small transactions taking
place in its network, the Issuer is exposed to the risk of fraud or other misconduct by its employees
or vutsiders. These risks are further compounded due to the high level of delegation of power and
processed by the lssuer, certain instances of fraud and misconduct may po unnoticed before they
are discovered and suceessfully rectified. Even when the Issuer discovers such instances of fraud
or theft and pursue them to the full extent of the law or with its insurance carriers, there can be no
assuranece that the lssuer will recover any such amounts. In addition, the lssuer’s dependence upon
awomated systems to record and process transactions may further increase the risk that technical
system flaws or employee tampering or manipulation of those systems will resull in losses that are
difficult to detect.

The Issuer maintains an internal audit process to ensure the operations team follows the defined
procedures and reports any deviations to the operations staff and management team, The lssuer
also has a strong MIS system that has 8 wide range of data that can be used to monitor financial
and operational performance.

Te mitigate the above risk, the Issuer maintains an internal audit process te ensure the eperations
team follows the defined procedures and reports any deviations to the operations stall and
management team. The:Issuer also has a MIS systom able to penerste data analysis thal can be used
to monitor financial and eperational performance.

The Issuer is exposed to certain political, regulatory and concentration of risks

Due 1o the nature ol its operations, the Issuer is exposed to political, regulatory and concentration
risks. The lssuer believes a mitigant to this is to expand its geographical reach and may
consequently expand its operations other states, If it is not effectively able to manage such
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operations and expansion, it may lose money invested in such expansion, which could adversely
affect its business and results of operations.

Large seale attrition, especially at the senior management level, can make it difficalt for the
Issner to manage its businesy.

If the lssuer is not able to attract, motivate, integrate or retain gqualified personnel at levels of
expericnce thal are nesessary to maintain the Tssuer’s quality and reputation, it will be difficult for
the Issuer to manage its business and growth, The Issuer depends on the services of its executivie
officers and key employees for its continued operations and growth. In particular, the Issuer’s
senior management has significant experience in the financial services industries. The loss of any
of the Issuer’s executive officers, key emplovees or senior managers could negatively alfect its
ability 10 exccute its business sirategy, including its ability to manage its rapid growth, The Issuer's
business is also dependent on its team of personnel who diccetly manape its relationships with its
members. The Issuer's business and profits would suffer adversely if a substantial number ol such
personnel left the Issuer or became ineffeetive in servicing its members over 8 period of lime. The
lssuer’s future success will depend in large part on its ability o identify, attrdet and retain highly
skilled manaperial and other personnel, Competition for individuals with soch specialized
knowledge and expericnee is intense in this industry, and the Issuer may be unable to attract,
motivate, integrate or retain qualified personnel at levels of experience that are necessary to
maintain its quality and reputation or to sustain or expand its operations. The loss of the services of
such personnel or the imability to identify, attract and retain qualified personnel in the future would
nitke it difficult for the Issuer to manage its business and growth and to mect key objectives.

The Issuer's business and resulis of operations would be adversely affected by strikes, work
stoppages or increased wage demanis by employees

The employees are nol currently unionized. However, there can be no assurance that they will not
unionize in the future, If the employees unionize, it may become difficult to maintain flexible
tabour policies, and could result in high labour costs, which would adversely affect the Issuer's
business and results of operations,

The fssuer’s insurance coverage may nof adequately protect it against losses. Suceessful claims
that exceed ity insarance coverage cowld harm the Issuer’s results of operations and diminish ity
Jinanciol position
The lssuer maintains insurance coverage of the type and in the amounts that it believes are
commensurate with its operations and other general liability insurances. The lssuer's insurance
policies, however, may net provide adequate coverage in certain cireumstances and may be subject
Lo certain deductibles, exclusions and limits on coverape,

In addition, there are various types of risks and losses for which the Issuer does not maintain
insurance. such as losses due to business interruption and natural disasters, because they are either
uninsurable or because insurance is not available to the Issuer on aceeptable terms. A successful
assertiion of one or more large claims againgt the Issuer that exceeds its available Insurance
coverage or results in changes in its insurance policies, including premium increases or the
imposition of a larger deductible or co-insurance requirement, could adversely alleet the Issuer's
Business, financial condition and results of operations.

Issuer requires certain statutory and regulatory appravals for conducting business and fuilure to
abifain or retain them in a tmely manner, or af all, may adversely affect operations,

NBFCs in India are subject to strict regulation and supervision by the RBI, The Issuer requires
cerlain approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions for operating its business, including
registration with the RBI as a NBFC pursuant to Section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934, Further, such
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approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions must be maintained/renewed over time,
applicable requirements may change and the [ssuer may nol be aware of or comply with all
requirements all of the time. In particular, the lssuer is reguired 10 oblain a certificate of
registration  for earrying on business as a8 NBFC that is subjeet o numerous conditions.
Additionally, RBI has issued detailed directions on prodemtial norms infer alia prescribing
guidelines on income recognition, assel classification and provisioning requirements applicable to
NBFCs, exposure norms, disclosures in the balance sheel, requirement of capital adequacy,
resirictions on investments in land and building and unguoted shares besides others. In addition, its
branches are required to be registered under the relevant shops and establishments laws of the
states in which they are located. The shops and establishments laws repulate various employment
eonditions, including working hours, holidays and leave and overtime compensation. 1 the Issuer
fails o oblain or retain any of these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, in a timely manner,
ar at all, its business may be adversely affected. If the lssuer fails to comply. or a regulator claims
that it has not complied, with any of these conditians, the lssuer’s certificate of registration may be
suspended or cancelled, and it shall not be able to carry on such activities. If the Issuer fails to
comply with any directions issued applicable on NBFCs and fails 1o maintain the status of NBFC it
may attract penal provisions under the RBI Act, 1934 for non-compliance. The penal action can
also result in RBI cancelling the certificate of registration issued to the NBFC.




SECTION 4:  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T he sudited financial statements of the Issuer Tor the year ended 31.03.2018, 31.03.2019 and 31.03.2020 is
prvided below:
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SECTION 5: REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

The Information Memorandum is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Debt Listing
FRegulations and in this section, the lssuer hag set oul the details required as per Schedule 1 of the SERI
[ebt Listing Regulutions,

Al

Documents Submitted to the Exchanges

The following decuments hiave been / shall be submitted (o the BSE:

(vi)

{vit)

{viii)

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the [ssuer and neeessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Debantures;

Lopy of last 3 (Threee) years audited Annual Reports;

Statement containing particulars of, dawes of, and parties te all material contracts and
apreemonis;

Cedilied true copy of the beard resolutions dated January 29, 2020 authorising the Company
to issue non-convertible debt securities in one or more tranches up to an aggregate limit of
MR 5.00,00,00,000/ (Indian Rupees Five Hundred Crore only), together with a list of
authorised signatories read together with a certified true copy of the board resolution dated
July 10, 2020 and certified true copy of the Loan & Investment Committee resolution dated
Aupgust 26, 2020;

Certified true copies of the shareholders' resolutions passed by the Company 2t the Annual
General Meeting held on August 27, 2018 authorizing the Company to borrow, upon such
terms a8 the Beard may think i, upto an agerepate limit of TNR 20,00,00,00,000/- (Indian
Rupees Two Thousand Crore only);

An undertaking from the Issuer stating that the necessary documents Tor creation of the
charge, where applicable, including the DTD would be executed within the time frame
prescribed in the relevant regulationsfacts/rules etc. and the same would be uploaded on the
website of the BSE, where the debt securities have been listed, within five (5) working davs
of execution of the same;

Where applicable; an undertaking that permission/consent from the prior creditor for a
second or part passu charge being created, in favor of the trustees to the proposed issue has
been obtained; and

Any other particulars or documents that the recognized stock exchange may call for as it
deems fit,

Documents Submitted to Debenture Trustee

The fllowing documents have been ¢ shall be submitted to the Debenture Trustee in eleetronic

form (sofl copy) on or before the allotment of the Debentures:

(1)

(i)
(i)

(iv)

(v)

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the lssuer and necessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Debentures;

Copy of last 3 (Three) years audited Annual Repors;

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties {o all material contracts and
agreements;

Latest audited / limited review hall yearly consolidated (wherever available) and
standalone financial information (profit & loss statement, balance sheet and cash Now
statement) and auditor qualifications and Provisional financials, if any:

An undertaking to the effect that the Issuer would, until the redemption ol the debi
securities, suhmit the details mentionzd in point (iv) above to the Debenture Trustee within

s
Pl




the timelines as mentioned in the Simplified Listing Agreement issued by SEBI vide
circular No, SEBFIMDVBONDY1/2009/1 1/05 dated May 11, 2009 as amended from time to
time, for furnishing ¢ publishing its half yearly/ annual results. Further, the lssuer shall
within 180 (One Hundred and Fighty) days from the end of the financial year, submit a
copy of the latest annual report to the Debenture Trustee and the Debenture Trustee shall
be obliged to share the details submitted under this clause with all ‘Qualified Institutional
Buyers' (QIBs) and other existing debenture-holders within 2 (T'we) working days of their

specific request.

Name, Address and other details of the Issuer, Arranper, Auditors, Debenture Trustee,
Registrar and Credit Rating Agency(ies)

Details of the Issuer:
Mame;
Registered Office of lssuer:

Corporate Office of lssuer:

Corporate ldentilication Number:
Phone Mo.:

Website of Tssuer:

Compliance Olficer of Tssuer;
Erail:

CFC of the Issuer:

Details of the Arranger:
Arrangers of the instrument:
Address:

Telephone:
Email:

Details of the Auditors:
Auditors of the |ssuer
Address;

Tal:
Details of the Debenlure Trustee:
Trusiee 1o the Issue:

Addreess:

Tel:
Email:

Details of the Registrar:
Registrar to the Issue:

Kogta Financial (India) Limited

'Wogla [House' Awzad Mohalla, MNear Rly. Station,
Bijainagar- 305624, Rajasthan

8-1, Gopal Bari, Wear Ajmer Pulia, Opposite Metro Pillar
Mo, 143, Jaipur — 302001, Rajasthan.
LaTIZ0RIT996PLCOT 1406

01 141 — 6767000

www koot in

br, Rahul Agrawal

ralinl. agrawal @ kapta.in

Mr, Warun Kaopgln

Intellecap Advisary Services Private Limited

134, 6th Floor, Techniplex-11 IT Park, OF Veer Savarkar
Flyover, Goregaon West, Mumbai - 400062, India
+H)22-6195 2764

ashim.ranui@intellecap.com

S.R. Batliboi & CO,, LLP

12% Flaor, The Ruby, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar
{West), Mumbai — 400028

+91 22 6819 8000

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Windsor, 6" Floor, Office No. 604, C.5.7. Road, Kalina,
Santacruz (Bast), Mumbai — 400098

+41 22 4922 0501

complianceetl-mumbaigzetlirustee.com

Efin Technologies Private Limited (Formerly known as
Earvy Fintech Private Limited)



Address: Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No =31 & 32, Financial
Distriet, Manakrampuda, Sérilingampally, Hyderabad,
Rangareddi, Telangaiia — S00032,

Phane No.: +a1 40 6716 2222

Email: campliance kfpl@hkarvy.com

Details of the Credit Rating Agency(ics):

Mame: CARE Ratings Limiwed
Address: Godrej Coliseum, 4" Floor, Somaiya Hosp Road, Off E
Exp Highway Sion E Mumbaj-400022, Muahorashirn
54 A brief summary of business / activities of the Issuer and its line of business:
(2 Overview

Kogta Financial (India) Limited (the “KFL*® or the “Company” or the “Issuer™) is a Systemieally
Impertant non — deposit-taking non-banking financial company registered with the Reserve Bank of India
(“RBI”) as an asset finance Company, engaged in the business of vehicle financing, loan against property
and MSME Financing, The Company does not have any subsidiaries. The Company is based in Jaipur
(Rajasthan) and operates in the states of Rajasthan, Gujaral, Maharashira, Madhya Pradesh, Delhi,
Haryana, Utlar Pradesh, Chandigarh and Punjab.

Initially, the Company had its business network only in Bijainagar and Bhilwara, operating on a very small
scale, In 2008, the Company started its corporate oflice at Jaipur and started expanding its marketing
network in nearby distriets and rural and urban areas.

The Company had started disbursements in Gujarat in 2011-12 by creating a base at Ahmedabad and in
2014-15, the company started dishursements in Maharashtra and Madhya Pradesh and National Capital
Region (NCR) region in 2017-18, KFL has grown its portfolio over the past four 1o five years and plans to
incraase its AUM at a compounded annual growth rate of approximately 50% (fifty percent) aver the next
few years,

The Company has scaled up from INR 711.24 crares of AUM in 319 March 2019 ta INR 1071.58 crores of
AUM a5 on 31" March 2020. Though the growth has been nggressive, the Company has been able to
manage the quality of the portlolio owing to experience of the prometers, well defined process and
systems, experience of operating in Rajasthan, Gujarat, Maharashtra, Delhi, Uttar Pradesh, Madhya
[*radesh, Haryana, Chandigarh and Punjab.

MAIN OBJECTS AND BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER
i Current Corporate Status;

KFL was incorporated in 1996 and was registered with the RBI as an Asset Finance Company —
Deposit taking (“AFC-D") in December, 1998, Further the Company had applied for conversion of
registration category from AFC-D) 1o Asset Finance Company — Non Deposit taking (“AFC-ND")
and RBI has duly issued a new certilicate of Registration No. B-10.00086 dated May 27, 2016 to
carry on the business of AFC-ND. The Issuer derives the following benefits of being registered as
an NBFC:

* Access to Funds: Commercial lenders have greater comfort lending to a regulated NBFC with
transparent ownership, As an Issuer, Kogta can raise equity and offer commercial returns.
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Diverse Funding Sources: An NBFC can aceess commercial investors and International capital
markets, diversifving away from denors or members as equity funders.

Commercialisation: Classifying Kogla as an NBFC increases its commercial credibility and
inmegrates it and its elients into the formal financial sector which ultimately increases its outreach
potential,

Mainstream Resources: As a for-profit commercial NBFC, Kogta will be more likely 1o attract
mainstream capital resources which Societics or Trusts would find difffeult to attraet.

Regulatory Coverage: As Kogla grows in size, operating as an NBFC within the repulatory
framework mitigates risks from paolitical and regulatory intervention,

Stakeholder Involvement: As an NBIFC, Kogta can bring a variety of stakeholders to the table,

including clients, management, emplovees and investors.

ii. Business Segments

KIL’s portfolio is a mix of light commercial vehicles (LCV), heavy commercial vehicles (HCV),
multi weility vehicles (MUWs). two wheelers, loan against property and MSME business loan,

(b CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Board of DMrectors

-

Board of Directors

Name Designation Experience

Overseas Corporate Planning and Risk Management activities
M. Radha Krishan | . f’f the nmupany.‘hlan the !bunding‘nmmbcr af lh.“ Campany,
Kogta Chairman isa firsl generation entreprencur with vaist experience of 35+
yrs. In eonstruction and other SME businesses apart from

— KFL.
Formulates business development strategies, responsible for
Mt expanl:lling new geographies &: new rprudum segments, |'iﬂk_
M A Easta [ithaator g & ﬂnaljfs_Ls of current areas 01_ operations cltc. His areas ol
L CED experfise are marketing, credit, risk analysis and collection,

MBA in Finance From Cardiff University, LUK, and also
praduate in Civil Engineering from Pune Universily,

Mr. Varun Kogla

Whale-Time
Director &
CFO

Oversees financial, operational, 1T, legal & administrative
setivities of the company. Monitors financial budgeting &
management reporting systeni. Has previously worked with
ICKCT Bank in Treasury and with Ernst & Young in statulory
audit department.




Board of Directors

Mame Desipuation ) Expericnee

Commercial banker with 38+ years of expericnce. Ex-ED of

Mr. P, R, Independent Federal Bank and Ex- GM of Bank of India. TTas had
Lalayanaraman Director substantial exposure in both Large Industrial Credit and

- Foreign Exchange operations,

- Responsible Ifﬂr Cirowth stage investments. Amit t}r:s. miade

Mr. Amit Mehta Moirirns sqL‘mcessli['ul imyestment E']CFFISE_PhH]"I‘E‘IE!T inl:lumltnn!s :?nd
Divecior Financials seclors. He has previously worled with Maotilal

Oswal Private Equity and Mayfield Fund,

Mr, Arjun Saigal

Mon-Executive
Directoi

Mr. Arjun Saigal is an Exccutive Dircetor of Margan Stanfey.
Mr. Saigal joined the Firm in 2012 and is the Co-Tead of the
Fund’s India Investment Operations. Prior (o joining Morgan
Stanley, Mr. Saigal was with Baring Priviate Equity Partners
India. Mr. Saigal is based in Mumbai, Mr, Saigal is a graduate
af the London School of Economics and received his M.BA.
from Columbia Busingss School,

Mr, Kumar
Sharadindu

Independeant
Diireclor

My, kumar Sharadindu has retived as Chiel General Manager,
State Bank of India with last stint as MD & CEO of SBI
Pension Funds (P) Ltd. He played important role in
introduction of poelicy by Pension Fund Regulatory and
Development  Authority (PFRDA) for transfer of self-
managed Superannuation Funds of Central Public Sector
Undertaking (CPSEs) (o National Pension System (NPS). In
2001 5-16, he was Head — Private Equity, State Bank of India.
He was member of Investment Committee (1C) for three
Private Equity Funds, entrusted with the role of taking
investment decisions and Monitoring investments in 21 Funds
and 49 dirset investments in Companies spanning across
industries.

br. Robin
Bhanwarlal Agarwal

Mon-Erecutive
Director

M=, Bhashikala
Ramuachandra

[ndependeant
Director

Mr. Robin Bhanwarlal Agarwal has obtained a B. Tech and
M. Tech — Mechanical Engineering Degrees from Indian
Institute of Technology, Bombay and at present he is Vice
President at Creador Advisors India LLP.

Murs. Shashikala Ramachandra spent more than three decades
in banking sector which spanned from managing Credit
Policy Section to become Trainer in Risk Mahagement. She
was appointed as Senior Manager in Canara Bank then
promoted to Divisional Manager, then Deputy General
Manager, then General Manager and Chief Risk Officer. She
has retired as General Manager and Group Chief Risk Officer
from Canara Bank, She played major role in lmplementing
Enterprise Risk Management Risk solution of SAS modules
of Risk solulion, Model development and Model Validation,
Credit Risk — Standardized and Advanced Approaches, Group
Risk etc.

({8 Key Operational and Financial Parameters for the last 3 audited years on o consolidated
basis {(wherever available) else on 2 standalone busis (s, ‘in Inkhs")
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5.5

As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As st March 31,
Particulars: 2020 2019 2018
B Networth 54,870.85 22,952.77 6H.818.20
__ Total Debt of which 68,056.74 40,841.73 3112297
-Non-Current Maturities of Long Term
B Borrowing 24,922 17 PGV | ﬁ,ﬁi’gjz
- Short Term Borrowing 43,134,557 L(A35.75 4,713.91
- Current M;lgf.u:'ilmsf of Long-Term ) 12.734.25 10,720 74
=== urrnwmg |
o Net Fixed Assels 39,74 501 .64 285.51
2 Non-Current Assets T0.245.37 _ 2,605.67 _L053.31
Cash and Cash Equivalents 671.04 1,149.68 1.431.20
| Current Investments 3 E =
Current Assets 35.388.22 770714 1,638.39
__ Current Liabilities ~ 44,852.10 2,579.49 1,181.29
N Assets Under Management I,07,158.38 71,124.11 42 851.23
Off Balance Sheet Assets 7.079.97 16,289.57 7.957.31
Interest Income 15,879.32 8.243.11 5,275.54
Interest Expense 5, 758.96 4. 17549 2,757.73
| Provisioning & Write-offs 498,761 465.18 31433
PAT 248230 1.125.44 232.68
Gross NPA (Rs. In lacs) 3,217.78 1.858.73 1,078.26
Net NPA (R, In lacs) 2,568.64 1.604.53 841.21
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 58,42 35.18 17.73
| Tier 11 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) (.00 .05 292
Gross Debit: Equity Ratio of the Company:
Before the issue of debt securities 1.24
After the issue of debt securities 1.27

{d)

the Issuer as it is an NBIC engaged in the business of onward lending.

Projeet cost and means of financing, in case of Tunding new projects: Not Applicable in case of

Brief history of Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its following activities:

(a)

Details of Share Capital as on last quarier end, Le,, 30,06.2020

‘Share Capital

| Authorised

Rs.

| Equity share capital

DS, D000

Preference share capital

65.06,90,226

[ TOTAL

7H.56.90,226




Lsued, Subscribed and Fully Paid- up

Equity share capital 9.62,16,710.00
_Preference Shares 66,90,77,603.04

TOTAL 76,52,94,313.04

(k) Changes in its capital structure as on last quarter end i.e., 30.06.2020 for the last five years:

Changes in its capital structure Change in Authorised Share Capilal
as on last guarter end i.e. June (Equity and Preference) (Rs.) Particulars
- 30, 2020:
Date of Change (AGM/ . - Change in
i EGM). B¥isting Bivised eupital (Rs.)
AGM —23/09/2016 10.00,00,000/- 15.00.00,000/- 5,00,00,000/-
EGM — 18/11/2018 15.,00,00,000/- 65.23,85,666/- 50,23,85,666/-
EGM — 16/09/2019 65,23,85,666/- 78,56,90,226/- 13,33,04,560/-

(¢ Equity Share Capital History of the Company as on last quarter end i.e. 30.06.2020 for the
nst five years:

24f | 1 .

, Seed Private i

0 ventar | 100 | 10 | 78025 | cash | Placem | 2800 | 96001 | 6105

| I 00 | 000

6 es ent

Fund |
NHPL NIL

28/ .

| A B | — Private | gc 0o o600, | ... .

a1 | Rime [ 10 [ 10 | 22541 Cash | Placem | 7 | o0 | 215400

8 Haoldin ent

LBV

01/ | Aditva | 10 | 1D , Bieia 454020 | NIL
10/ | (Mauri 464.02 96,00, | 9.60,01,

201 | tius) Cash P'“‘f“‘ 120 | 200
9 | L =

01/ | Prakas | 21,5 | 10 privare | 2021 [ 962,16, | 97845 NIL
10/ h 51 464.02 ) €1 &7 710 83.02

201 | Chand Clash Placem

o | Jais o

3&




Potes (if any); NIL

(€ Details of any Acquisition or Amalgamation in the Iast 1 {one) year: N.A
(c Details of any Reorganization or Reconstroction in the last 1 (one) year: N.A
5.4 Details of the shareholding of the Company #s on the Intest quarter end

(&) Sharcholding pattern of the Company as on last quarter end, i.e. 30.06.2020 on fully diluted

basis:

;:. Investor/Particulars -FT:: :K;‘_I}“ :li?}';::ﬂ:} -:!::a':z tn]:]}i?llldl;:[;

L shares: fully diluted basis
1 Arun Kogta 10 1058701 3.73% Ta1000
| 2 Radha Krishan kKopta 10 729500 2.57% T29500
3 Varun Kogtla ] 894701 3.15% 627000
4 Nayan Kogta 10 834701 2.94% 567000
—; N Banwari Lal Kogta 14 54‘-1'-[](1(]_ 1.93%% 549000
] Bal Mukund Kogta 10 | 322000 4. 60% | iSEQ{}[}
7 Durga Devi Kogla | 345500 1.23% 349500
FH Madhu Keogta LG 291000 1.38% %1000
g Manju Kogla 10 199000 0.70% 1994000
;] Aavush Kopla i) | 239000 0.84% 239000
I_E | Meha Su-ryapralmsh Kalya 1 172000 . 0.61% 172000
_I: Banwari Lal Kogta HUF 1 574500 _ 2.02% 574500
13 Varun Kopta UK 10 304500 1.07% 304500
14 Arun Kogta HUF 14 521300 1.B4% 521500
I 5 Prem L.al Kogta HUF 10 d2GEHHD 1.50% 426000
L Bal Mukund Kopta HUF 11 00000 141% 00000

B




17 | Radha Kishan Kogta HUF 0 454500 1.60% 454500
| 18 Nidhi Kogta 10 580000 2.04% 580000
19 Ritu Kogta 10 403000 1.42% 403000
| " —" 19.79% 5614644
) | NHPRA IO HEE 10 6684284 23.56% 6684284
[ » Aditya (Mauritins ) Litd. 10 4849618 17.09% 4849614
[ 33 | Prakesh Cliand Jain 10 21551 0.08% 21551
e ESOP Pool 10 803103 2.83% I
B Total 28376303 100,00%

Notes: - Shiares pledeed or encumbered by the promoters (ifany): None

(b List of top 10 holders of equity sharcs of the Company as on the latest guarter end, i.c
30 Dﬁ 2(]21}'

U | Bt uiand Kngta 10 1322000 13.740% 1322000
2 | Arun Kogta 10 791000 8.221% 791000
3 | Radha Krishan Kogta 10 29500 7.582% 729500
4 | varun Kogia 10 627000 6.517% 627000
5| Nidhi Kogta 10 580000 6.028% SEO000
, 6 | Banwari Lal Kogta HUF 10 574500 5.971% 574500
T | Nayan Kogta 10 567000 5.893% 567000
8 Banwari Lal Kogta 10 549004 5.706% 549000
Y | Arun Kogta HUF 10 521500 5.420% 521500
10| Radha Kishan Kogta HUF 10 454500 4.724% 454500

5.7 Following details regarding the directors of the Company™:

{a) Details of the eurrent directors of the Company:

This table sets oul the details reparding the Company’s Board of Directors as on date of the Information

Memarandum:
8, | Name of Deﬂs:;, A | Addre | DIN | PAN | Occupat mguigr of pir;& orin other:
No. | the ‘matio ['ee’| s Ton | et || t’:ump‘any-
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Noge: Comparnye to disclose menne af the curvent divectors who are appearing in the RBI defaulter list

exnedlon BCGC defiudt Tist, ifampe: NLL

(k) Details of change in directors since lust three years:
S T P o E EEE of | Date of Resignatior
e Lgﬂﬂigh1 ol Fﬂemgila?hhn ; Drllh‘ 1 tme; |th'-]+!" in cas e:ﬁw
i L=t P !'n: | d "_.'" 2 s ] Il tﬂll- (& |
PR Kalyanaraman |I‘Idf_"pﬂ1d[‘.-]‘l1. 01993027 O8O32017
il _ Director
Ram Daval Modi ’“‘é‘fpc“d“”‘ 03047117 | 16/06/2014 22/09/2018 NIL
Hrector
Nayan Kogta Wg‘:"“’ me | 65268855 | 31/032012 17/01/2019 NIL
L irector
Atjun Sajgal Té‘?m'“““‘ 07556188 | 28/11/2018 NIA NIL
irector
Bhama Independent -
_ Kiishigiuitny el (02196839 | 22/12/2018 06/082019 NIL
Kumar Sharadindu [“ff‘f? endent | oagi4s55 | 08/082019 N/A NIL
b Jirector
44 ‘ /.-. ;’-r__ *_\_
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! o - Maon- -
Robin Bhanwarlal | g orutive | 08572806 | 01/10/2019 N/A NIL
Agarwal o |
Director
Shashikala Independent ;
_ Ramachandra Ditector 08087460 F2/1 202019 WNSA ) ‘ _ T\EL_‘
5.4 Following details regarding the auditors of the Company:
i) Details of the auditor of the Company:
Name Address Auditor since | Remark
8.R: Batliboi & CO., LLP | 12" Floor, The Ruby, 29 Senapati Bapal 250082017 | NAL
Marg, Dadar (West), Mumbai — 400028
(h) Details of chanpe in suditors since last three vears:
Nanie Address Date of Auditor since (in Remark
appointment! | ease of resignation)
| Resignation |
MR K | Inside Ajmeri gate, Opp. Dale of 20/01/1996 Resignation
Osatwal Banshi Bhanwan, appointment: (Appointment ferm
& Co, Beawar, Rajasthan — 20001/1996 completed in
305901 Date of accordance with the
resignation: Companies Act, 2013)
i 240082017
Ms SR, 14" Floor, The Ruby, Diate of ™A WA
BATLIB 2%, Senapati Bapat appointment:
O & Ca, Muarg, Dadar {West), 250842017
1P Mumbai- 400028
{Maharashtra)
59 Details of borrowings of the Company, as on latest quarter end 30.06.2020
(a} Details of Secured Loan Facilities (as on 30.06.2020%:
Rs. In Crores
Principal Security
Cumulatiy Amount
: i ; cAmount | Ouistandin | Repaymeni : ]
LERCEL:S FFP,E.F'[' Sunetioned £ #5 0n Date/Schedu) | Primary Security l‘ernl:cutag
Name Facility (R, Tala i (book debt ¢ of Cash
Cro re) 2020 {Rs‘. hypothecation) Collateral
Crore)
SIDRI e 45 45 Mangily | TYEOtecaonen | g
loan Receivables
DCB Bank . Manthly Hypothecation an
i ; i ; 1.
Limited N W o [nterest Receivables il
Catholic ; Hypothecation on
Syrian Bank S & i My Receivables i
State Bank of [ Term 2.5 1292 Bullat Hypothesation on NIL
45 LA




India lain Repayiment Receivables
Biaj Finance | Term . [ypothecation on
| Limited-2 loan ¥ i Vi Receivables T
HOFC Bank Term Hypotheeation on
Limited loin 25 237 Manthly Receivables ML
1IDFC Bank Cash (o 0 Repayahle on | Hypothecation on NIL
Limited Credit demand Receivables
SBI-0D Owerdral 47 29 Repayable on | Secured over Fixed ML
== L demand Deposits
Unifi NCD | NCD 27 10.33 Monthly | TYPothecationon { - hpy
HReceivables
DCB Bank | & 10 8.61 Monthly i NIL
LS L.ovan Heceivables
Survoday E
Small e 10 7.92 Monthly | Ppothecationon |
24 3 Loan Receivables
| Finance Bank
sundaram .
Finaoa Term 15 13.9] Manihly I—]}|mtlufca1|m1 on NIL
TR Loan Receivahles
| Limited T1.-5
State Bank of | Term : Hypothecalion on
India lL.oan i i Moy Reeoivables Nt
IDFC First Term Hypothecation on
Bank Limited |  Loan i R oty Receivables Ridls
IDFC First Cash 10 0 Quarterly Hypothecation on NIL
Bank Limited |  Credit Interest Receivables :
Federal Bank Term - Hypothecation on ;
Lid. Loan W &1 Moty Receivables b
RBI. Bank Term Hypothecation on
Ltd. Loan N i AR Receivables 2l
Nabikisan Term Hypotheeati
Finance 5 235 Cuarterly L Mil
it a L.oan Receivables
Limited
Hinduja
L’:’!}-‘[ﬂl]d Term 10 6.67 Moty Hypﬂlnc_catmn on Nil
Finance Loan . Receivables
Limited PCE
NG T Hypotheeation o
hi Finance <k 10 8.33 Quarterly vl O Mil
Pl Loan Receivables
Limiled
Al Small Te Eisatlisaatiin
Finance Bank | ;;::: 16 HLGT Muanthly ¥ E‘;E;:’:IZ:;::" o Mil
Limited TL-7 & =
Uijivan : P
Small e 20 12 Monthly I ]}f]jmmfwmm_ . Nil
0 : Loan Receivables
Finance Bank
City Union Term : - Hypothecation on ;
Hanlk Loan h i Quetery Reeeivables Nl
Utkarsh Term Hy pothecation on "
| Small Loan 10 oL Mcahly Reegivables Nl
a6 X g
||I _- '_f' "-‘I b I'I.I
Gl )E)
I‘\" .\\.‘—r’/’ =y
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IFhance RBank

S

47

&

Biiaj Finance Term B [ypathecation on
_.___i:1!tnilcd Loan 13 8.5 Manthly ’ Illecuivz:b[es NIL
Vivriti
Capital Term Hypothecation on
["riﬁ“ﬂlﬂ Livan 25 7.1 Morithly yﬁuw::[vuhiuﬁ WIL,
| Limited
Tata Capital
Financial Terim Hypothecation on
Services Loan iy L Mothly yg{cc:::iwlb]us L
| T.imited TL-3
Fedfina
senow) Term Hypaotheeation on
serviees i 6.5 4,53 Monthly Recaivikias MIL
dmited TL-
&
st Term Hypothecation on
Bank Lid, 10 7.55 Monthly Fpemes NIL
TLea |.oan Receivables
L) Gro Term Hypotheeation cn .
Capital [Loviam 5 3.4 Monthiy ] :{Cuui\fﬂhlcﬁ HIL
Fi::;hrjncg:tg:rk Owverdral (7.5 1.87 Repayable on | Secured over Fixed NIL
Limitted t demand Deposits
Volkswagen
Finarice Term Hypothecation on
Privale Loan T i Menthly [ Fﬁecehfal}lcs Bl
Limited
PANEpparam Term [ypothecation on
Finance t. 10 6.43 Manthly g NIL
e L0 Receivables
Limited-2
AU Small Term Iy pothecation «n
Finance Bank ficin 20 0.67 Monthly ¥ Euccivah[us MNIL
Limited TL-6 -
Sundaram .
Finance T;'_::: 10 .82 Monthly II"E‘;S‘;z:‘L:&“S h NIL
Limited TL-4 Y
Fedlina
(raiancial Term Hypaothecation on
services Loan 10 A2 Monthly ’ Ir?lm ceivables NIL
Limited
Al Capital
Finance Term Hypotheeation on
Mrivate Loan 15 A Qeatieiy y]&eucivahlcs L
Limited
Hinduja
Levland Term ot I Ivpothecation on
Finance L.oan 1 341 iginhly . Eccﬁivahlﬂs ML
Limited TL-5
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“Iata Capital
[Minancial Term " L& Monthl Hypothecation on NIL
Services Laown . e LY Receivihles
Limited TL-2
"lata Capital
Financial L Bullet Hypothecation on
Sepvices VR ? 7 ILepayment Receivables Btk
| Limited
Hinduja
Leyland Term Hypothecation on
Finance Loan 20 = Mustily Receivables ML
Limited TL-4
ALl Small Tey Hissthesat
Finance Bank 5 20 2.67 Mornthly apHisEa Lan NIL
Bityilke Loan Receivables
imited<5
Pooled Minoilissat
Magma PLI | Loan 15 3.78 Monthly FROFIRRE 2R O NIL
Sa Reccivaliles
Issuance
[ndusind Term Hypothecation an
RBank Ltd, Lpan i 4+ AR Receivables s
; Term o Hypothecation on :
e L : 2 . ;
Hero Fincorp o 3 1.27 Manthly Recaivables FAl
South Indian Term Ly pothecation on
Tk - T A Quarterly Recpivables 1%
Manappuram . \ .
Finance EET: 10 2.5 Quarterly : IFE‘{‘!‘??EFP_ = NIL
Limited I cecivables
SUigpan Term Hypothecali
Finance LL” 1 .61 Monthly !'Eﬁ‘“f rt:'[;}fllﬂn NIL
Limited 113 | %" EORLPRL
Au Small :
Biiicn Rilk lef 10 0.48 Repayable on I—]yputht:n.almn on NIL
i Credit demand Receivables
Limited
Slate Bank of Cash Repavabie on | Hypotheeation on
India Credit 25 1%e3 demand Recoivables ML
{  Details of Unsecured Loan Faeilities (as on 30,06.2020);
) T o B Amount | Principal Amount il
Lehder™s Nane LPeOl | Sanctioned’ | Outstanding (Rs. in Df;lg.gfﬂg:}h
C | PEEEEY ] (Rein crore) crore) i
Morlhern Arc NCD Senior 15.00 [5.00 Caarterly Interest
| Investments Lid. Deht
Northern Are Capital | Term Loan 25.00 16.83 Monthly
_ Limited TL-10
Sundaram Short Term MCL 2500 4.449 Maonthly
_ Credit Risk Fund
Morthern Are Capital Term Loan 20,00 .82 Muonthly
Limited-9 B |
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(< Details of Non-Convertible Debentures: (as on 30.06.2020):

s

| Coupo Rede >
Debenture ]Tj::'l; ={R:|t Jssued | o ot Credit SELTM B I
e | (DT B Amount | el el Bpts e Security’
series ; of f allotment | Date/ | Rating | Unsecnr i
Mitur It (n-Bs) s :
ity nteres Sche ed
i i) dule
Unsecured and
Sundaram a5 17 Collateral Security
Short Term M - i | 11259 25.00,00 [ 101 - {}-1: AA by | Unsecur (registered
Credit Risk | o0 [T o004 2019 o | ICRA ed mortgage over
5 2022 .
[Fund immaveable
properiy)
Unsecured and
]"-IIE:MT::L i3 15 Collateral Security
i ferm Menth | 15,000 | 150600 | 22-08- | 5 A-by | Unsecur (registered
£ ' A ho0s- 2019 ~ | cArE ed mortgage over
multi asset & 2022 T i
xR immaoveahle
- e property)
i i Hypothecation on
UNIFL AIF 36 - 27- A- Receivables and
& CSB 29,0000 | 28-01- Stable ;
s Month | 12.36% 0i- Secured | registered morlgage
Bank - L0/ 2020 202 by ; Bie
[ initad 5 123 CARE ‘oyer immaveable
: : property
A First Ranking
Exclusive Charge
Over The
15 al - Hypothecated
CBH Bank " FO 00, O 01-06- % Stable ; Assets Shall AL All
Limitag | MO0t | 1079% | oo 2020 2%2“3 by | SRR | s Re at Least
. CARE .15 Times The
Value OFf The
Outstending
1 Amouni

() List of Top 10 Debenture Holder(s) (ns on 25.08.2020):

TN{:,-. Niame pf Debenture Holders Amount (Rs: in Crores)
| IFME Flovpact Long Term Multi Asset Class Fund s
2 Linifi AIF & CSHE Bank Limited i)
3 DEH Bank Limited 1]
4 Punjab & Sind Bank 15
5 Stante Bank ol India &)
i Bank of Maharashtra 25 |
ie) The amount of corporate guarantee issued by the Isswer along with the name of the

counlerparty (like name of the subsidiary, JV culily, group company, ete.) on behalf of whom
il has been issued. (if any); NIL
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(f] Details of Commercial Paper: the total face value of commereinl papers outstanding as on the
latest quarter end e 30.06.2020 - NIL

(g Details of rest of the borrowing (if any including hybrid debt like FCCB, Optionally
Canvertible Debentures ! Preference Shares) as on 30.06.2020: NIL

(h Details of all default/s and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of term
loans, debt securities and other financial indebtedness including corporate guarantec issued
by the Isguer, in the past § years: NIL

(1] Details of any outstanding borrowings taken [ debt securities issued where taken [ issued (i)
for consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (i) at a premium or discount, or
(iii) in pursuance of an oplion: NLL

5.0  Details of Promoters of the Company

(al Details of Promoter Holding in Company as on latest quarter end, i.e., 3.06.20240:
S [Name  of  ihe|Total No o of | No.of sharesiin | Towl Yo o
No. | shareholders ‘Equity shares. | Dematforn | sharehiold shares
i I 1
1l | RIS L
: L a1 S Aliia Al ek owned
| Arun Kogta 791000 791000 8.221% = =
2 Radha Krishan Kopta | 729500 729500 7.582% £ -
3 Warun Kogia 627000 627000 6,51 7% 2 =
4 NavankKogla 567000 SGT000 5.893% - -
% Banwari Lal Kogta 549000 549000 5.706% - -
& Bal Mukund Kopla 1322000 1322000 L3 740% - -
T Durga Devi Kogta 349500 349500 3.632% = =
8 Madhu Kogta 391400 391000 4,064% - g
| 9 Manju Kogta 1594000 199000 2.068% - -
10 Aayush Kowota 239000 239000 2.484% - -
11 Meha Suryaprakash | 172000 [ 72000 1. 7T88% . -
| | Kalya |
12 Banwari  Lal  Kopta | 574500 574500 5.971% . -
HUF
X Varun Kogta HUF 3D4500 304500 3.165% = -
14 Arun Kogla HUF 521500 521500 5420% - -
15 [ Prem Lal Kogta HUF 426000 426000 4.428% ¥ =
16 Bal Mukund Kogla | 400000 400000 4.157% - -
HUF
17 | Radha Kishan Kogea | 454500 454500 4.724% -
HLI
50 By

#

()
ey

—

|

|
4
!




'8 | Nidhi Kogta 580000 SE0000 [ 6.028% - -

9 Hitu Kogta 403000 403000 4. 188% - -

SA1 Abridged version of the Andited Consolidated and Standalone Financial Information (like
Profit and Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) for at least last three
yeurs and auditor qualilications, il any. (Amount in Rs,}

e —

N il 11 032018 31.03:2019 31.03.2020
SNt d Loy phatem SHCINE) Audited Audited Audited
Interest ncome §2,75.53,612 82,43,11,495 1,587,931 .705
| _Less: Interest Expenses 27,57,73,134 417549521 675,855,044
_Tigt Interese Ineome: ZSTB0ATR [ AleTe2 00 BI2035.701
Other [necome 13,13,37.022 23 38, 72.068 105863335.7
| Total Income 3BA1.17.5000 64,06,34.242 1,017,899,007
Operating Expenses 22.71,10.6856 41,13.82,121 601385818
| Provisions & Write Offs 3,14,33,202 4.65.17.924 19,876,143
COperating Profit 124573012 182734197 366637136
Depreciation 74453319 1,39.98,537 42073394
Profit Before Tax |12 RS 16.87,35,660, L3208 5635043
Provisions for tax 3,38,59,783 561,291,446 T5163653.22
{:g;ur Comprehensive Income (As per IND 1,169,602
j_-’rn fit- After Tux 8,32,68.49 11,25.44.214 248,230,486
Eﬂlancc Sheet (INR) W= 31.032018 310320149 31032020
Equity capital ~13,44,01,000 63,57.74,143 765,294,313
| Reserve & Surplus 547418 824 1,65,95,02,959 4,721,790,973
THW( A) G818, 19,824 2,29,52,77,102 5,487,085,286
Total Mon-Current Liahilities 1,57.00.48.762 1,77,00,80,308
Current Lizhilitiest Provisions .65, 76,558,078 2.50,78,82,048
Toetal Financial Liabilities* 4,978, 988,767
'T'utsﬂl _ Nmti-'iuuuuiill Lighilities  including 97.285.047
IJI'U‘I"JSIU!IE
Tatal Outside Liabilities { B ) 3,22 77.06,840 4,33,79,62.356 7076273815
Total Liabilities (A + RB) 3.90,95.26,664 6.63,32,39,458 12,563,359,101
Fixed assels (Met) 236,22 449 431,060,474 63,974,391
[nvestiments 3,.81,33.361 16.41,08,221 )
| Gross Advances 3489391417 5.48.34,54,181 0,974,280, 788
Less ¢ Loan Loss Reserve 2.57.05,581 4.66,27,756 =168, 744,286
Met Laan Ctstanding 3,46,36,85,836 5,43,68,26,425 9 805,545,502
| Cash / Liguid [nvestments 14,31,20,204 11.49.67.647 2,042 301,269
Other Financial assets® |G, 88,318,662 77.07.14.290 330,853,751
Deferred Tax Assets 35,32.710 AT.6H R0 S2.771,.334
Intangible Assets 40 28,373 057,756 1,969,007
Right of use Assels® B7.512.311
Other Non-financial Assers® G,36,65,000 0.26.89,782 172,430,640
Total Asscis 3.90,95,26,664 6,63,32,39. 458 12,563,359,101
5 | S 7l
.a- e 11|
e )e)
\ . )l'




*As per IND AS, concept of Current & Mon-Current is not there, there is new criteria of bifurcation of
Assets and Liabilities that is Financial & Non-Financial Assets or Liabilities,
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KOGTA FINANCIAL (INDIA) LIMITED

Canh finw statorments [or the. ynrlndnn March 31, 2018
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REGLA IMARLIALGREIA Y LINTED
LrEh Hee Atatamanis for the year anded Mugeh 31, 2000
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Nofe: As per the SEBT Debi Listing Reguletions, the audited financial inforiation for the previos three
wears are disclosed,

512

Abridged version of Latest Audited/ Limited Review Hall Yearly Consolidated and

Standalone Financial Information (like Profit & Loss statement, and Balance Sheet) and
auditors’ qualifications, if any:

The Issuer shall provide latest Audited or Limited Review Financials in line with timelines as
mentioned in  Simplified  Listing  Agrecment  ssued by  SEBL vide circular  Ne.
SEBIIMD/BOND/ 17200971 1/05 dated May 11, 2009 as winended or restated from time 1o time, for
Furnishing / publishing its hall vearlyd annual result,

: . : ; ; . S3103.2020,
Profit and Lpss Statement (LINR) Andlied
Interest Income 158793170500
. __."}_-_'f. 5
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Less: Interest Expenses 675895944.00
MNet Interest Indome G1203570 100
Ciher Income 105863335.65
Total Income 1017898097
Operating Expenses 601,385,818
Provisions & Write Offs 44 876,143
Operating Profil 366,637,136
Depreciation 4,20,73,304
Profit Before Tax 3472 563,742
Provisions forfax 75,163,653
 Other Comprehensive Income (IND AS) (1,169,602)
Profit After Tax 248,230,486
Balance Sheet (INR) JLozzozo0
Equity eapital 765,294,313
Reserve & Surplus 4,721,790.973
THW {A) 5487085286
Tatal Financial Lighilitics 697RI88TGT
Total Non-Financial Liabilities including provisions 9728504711
Total Outside Liabilities { B ) 7.076,273.815
Total Liabilitics { A+ B) 12,563,359,101
Fixed assets (Net) 63,974,391
Investments -
Gross Advances 0,974,289, 788
Less : Loan Loss Reserve (ECL Provision as per IND AS) {168,744,286)
MNet Loan Quistanding 0.805,545,502
Cash / Liguid lnvestments 2.042,301,269
Other Financial assets 330,853,751
Deterred Tax Assels 52971334
Intangible Assels 7,969,907
Right of use assets 57,512,311
Other Non-financial Assels 172,430,640
Total Assets 12,563,359,101

Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financialsferedit
quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, tax litigations
resulting in material liabilities, corporatle restructuring event cte.) at the time of 1ssue which
may affeet the Issue or the investor’s decision to invest / continue to invest in the debi
securities.

The Issuer hereby declares that there has been no material event, development or change at the
time of issue from the position as on the date of the last audited financial statements of the Issuer,
which may affect the lssue or the Investor's decision to invest! eontinue to invest in the debl
securities of the [ssuer,

Mames of the Debentures Trustees shall be mentioned with stalement (o the ellect that
debenture trustee(s) has given his consent to the Issuer for his appointment under regulation

5N



516

517

5.18

4 {(4) and in all the subsequent periodical communications scut Lo the holders of debt
securitics.

The Debenture Trustee of the proposed Debentures is Catalyst Trusteeship Limited. Calalyst
Trusteeship Limited has given its written consent for its appointment as debenture trusiee to the
Issue and inclusion of its name in the form and context in which it appears in this Information
Memorandum and in all the subsequent periodical communications sent 1o the Debenture Halders.
The consent letter from Debenture Trustee is provided in Anmexure IT of this Information
Memorandum.

The detailed Rating Rationale(s) adopted (not older than one year on the date of opening of
the Issuc)! credit rating letler issued (not older than one month on the date of opening of the
Izssuc) by the rating apencies.

The rating letter [rom the Rating Agency is provided in Annexure L.

IT the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document / letler
with similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In ease such document docs not
contain detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and receipt of

payment by the investor along with timelines), the same shall be disclosed in the offer
document.

(a) The Debentures are proposed (o be goarantesd by the Guarantor by way of the GOI
Guarantee, The GOl Guarantee will be issued in accordance with Rule 280 of the General
Financial Rules as published by the Ministry of Finance (Department of Expenditure),
Government of India from time to time (hereinafier referred to as "GFR") within the
timelines that are agreed between the Guarantor and the Debenture Holders, in accordance
with the terms of GOI Guidelines and other Applicable Law,

(b) The GOI Guarantee may be inveked by the Debenture Holders upon occurrence of the any
event for invocation sel oul under the GO Guidelines (including the inability of the Issuer
to repay/pay any parl of the Outstanding Amounts in respect of the Debentures) in
accordance with the procedure set out in the GO Guidelines.

(¢} Subject 1o the terms of the GOI Guldelines, the GOl Guarantee is a conlinuing suarantes
and may be reviewed o an annual basis inaccordance with Rule 281 of the GFR.

() Any claims under the GOl Guarantee and/or other reporting requirements in respeel ol the
GO Guarantee will be done in accordance with the GO Guidelines,
Copy of consent letter fromi the Debenture Trustee shall be disclosed.

The consent letter from Déebenture Trustes is provided in Annexure IT of this Information
Memorandum,

Numes of all the recognized stoek exchanges where the debt seeurities are proposed to be
listed:

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of the BSE within 20 davs from
the Deemed Date of Allotment. The Issuer shall comply with the requirements of the listing

a4
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5.20

agrecment lor debl securities 1o the extent applicabie to it on a continuous basis.
Other details:
Debenture Redemption Reserve (“DRRE") Creation:

iy As per Rule 18(7)bYIvIAY of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014, DRR is not required to be created for issue of privately placed debentures by Nan-
Bunking Finance Companies registered with Reserve Bank of India under Section 45 1A of
the RBI Act, 1934,

(i) The Company also undertakes that, if required under Applicable Law, it will ereale DRR
in accordance with the provisions of the Act (and the rules and repulations made
thereunder) and the puidelines issued by the relevant Governmental Authorities. In
addition to the foregoing, to the extent required by Applicable Law, the Company shall
invest or deposit amounts up Lo =uch thresholds, and in such form and manner and within
the time periods, as may be preseribed by Applicable Law, in respect of any amounts of
the Debentures maturing in any Financial Year,

Issuc / instrument specific regulations:

The [ssue of Debentures shall be in conformity with, fnter alia, the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act including the relevant notified rules thereunder, the SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations, the LODR Reguolations, and the applicable puidelines, notifications, circulars and
directions issued by the RBI and SEBI in respect of private placement of listed debt securities by
NBFCs.

Application process:

The application process for the Issue is as provided in Section 7 of this Information Memorandum.

A statement containing particulars of the dates of, and parties to all material contracts,
agreements:

The eontracts and documents referred Lo hereunder are material to the Issue, may be inspected at
the Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 am to 4,00 pm on Business Days.

S,' Natureof Contract

Nao,

I | Certified true copy of the Memorandum & Aricles of Association of the [ssuer,
Certified true copies of the shareholders' resolutions pussed by the Company at the

5 Annual General Meeting held on August 27, 2018 authorizing the Company to barrow,

upon such terms as the Board may think fit, up to an aggregate limit of INR
20,00,00,00,000/ {Indian Rupees Two Thousand Crore only)

Certified true copy of the board resolution dated January 29, 2020 authorising the

3 Company to issue non-convertible debt securities in one or more tranches up to an
cageregate limit of INK S5,00,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Hundred Crare only)
1 Certilied true copy of the board resolution dated July 10, 2020 and Certified true copy

of the Loan & Investment Commitiee resolution dated August 26, 2020

]

Coepies of Annual Reporis of the Company for the last 3 (three) financial years,

) =
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7 Letter from Catalvst Trusteeship Limited dated August 26, 2020 giving ils consent 1o
acl as Debenture Trustee.

B

g

Letter for Register and Transfer Apent,
Certified true copy of the certificate of incorporation of the Campany.

10 Certified true copy of the tripartite agreament between the Company, the Registrar &
Transler Agent and the NSDL.
Certified true copy of the tripartite agreement between the Company, the Registrar &
8 L 4
Transfer Apgent and the CDSL.
12 Copy of application made to BSE for grant of in-prineiple approval {or listing of
Debenlures.

511 Details of Debt Securities Sought to be Issued

Uhder 1he purview of the curremt document, the Issuer intends o raise an amount of INR 30,00,00,000
(Iidian Rupees Thirty Crore) by issue of Rated, Secured, Senior, Redeemable, Taxable, Transferable,
Listed, Non-Convertible Debentures, on a private placement basis, For further details of the Debentures,
please refer to the terms and conditions of the debentures set out Section 5.22 of this Information
Memorandum.

512 Issue Details

B L SUMMARY TABTRT S SR
S.No. Particulars Details
L} 1. Security Name | 9.50% KFIL 2022
% Issuer or Kogta Financial (India) Limited
. Company
X Type of 300 (Three lLwodred) rated, secured. senior, redeemable, laxable,
Instrument trans(erable, listed, non-convertible debentures denominated in TNR
each having a face value of INR 10,00,000 {Indian Rupees Ten lakhs)
ageregating to a face value of INR 30,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty
Crore) at par, in dematerialized form on a private placement basis.
4. Nature of Secured
Instrument
5 Seniority | Senior
6. Ranking Cach Debenture issued by the Issuer will constitute direct and secured
abligations of the Issuer. The claims of the Debenture Holders shall be
superior te the claims of investors / lenders of Tier | & Tier 11 Capital
and all unsecured & subordinated debt and shall rank paripassu to all
senior, secured indebledness of the lssuer,
Each of the Debenture Holders shall inter-se runk paripassu in relation
te their rights and benefits in relation to the Debentures, without any
preference or privilege,
Mode of Issue | Privaite Placement Demiaterialized
5. Eligible Please refer to the definition of "Eligible Investors" provided in Section
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Investors | abowe,
2, Listing
including name ) :
Ei'sLqu: - Debentures are to be listed on the WDM of the BSE within a maximum
Exchange(e) period of 20 catendar days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.
where it will be
listed and
timeline Tor
listing})
10, Rating of the A=, Stable (Single A Minus; Outlook: Stable) by CARE Ratings Limited
Instrument
1L Issue Size s, 30,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty Crore only)
12 Option to retain | NLA.
oversubseription
- (Amount})
3. Objects of the Ta raise funds up 1o MR 30,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty Crorg).
Issue
The Debentures are being issued by the Issuer with a view to raising
debt for the purpozes of general corporate purposes and for untilization
in the ordinary course of business of the Issuer including repayment/ie-
- financing of existing debt
14, Details of the The proceeds of the [ssuance will be utilized for the following purposes:
utilization of the s General corporate purposes
Proceeds e for the ordinary ceurse of business of the Issuer including
repaymentfre-linancing of existing debt
The Issuer undertakes that no part of the monies received from the
subscription of the Debentures shall be utilized by the Issuer
directly or indirectly towards (A) any capilal market instrument
such as equity, debt, debt linked, and equity linked instruments or
any other capital market related activities: or (B) any speculative
purposes; or (C) investment in the real estate sector; ar (D) any
activity on the Exelusion List.
The Issuer shall be entitled to temporarily invest the funds raised
by the lssue in liquid mutual funds and deposits held with
scheduled commercial banks for a period not exceeding 90
(ninety) calenduar days [rom the Deemed Date of Allotment.
The proceeds of the NCDS will not be used For any purpose, which may
be in contravention of the Government / BBL S SEBL S Other regulatory
puidelines,
15, Coupon Rate 8.50% p.a.
16. Coupon As provided in the Apnexure T (Repayment Schedule) atlached
Payment hcreto.
Frequency
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Coupon
Payment
Drates/Interest
Payment Dates

s provided in the Annexure T {Repavmeant Schedule) attached
hereto,

18 Coupon Type Fixed Rate
1% Coupon Resel MNAL
Process
{including rates,
spread, effective
date, interest rale
cap and floor
ele)
20, Day Count Basis | Actual/Actual
21, Interest an Interest at the rate of 15.00% p.a. (subjeet to dedoction of lax at source
Application al the rale prevailing from time to time under the provisions of the
Money Income Tax Act, 1961) will be paid on Application Money 1o the
Applicants from the date of realization of the cheques / drafts or credit
through RTGS f NEFT ¢ direct eredit upto one day prior to the Deemed
Date of Allotment. This is applicable for all valid applications within 5
{five) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. Where the
entire subscription amount has  been refunded, the inferest on
Application Money will be paid along with the refund orders or through
RTGE ¢ NEFT / direct credit to the bank secount of the Applicant as
deseribed in the Applieation Form.
22, Defuull Interest

Rate

e Security Creation: If the Company fails to execute the Debenture
Trust Deed within 30 days of the issue closure, the Company shall
pay penal interest at the rate of 2.00% p.a. over the Coupon Rate till
these conditions are complicd with or refund the subscription (ie
redemption at par) along with other monies/accrued interesl due in
respect thereof, at the option of the Bondholders;

«  Default in Payment: In case of default in payment of interest and/ or
principal redemption on the due dates, the Company shall pay
additional interest at the rate of 2,00% p.a. over the Coupon Rate for
the defaulting period i.e. the period commencing from and including
the date on which such amount becomes due and upto but excluding
the date on which such amount s actually paid.

e Delay In Listing: The Company shall make listing application to
BSE and! or NSE within 15 days from the Decned Date of
Allotment of the Bonds and oblain listing permission within 20
calendar days from the Deemed Date of Allotmenl of Bonds, ln case
of delay in listing of the Bonds beyond 20 calendar days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment, the Company shall pay penal inlerest at
the rate of 1% poa. over the Coupon Rate from the expiry of 20 days
fram the Deemed Date of Allotment 61l the listing of Bonds (o the
Bondholder(s).

The interest rates mentioned in ghove covenants shall be independent of
cach other,
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In case any of the “Covenants™ is breached and continues breached fora
period of 30 days from such breach coming to notice, the Primary
Hondholder would reserve the right to recall the outstanding principal
amount on the NCDs (ie. redemption at par) along with other
moniesfacerued interest due in respest thereof.

Application size

o ]l::p:rmz::: o The Issuer shall not redeem (or prematurely redeem) the Debentures in
]"nni-:lt}; any manner other than in accordance with the terms of the Transaction
Documents,
24. Tenor & months from the Deemed Date of Allotment (in such & manner that
_ the Redemption Date is March 03,.2022).
25. Maturity Dated | March 03, 2022
Redemption
|_ Date
26. Principal As pravided in the Annexure I {Repayment Schedule) attached
repayment hereta,
frequency
27, Redemption Rs. 30,00,00,000~ (Indian Rupees Thirty Crore)
Amount
28. Redemption MNone
Premium /
Discount
29, Issue Price Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten lakhs) per Debenture
3. Disconnt xi WA
which security is
issued and the
effective yvield as
a result of such
discount
3L Put Option MNA
32, Put gption date | N.A
33, Put option price | N.A
34, Put notification | N.A
- time
35, Call Option LA
3.  Call option date | N.A
37. Call option price | N.A
8. Call notification | N.A
time
a9, Face Value Rs. 10,00.000/~ {Indian Rupees Ten Lakhs) per Debenture,
4. Minimum Minimum 300 (Three Hundred) Debentures of INR 10,00,000 {Indian

Fupees Ten lakh) each, aggregating to INR 30,00,00,000 (Indian

il




and in multiples
of Debt

Rupees Thirty Crore)

securities
thereafter

41. Issue Opening September 02, 2020 from 10,00 AM,
Date

41, Issne Closing September 02, 2020 till 03,00 P.M,

Date

43, Pay-in Dafe September 03, 2020
44, Deemed Date of | September 03, 2020
Allotment
45, Issuance mode Demat anly
of the
Instrument
46, Trading mode of | Demat only
the lnstrument
47, Settlement mode | The pay-in of the Application Money for the Debentures shall be made
of the by way of transfer of funds from the bank account(s) of the Eligible
Instruoment Investors {whiose bids have been accepted) as registered with the
Electronie Book Provider into the account of the 1CC1., details of which
are set out in this Information Memorandum,
48. Depositories NSDL and CDSL
49, Business Day Business Day' shall be a day on which commercial banks are open for
Convention business in the city of Mumbai, Maharashtra and when the money
market is functioning in Mumbai, I the date of payment of
interest/redemption of prineipal does not fall on a Business Day, the
payment of inlerest/principal shall be made in accordance with SEBI
Circular CIRAMDYDF-1/122/2016 dated November 11, 2016.
If any of the Coupon Payment Dale(s), other than the ones falling on the
redemption date, falls ona day that is not & Business Day, (he payment
shall be made by the Issuer on the immediately suceeeding Business
Day, which becomes the coupon paymemt date for that coupon,
However, the future coupon pavment date(s) would be as per the
schedule originally stipulated at the tme of issuing the debentures, In
other words, the subsequent coupon payment date(s) would not be
changed merely because the payment date in respect of ene particular
coupon payment has been postponed carlier because of it having fallen
an a non-Business Day.
IF the redemption date of the Bonds Talls on a day that is oot a Business
Day, the redemption amount shall be paid by the lssuer on the
immediately  preceding Business Day  which  becomes  the new
redemption date, alang with interest accrued on the debentures until but
excluding the date of such payment,
=1, Record Date 7 calendar dayvs prior to the proposed date on which any payments are

reguired o be made in respect of the Debenturgs to the Debenture
Holders,
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51.

Security {(where
applicable)
{(Including
description, type
of security, type
of charge, likely
date of creation
ol security,
minimsm
security cover,
revaluation,
replacement of
security, interest
1o the

debenture holder
over and abowve
the coupon

rate as specified
it e Trost Deed
and

disclosed in the

OfTer Document),

The Debentures shall be secured by way of a first ranking, exclusive and
continuing charge on  identified  receivables (“Hypothecated
Receivables™) ereated pursuant to the deed of hypothecation to be
execuled between the Company and the Debenture Trustee as described
herein. The Issuer undertakes:

= (o maintain the value of seeurity at all times equal to 1,10 (One
decimal point one zere) Gime or 110% (One hundred and ten
percent) the aggregate amount of principal outstanding ol the
NCDs where at least 1.10 (One decimal point one zero) time or
1T0% {One hundred and ten percent) of the security cover is
feom principal receivables (“Seeurity Cover™),

= (o create, register and perfect the security over the Hypothecated
Assets as contemplated above no later than 30 (Thirty) calendar
days after the Deemed Date of Allotment by executing a duly
slumped deed of hypothecation (“Deed of Hypothecation™) and
filing CIIG-9 within the time period applicable: The Company
shall also provide such information sought by the Dehenture
Trustee for the purpose of filing the prescribed forms and
particulars with the Central Registry and Information Utility in
connection with the Debentures and the Scecurity Interest over
the Hypothecated Assels,

* o pay a penal interest of 2% (I'wo Percent) p.a over the
Coupon Rate in case there is any delay in execulion of
debenture trust deed within 3 months of deemed date of
allotment or any other extended period given by debenture
trustee & debenture holders,

« Non-maintenance ol security cover will attract penal interest of
1% p.a. over the coupan rate for the period of non-compliance.

« 1o provide a list on a quarterly basis, ol specific loan
receivables/identifizd book debts to the Debenture Trustee over
which the charge is created and subsisting by way of
Iypothecation in Taveur of the Debenture Trostee (for the
benefit of the Debenture Holders) ("Monthly Hypotheeated
Asset Report™

o o add fresh loan assets to the Security Cover to ensure that the
value of the Typothecated Assets is equal to 1,10 (One decimal
point ane zero) time or 110%4 (One hundred and ten percent) the
agpregate amount of principal outstanding of the NCDs where
al least 1,10 (One decimal point one zera) time or 110% (One
hundred and ten percent) of the security cover is from principal
receivables,

* To replace Hypothecated Receivables that has been overdue for
more than 90 days wilh current receivables. Such replacement
shall be affected within 15 (Filleen) Business Days of the
Hypolheeated Receivables becoming everdoe (by more than 90
days)

Eligibility Criteria for the Hypothecated Receivables:

i
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Each asset provided as security must comply with the portfolio
eriginalion criteria below:
e All applicable "know your customer” requirements prescribed
by the RBI have be complied with;
e The reccivables are existing at the time of selection and have:
not been erminated or pre-paid;
e [ach client loan must be directly originated by the Issuer and
not laans purchased from a thivd party,

e All loans hypothecated under the deed of hypothecation comply
with BB noems and puidelines.

Transaction

Documents /
Debenture
Documents

The Issuer sholl execote the documents ineluding bul not Limited (o (he
following, as required, in connection with the Issue as per latest SEB]
puidelines / Companies Acl 2013 (as applicable) for issuance of MCDs
through Private Placement:

Letter appeinling Trustees 1o the Debenture Holders

L Private Placement Offer Letter / PAS 4

© Information Memarandum

L Debenture Trust Deed

" Deed of Hypothecation

® Debenture Trostee Agreement

® Board Resolution authorizing this Issuance

L Applicable Shareholder Reselutions under the Companies Act,
2013

. Rating letter with the aloresaid Rating Apency(ies) with respect
to this Issuance
In Principal approval from stock exchanges for listing of WNCDs,

® Any other docuwment as may be agreed between the parties.

All transaction documents will eomply with the requirements preseribed
by the RB1 (if applicable), SEBI (if applicable) and under the
Companies Act, 2013 for the issuance of non-convertible debentures,

Disclosure Documents means collectively,

ta) the debt disclosure document to be issued by the Issuer in terms of
sub-regulation {1) of Regulation 21 ({hecloswres i respecr of
Private Placements of Debt Securities) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (il applicable); and

(b private placement offer letter 1o be issued by the Issuer in terms of
section 42 (Ofer or dmvitation for swhscoription of securities on
Jgutvaie placemeni) of the Companies Act, 2013,

Resolutions means collectively,

(a) special resoluwlion of the sharcholdars of the Company under
Section 180 1{a) of the Companies Acl, 2013,




(b} special resolution of the shareholders of the Company under
Section | BO{1c) al the Companies Act, 2013;

(e} board resolution of the hoard of directors of the Company under
Section 42 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules thereunder;

{d) special resolution of the shareholders of the Company under the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14(2)
and other applicable provisions of Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014,

Conditions
Precedent Lo
Nisbursement

The [ssuer represents and warrants to.the Investor or s sucéessors or

assipng, prior W and upon the execution of the Transaction

Documents/Agresment and at the time of issuance of the Debentures

and at all time during the currency of the Transaction Documents, that:

1. All corporate approvals from the Board of Directors and
shareholders of the lssuer, if applicable, shall have been received for
the issuance of the NCDs in aceordance with Companies Act, 2013
and submit the same o Debenture Trustee and Debenture Holders;

2. copies of the authorisations, approvals and licenses received by the
lssuer from the RREI,

3. (fo the extent applicable) copies of the resolution of the sharcholders
of the lssuer under Scciion 42 of the Acl, certified as correct,
complete and in full force and effect by an appropriate officer of the
Issuer;

4. a copy of the resolution of the sharcholders of the lssuer in
accordance with Section 180{1)c) of the Act approving the
borrowing confemplated under the Transaction Documents OR a
certificate of an authorised person of the [ssuer confirming the non-
applicability of Section 180{ 1<) of the Act;

5. a copy of the resolution of the shareholders of the lssuer in
accordance with Section 180(1 }a) of the Act approving the creation
of Security over the Charged Receivables OR a cedificate of an
authorised person of the Issuer confirming the non-applicability of
Section 180(1¥a) of the Act;

6. a copy of the mting letter and the rating rationale issued by the
Rating Agency in relation to the Debentures; Submitting to the
Debenture Trustee and Debenture Holders, the rating letter issved
bv the Rating Agency;

7. acopy of the consent from the Registrar to act as the registrar and
transfer agent for the issue of Debentures;

8. a copy of the consent from the Debenture Trustee te met as the
debenture lrustes for the issue of Debentures:

9. Submitting to the Debenture Trustee and Debenture Haolders, the
rating letter issuced by the Rating Apeney;

[, The Issuer shall have submitted to the Debenture Holders and
Debenture Trustee, all required documents for the purpose of
salisfying its respective KYC requirements;

[T The Issuer shall have submitted to the Debenture Trustee and
ebenture Holders o certified frue copy of the constitutional
documents of the Issuer {the Memorandom and  Articles of |
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Association and the Certificate of Incorporation);

12, The lssuer shall have submoitted o the Debenture Trostee and
Debenture Holders s audited account statements for the most
recent fnancial year oraudited Anancial half-vear;

13, Excewtion of Debenture Trustee Agreement, issuance of Latter
appainting Trustees o the Debenture Holders and submitting to the
Debenture Holder a copy of the consent letter received from the
Debenture Trustee agreeing fo act as Debenture Trustee for the
Debenture Holders:

14, The Issuershall issue the Infermation Memorandum.

The Issuer shall ensure that the llowing documents are executed/
aclivities are completed as per time frame mentioned elsewhere in this
Private Placement Offer Letter:

1. On or prior to the utilisation of the subscription monies by the
Company in respect of the Debentures and in any case, within 15
(Filteen) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment, the Campany
shall file of a return of allotment on the issue of the Debentures in
Form PAS-3 specified pursuant to Rule 12.and 14 of the Companies
(Frospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, along with
the requisite fee with the Registrar of Companies;

2. Dematerialised credit of the Debentures in the demat account of
Debenture [elder within 2 (Two) Business Days from the Deemed
Date of Allotment.

3. The Debentures to be listed on the Bombay Stock Exchanpe
(*BSE") within 20 calendar days of the Deemed Dale of Allotment

4. Creation and perfeetion of the Security within 30 (Thirty) days from
the Deemed Date of Allotment;

3. Tiling of the relevant Torms with the Registrar of Companies for the
perfection of charge over the Hypothecated Assets within and no
later 30 (Thirty) calendar days from the Deemed Date of Allotment,

6. Execution of the Debenture Trust Deed and Deed of Hypothecation
in form and manner satisfactory (0 the Debenture Trustes;

The Company shall ensure compliance with REL Act including Masier
eirculars and guiclulinf:s issued by RBL SEBI Act, cireular and
Regulations, Companics Act, 2013 and other applicable laws for

Oceurrence of any of the following evenls constitutes an event

54. Conditions
Subsequent Lo
Dishursement
and
igsuance of Debentures,
55. Events of
Default

of default with respect o the Issuer;
i, The Issuer fail to promptly poy any amount now or hereafler
owing o the Investors under this aereement as and when the
same shall become due and payable; or

it. Il the Issuer fail w duly observe or perform any obligation under

()
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iii.

P,

vi,

vii-

viil.

i

Kl

X,

wiil,

Ay,

this agreement; or

Broach of any of the key covenants, as specified above, which
are nol remedied within such period of time, if any, as the
Debenture Trustée (acting on the instructions of the Majority
Debenture Holders) may allow,
Breach of any of the covenants (other than those mentioned in
the trust deed, représemtations and warranties (including any
representation or warranty is held to be untrue, incomplete,
incorract or misleading in material (“material adverse changes™)
form eontained in the Transaction Docunients which are not
remedied within 15 days from the date of such breach,
the Issuerentering  into  any material  arrangement  or
composition with hisfher/itsftheir creditors or committing any
act of insolvency, or any act the consequence of which may lead
to the insolvency or winding up of the Issuer;
execution or distress or other process being enforeed or levied
upen o against the whele or any part of the Issuer's property
whether secured 1o the Investor or not;
any order being made or a Resplution being passed for the
winding up of the Issuer (except for the purpose of
amalgamation or reconstruction with the prior approval of the
Investor);
a Receiver being appointed in respeet of the whole or any part
of the property of the lssuer;
the lssuer being adjudicated insolvent or taking advantage of
any law for the relief of insolvent debtors;
the Issuer ceasing or threatening to cease 1o carry on business or
giving or threatening to give notice ol intention to do so;
Inability to pay debts, progeedings of winding up, or
the Issuer's being declared or considered to be a sick company,
or a reliel undertuking or a protected company or a sick
industrial company or a protected industrial company or
olherwise, under any law, statute, ule, ordinance ete, which
would have the effect of suspending or waiving all or any right
against the Tssuer or in respect of any contract or agreement
concerning the lssuer,_
The passing of any order of a court ordering, restraining or
otherwise preventing the lssuer from conducting all or any
material parl ol s business: or
The cessation of business by or the dissolution, winding-up,
insolvency or liquidation of the Issuer,
Events of defuult considered appropriate for the transaction of
this nature including;
Breach of any of the covenants. representations  and
warranties. Cure period for {a) any breach of
key financial covenamts to be given al the sole discretion of
the Inwestor, and (b) breach of any other covenants,
representation and warranties to be cured within 30 days,
Failure: to file a Form CHG 9 with the Registrar of
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Sh.

Companies in form and substance required to perfect the
Securily within 30 days from the Dale of Disbursement (or
creation of seeurity i creation is ta happen later)

«  Security provided being invalid security or loss of lien on
collateral

= Unlawlulness or unenforceability of finance or security

«  Repudiation of any Transaction Document

¢ lllegality for the Issver to perform any ol its obligations
under the Transaction Documenl

*  The withdrawal, failure of renewal, or failure to obfain any
statutory or regulatory approval in any relevant jurisdiction
for the Debentures or any Security,

*  Representations or Warranties are found to be untrue or
misleading when made or deemed to be made.

e Cross default/ defavlt with any other financial indebtedness
of the lssuer.

e The security cover falls below 1,10 times of the Outstanding
Amount at any time during the coreney of the Debenlures
and if the Issuer fails to reinstate to 1.10 times within 30
working days,

On the question whether any of the acts, matters, evenis or
eircumstances mentioned in clauses (i) to (xi) and (xiii) above have
happened, the opinion of the Trustee in concurrence with majority
debenture holders shall be final and conclusive and be binding on
the lssuer.

Upaon cecurrence of any of the aforesaid event of default, the Debenture

Trustee may by a notice in writing to the Company initiate actions as

may be contemplated in the Transaction Documents including the

Following:

{a) require the Company o mandatorily redeem the Debentures and
repay the principal amount on the Debenturcs, along with
accrued but unpaid interest, and other costs, charges and
expenses Ineurred under or in connection with this Deed and
other Transaction Documents,

b Declare all arany part of the Debentures to be immediately (or
on such dates as the Debenture Trustee may specify) due and
payable: whereupon it shall become so due "and pavahble
immediately,

Reporting
Covenants

The Company shall provide or cause 10 be provided to the Debenture
Trustee andfor 1o the Debenture Holders (including on any online
reporting platform notified by the Debenture Trustee or-any Debenture
Helder), in form and substanece reasonably satisfactory to the Debenture
Trustee; each of the following items:

l for”




i), The Company shall provide CA certified ALM on monthly basis,

i), On a quarterly basis (and within such days from each Quarterly
Date as may be preseribed by the Debenture Trustée), provide to
the Debenture Trustee;

(4} a cerlificate from the Company's director or the managing
director certifying the value of the book debis/receivables; and

(k) a certificate from an independent chartered  accountant
providingfeonTrming the value of the book delts/receivables,

i}, On an annual basis, provide to the Debenture Trustee a eertificate
from the statutory avditor of the Company providingfeonlirming
the value of the hoak debits/receivables:

vy, Within such timelines as may be prescribed by the Debenture
Trustee, provide a certificate from the Company's statutory auditor
in respect of the utilisation of funds, containing such details and
information as may be required by the Debenture Trustee,

v}, Buch other information, documents and certificates as ihe
Debenture Trustee may rensonably request.

s7.

Financial
Covenants

Minimum CRAR shall be maintained as prescribed by the Reserve Bank
of India,

58.

Affirmrative
Covenants

(g} To utilise the proceeds of this issue in accordance with applicable
laws and rezulations

(h) To promptly inform notice of winding up / other legal proceedings

{e) To promptly inform Material adverse effect

(d) To provide the investor with access 1o data / information / meetings
with the management team for periodical portfolio monitoring

(¢} To comply with corporate povernance, fair practices code
prescribed by RBI

And as set out in greater detail in the Debenture Trust Deed.

The Issuer shall also undertake that it would rework the Asset liability
structure within three months to have positive ALM in each bucket for
the first three months and on cumulative basis for the remaining period.

MNegative
Covenanis

The issuer shall take the prior written permission from the lnvestor /
Debetiture Trustee for the following:

fa) Any chanpge in Promoler, or control,

(b} Redeem, purchase, buyback, defease, retive, return or repay any
of its equity share capital or resolve to do so.

(c) Mergers, acquisilions, investmenl in associates, JWs and
subsidiaries including dispasal of any of the above
{(d} Change in nature of business of the Campany
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(e) Change in its Memorandum or Articles of Association except
for incressing the authorized share capital and for common seal
clause

{f} Loans exceeding 10% of net-worth to any single party and/or
guarantees on behalf of third parties

() Declare dividend on equity/preference shares when an Event of
Default is subsisting

() Material compromise or settlement

a)  And as set oul in greater detail in the Debenture Trust Deed

Representations

and Warranties l. The Campany is registered with the RBI a8 an NBFC
2. Mo Bvent of Defaull has occurred and is continuing on the date
of this transaction
3, Binding obligation ol Tranzsaction Dosuments
4. Mo conflict with othier obligations [ constitutions! documents
5. Mo Material Adverse Change in business, condition or
operations of the 1ssuer
0. Company has the power and avihority to issue Debenlures and
Such Transactions Documents are valid and admissible in evidence
7. Absence of any pending or threatened litigation, investigation or
proceedings that may have a material adverse effeet on the business
condition (financial or otherwise), operations, performance or
prospects of the lssuer or that purports to affect the Facility
Ilegality,

And as set out in greater detail in the Debenture Trust Deed,

61. Indemmification | The Issuer will indemnify, and hold harmless the Debenture Tolders
from and against any claim, liability, demand, loss, damage, judpment
or other obligation ar right of action which may arise as a result of
breach of this Term Sheet by the [ssuer or its Promoter/(s,

62 Issuer's The Iszuer undestakes that it has excculed! shall execute the documents

Undertaking ineluding but not limited to the following in connection with the Issue:
I, Tripartite Agreement between the Issuer; Registrar and NSDL for
issue of Bonds in dematerialized form;
2. Tripartite Agreement between the Issuer, Registrar and CDSL for
issue of Bonds in dematerialized Fformg
3. Letter appeinting KFin Technologies Private Limited as Registrar;
63 Payment Payment of the Application Money will be made by the Applicants by
Mechanism way of electronic modes of transfer (including by way of RTGS),
G4, Provisions Thelssuer:

related to Cross
Delault Clause

(a) defaults in any payment ol any Financial Indebtedness beyond
the period ol prace (not to exceed 30 (thirty) days), il any,
provided in the instrument ¢r agreernent under which such
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Financial Indebtedness was created:

(B} defaults in the observance or performance of any agreement or
condition relating to any Financial Indebtedness or contained in
any instrument or agreemenl evidencing, securing or relating
thereto or any other event shall ocour or condition exist, the
effect of which default or other event or condition is to cause or
to permit the holder ar holders of such Financial Indebiedness to
cause (determingd without regard to whether any notlce is
required} any such Financial Indebtedness to become due prior
to its stated maturity; or

(e} any Financial Indebtedness af the Issuer shall be declared to be
due and payable, or required {o be prepaid other than by a
regularly scheduled required prepayment, prior to the staled
maturity thereof,

65,

Role and
Responsibilitics
of Debenture
Trustee

The Trustees shall perform its duties and obligations and exercise its
rights and discretions, in keeping with the trust reposed in the Trustees
by the holder(s) of the Bonds and shall further conduct itself, and
comply with the provisions of all applicable laws. The Trustees shall
carry  out  its  duties and  perform  its funclions as required
to discharge its oblipations under the terms of SEBI Debt Reoulations,
the Securities  and Exchange Board of India  (Debenture Trustees)
Regulations, 1993, the Debenture Trusteeship Agreement, Disclosure
Document and all other related transaction documents, with due care.
diligence and levally

0o,

Governing Law
and Jurisdiction

The Transaction Documenls are governed by and  constroed in
accordance with the laws of India, All disputes in respect of the
Transaction Documents shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of
the courts and tribunals of Rajasthan, India.

67.

Dher Expenses

Any expenses thal nay be incurred towards executing of this transaclion
including NCD issuance, custodial services, payment of stamp duty,
fees for legal, accounting, due diligence and others shall be borne by the
Issuer.

68,

Transaclion
Cosls

The lssuer shall bear all transaction related costs incurred by the
Debenture  Holders with respect to legal counsel, wvaluers and
auditors/consultants. Such costs include:

1. Trustee Tees
2. Listing fees
3 Raling
4. Any other reasonable transaction related expense incurred by the
Debenture Holders
Stamping and registration in relation to all Transaction Documents,

49,

Taxes, Duties,
Costs and
Expenses

1. Relevant taxes, duties and levies are to be borne by the Issuer.
2. The charges / Tees and any amounts payable unider this Debentures
by the lssuer as mentioned herein do not include any applicable
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taxes, levies Including service tax ete. and all such impesitions shall
be barne by the lssver additionally.

T Additional Securily Creation: 1 the Company fails o execute the Debenture Trost
Diselosures Deed and charge documents within 30 days of the issue closure, the
(Security Company shall pay penal interest at the rate of 2.00% p.a, over the
Creation (where | Coupon Rate fill these conditions are complied with or refund the
applicable)) subscription (ie. redemption at par) along with other monies/aceruad

interest due in respect thereof, at the option of the Bondholders,

71. Additional Default In Payment: In case of default in payment of interest and! or
Dhsclosures principal redemption on the due dates, the Company shall pay additional
(Defuult in interest ot the rate of 2.00% p.a, over the Coupon Rate for (he defaulting
Payment) period i.e. the period commencing from and including the date on which

such amount becomes due and uplo but excluding the date on which
such amount is actually paid.

72, Additional Delay in Listing: The Company shall make listing application to BSE
Diselosures and/ ar NSE within 15 days fiom the Deemed Date of Allotment ol the
(Delay in Bonds and obtain listing permission within 20 calendar days from the
Listing) Deemed Date of Allotment of Bonds. In case of delay in listing of the

Bonds beyond 20 calendar days from the Deemed Date of Allotment,
the Company shall pay poenal interest at the rate of 1% p.a. over the
Coupon Rale from the expiry of 30 days from the Deemed Dale of
Allotment till the listing of Bonds to the Bondholder(s).

Nate:

1. The list of documents which has been executed or will be executed in connection with the isswe and
suliseription of debi securities shall be annexed

2, The penal inferest rales mentioned above as pavabile by the Issuer are independent of each other,
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SECTION 6: DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULT

Incase of listing of debt securities made on private placement, the following disclosures are required 1o be

Fkade:

L.

g

Marme of the bank declaring the entity as a Wilful Defaulter; N.A

The year in which the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: N.A
Oustanding amount when the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: N.A
Name of the entity declared as a Wilful Defaulter; NLA

Bleps taleen, iFany, for the remtoval Tam tie st of willul defaulters: ™A

Other diselesures, as deemed [it by the Issuer in order to enable investors to take informed
decisions: N.A

Any other disclosure as specified by the Board: N.A

T



SECTIONT: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

The Debentures being affered as part of the lssue are subject to the provisions of the Act, the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this Information Memorandum and
other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Transaction Documents.

74 Mode of Transfer/Transmission of Debentures

Tlhe Debentures shall be transferable freely and transmittable by the Debenture Holder(s) in whole or in
Pt without the prior consent of the Issuer.

The Debenture(s) shall be transferred andfor transmitted in accordance with the applicable provisions of
ths Act and other Applicable Laws. The Debentures held in dematerialized form shall be teansferred
stiject to and inaccordance with the rules/procedures as preseribed by NSDL/CDSL and the relevant DPs
of the transferor or transferee and any other Applicable Laws and rules notified in respect thereof, The
transferea(s) should ensure that the wransfer formalities are completed prior to the Record Date. In the
absence of the same, amounts due will be paid/redemption will be made to the person, whose name appears
in the Register of Debenture Holders maintained by the R&T Apent as on the Record Date, under all
clicumstances. In cases where tle transfer formalities have not been completed by the (ransferor, elaims, i
atly, by the transferees would need to be settled with the translerar(s) and not with the lssuer. The normal
procedure followed for transfer of securities held in dematerialized form shall be followed for transfer of
these Debentures held in dematerialised form, The seller should give delivery instructions containing
details of the buyer’s DP account to his DP,

The Debenture Holder(s) shall also have the right to novate, transfer or assign its rights and/or the benefits
urder the Transaction Decuments upon such transfer/transmission of the Debentures. The Company shall
not assign any of the rights, duties or abligations under the DTD or in relation to the Debentures without
the prior wrillen consent of the Debenture Trustee (acting on the instructions of all the Debanture
Haolders)).

72 Debentures held in Dematerialised Form

The Debentires shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the part of the Debenture
Holder(s) for redemption purposes and the redemplion proceeds will be paid by cheque/EFT/RTGS to
those Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list of beneficiaries maintained by the R&T Agent.
The names would be as per the R&T Agent’s records on the Record Date fixed for the purpose of

redemplion, All such Debentures will be simultancously redeemed through appropriate debit corporate
dclion,

The list of beneficiaries as of the relevant Record Date setting out the relevant beneficiaries’ name and
account number, address, bank delails and DP’s identification number will be given by the R&T Agent to
the Issuer. If' permitted, the [ssuer may transfer payments required to be made in any relation by
EFT/RTGS to the bank account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption payments,

7.3 Debenture T'rustee for the Debenture Holder(s)

The Issuer has appointed Catalyst Trusteeship Limited to act as trustee for the Debenture Holder(s), The
Issuer and the Debenture Truslee have entered/intend to enter into the Debenture Trustee Agreement and
the DT, inter alia, specifying the powers, autharities and ablipations of the Debenture Trustee and the

Issuer. The Debenture Holder(s) shall, without fusther act or deed, be desmed to have irrevocably given
their consent to the Debenture Trustee or any of its agents or authorized officials to do all such acts, deeds,
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fatiers and things in respect of or relating to the Debentures as the Debenture Trostee may in its absolute
deretion, subject to Applicable Law, deem necessary or require to be done in the interest of the Debenture
Fhlder(s), Any payment made by the Issuer 1o the Debenture Trustee on behalf of the Debenture Holder(s)
slall discharge the lssuer pro touro 10 the Debenture Holder(s), The Debenture Trustee will protect the
irierest of the Debenture Holder(s) in regard to the repayment of principal and coupon thereon and they
will take necessary action, subjeet to and in aceordanee with the Debenture Trustee Agreement and the
LITD, at the cost of the lssuer. The Debenture Trustee Agreement and the DTD shall more specifically set
ot the rights and remedics of the Debenture Holder(s) and the manner of enforcement thereof.

74 Shaving of Information

The Issuer may, upon oblaining a prior writlen consent of the Debenture Holders, but subject to Applicable
Laws, use on its own, as well as exchange, share or parl with any financial or other information about the
:benture Holder(s) available with the Tssuer, with its subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial
irstitutions, credit bureaus, agencies, statutory bodies, as may be required and neither the lssuer nor ifs
subsidiaries and affiliates nor their agents shall be liable for use of the aforesaid information.

TS Debenture Holder not a Shareholder

The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of sharcholders other than those
available to them under the Act. The Debentures shall not confer upon the Debenture Holders the right to
receive notice(s) or to attend and to vote at any general meeting(s) of the shareholders of the Issuer.

T.6 Modification of Debentures

The Debenture Trustee and the lssuer will agree to make any modifications in the Information
Memorandum which, in the opinion of the Debenture Trustee, is of a formal, minor or technical nature or
isto correct a manifest error.

Any other change or modification to the terms of the Debentures shall require approval by the Majority
Debenture Holders,

For the avoidance of doubt, the following matters require the consent of Majority Debenture llolders,
either by providing their express consent in wriling or by way of a resolution at & duly convened meeting
ol the Debenture Holders as set out below:

(#)  Crealing of any additional security, and
(b Amendment tothe terms and conditions of the Debantures or the Transaction Documents,

7.7 Right to aceept or reject Applications

The Board of Directors/Committee of Directors reserves its Tull, ungualified and absolute right to accept or
reject any application for subseription o the Debentures, in part or in full, without assigning any reason
theneall

7.8 MNatices

Any notice in respect of the Debentires may be served by the Issuer upon the Debenture
Trustee/Debenture Holders in accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents.

=,
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T Issue Procedure

Chly Eligible Investors as given hereunder may apply for the Debentures by completing the Application
Fum in the prescribed format in black letters in English as per the instructions contained therein, The
Frnimum number of Debentures that can be applied for and the multiples thereof shall be set out in the
Aaplication Form. No application can be made for a fraction of a Debenture. Application Forms should be
cdhly completed in all respects and applications not completed in the said manner are linble to be rejected.
The pame of the Applicant’s bank, type of account and account number must be duly completed by the
applicant. This is required for the Applicant’s own safety and these details will be printed on the refund
otlers and for redemptions warrants.

The Applicant should transfer payments required 1o be made in any relation by EFT/RTGS, o the bank
aezount as per the details mentioned in the Application Form,

Tlhe subseription to the Debentures shall be made by the Eligible Investors through the electronic book
mzchanism as prescribed by SEBI under the EBP Guidelines by placing bids on the EBP Platform
during the Issue period, In case the Eligible Investors are not registered on the EBP Platform, they
will lhave to register themselves as an "investor” on the EBP Platform {as a onetime exercise) and also
camplete the mandatory "know your customer” verification process. The Lligible Investors should
alio refer to the operational guidelines of the relevant EBP in this respect. The disclosures required
pursuant to the EBP Guidelires are set out hereinbelaw:

Details of size of issue including 300 (Three Hundred) rated, secored, senior, redeemable, taxable,
green shoe option, il any and a transferable, lsted, non-convertible debentures denominated in
range within which green shoe Indian Rupees ("INR") each having a face value of INR 10,00,000
may be retained (if applicable) {Indian Rupees Ten Lakhs) aggregating to a face value of INR
30,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty Crore)

Cireen Shoe Option: N.A.

Bid opening and Bid opening dale: September 02, 2020 from 10,00 AM.

closing date :
Bid ¢losing date: September 02, 2020 (il 03.00 P.M.

Mintmum Bid Lot Minimum 300 (Three [Hundred) Debentures of INR 10,00.000
(Indian Rupees  Ten Lakhs) each, aggregating to INR
30,00,00,000 ( Indian Rupees Thirly Crore)

Manner of hidding in Closed bidding
the Issue -
Munner of allotment Uniform Yield Allotment

in the Issue

Manner of settlement Fay-inof funds through 1CCL.
in the Issne . ) - o )
Fhe pay-in of the Application Money for the Debentures shall he

made by way of transler of Tunds frem the bank account(s) ol the

Eligible Investors {whose bids have been accepled) as registered

with the Electronic Book Provider into the account of the 1CCL, as
| specilied in this regard below.
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fettlement Cyele T41

Frocess flow of settlement:

Hligible Investors whose bids have been accepted by the Issuer and to whom a signed copy of this
Irformation Memorandum along with the PPOA have been issued by the Issuer and who have
stbmined/shall submit the application form ("Suecess(ul Bidders"), shall make the payments in respect of
the Application Money in respect of the Debentures towards the allocation made to them, into the hank
ascount of the 1CCL, the details of which are as set out below, on the Deemed Date of Allotment;

ICIC] BANK YES BANK HEEC BANK
Benetficiary INDIAN CLEARING INDIAN CLEARING | INDIAN CLEARING
__}Fam:: CORFPORATION LD CORPORATION LTD | CORPORATION LIMITED
Account
_ﬂmhﬂ ICCLER ICCLEB ICCLEB
IFSC Code FOTCO0G0 106 YESBOCKMSNOC HOTCO000060
__y[uda MNEFT/RTGS NEFT/RTGS NEFT/RTGS

The pay-in of the Application Maney by the Successful Bidders will be made only from the bank
account(s), which have been provided / updated by them in the EBP system. Any amount received from
third party accounts or from accounts not specified in the EBP system will be refunded and no allotment
will be made against such payments. Upon the transfer of funds into the aforesaid account of 1CCL and the
Issuer confirming its decision to proceed with the allotment of the Debentures in favour of the Successful
Bidders to the ICCL, the R&T Apent and the ERP and initiating the requisite corporate action for allotment
ol Debentures and eredit of the demat letter of allotment into the relevant demat account of the Successful
Bidders through the R&T Agent, the R&T Agent shall provide corporate action file along with all requisite
documents to the relevant Depesiteries by 12:00 hours and also intimate the EBP of the aforesaid actions.
Upon the Depositories confirming the allotment of the Debentures and the credit of the Debentures into the
demat account of the Successful Bidders to EBP, the subscription menies in respect of the Debentures from
the atoresaid account of ICCL shall be released into the Issuer's bank secount, the details of which are as
sel oul below;

MName | Kogta Financial (India) Limited- NCD Ale

AccountNo. | 36735099009

IFS Code SBINOO04080
Bank Name State Bank of Indin
[ 'Hrunc'Iﬂ SME Branch & Second Floar, Anukampa Tower, Church Road, Jaipur — 302001,
I Iajasthan.

Avcount Type | Current Account

Il must be neted that all funds pay-in obligations need o be fulfilled in totality, Partial fund receipt against
any given abligation will be treated as a defaull and debarment penalties will be applicable as specified by
the EBP Cruidelines and other Applicable Liw,

T.10 Application Procedure



IZigible Investors will be invited to subseribe by way of the Application Form preseribed in the
I tiormation Memaorandum during the perfod between the lssue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date
(Lol dates inclusive). The Issuer reserves the right (o change the lssue schedule including the Deemed
[ of Allotment at its sele discretion, withouwt giving any reasons or prior notice, The Issue will be apen
fer subseription during the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the [ssue Schedule and
the procedure will be subject to the EBT Guidelines.

7.1  Fictitious Applications
Al fietitious applications will be rejected.
72 Basis of Allotment

Mitwithstanding anything stated elsewhere, the Issuer reserves the right to accept or reject any application,
inpart or in full, without assigning any reason. In case of over subscription, Allotment shall be made on a
"yield time priovity basis" in accordance with the EBP Guidelines, The investors will be required to remit
the funds in the account of the TCCL as well as submit the duly completed Application Form along with
other necessary decuments to the Issuer by the Deemed Date of Allotment,

743 Pavment Instructions

The Application Form should be submitted directly. The entire Application Money per Debenture is
pavable along with the making of an application in aceordanee with Section 7.9 above.

7.14  Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Faeility

(a)  The Applicant must have at least one beneficiary account with any of the DP's of NSDL
prior to making the application.

(b}  The Applicant must necessarily fill In the details (including the beneficiary account number
and DI - 1) appearing in the Application Form under the heading “Details for Issue of
Debentures in Electronie/Dematerialized Form™,

fc)  Dehentures allotted to an Applicant will be credited to the Applicant’s respective heneficiary
account(s) with the DP,

(dy  For subscribing to the Debenlures, names in the Application Form should be idemtical 1o
those appearing in the details in the Depository. In case ol joint holders, the names should
necessarily be in the same sequence as they appear in the aceount details maintained with the
PP,

(e)  Mon-transferable allotment advice/refund arders will be directly sent to the Applicant by the
Registrar and Transfer Agent to the lssue.

() I incomplete/incornect detalls are given under the heading *Details for 1ssue of Debenturds
in Electronic/Dematenalised Form™ in the Application Form, it will be decmaed o be an
incomplete application and the same may be held liable for rejection al the sole discretion of
the Issuer.
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(2} For allotmen! of Debentures, the address, nomination delails and other details of the
Applicant as registered with his/her D shall be vsed for all correspondence with the
Applicant, The Applicant is therefore responsikle for the correctness of his/her demographic
details given in the Application Form wvis-a-vis those with hissher DP. In case the
information is incorrect or insufficient, the lssuer would not be liable for the losses, il any.

thy  The redemption amount or other benefils would be paid 1o those Debenture Holders whose
names appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the R&T Agent as on the
Record Date. In case of those Debentures for whieh the beneficial ewner i3 not identified in
the records of the R&ET Agent as on the Record Date, the Issuer would keep in abeyvance the
payment of the redemption amount or other benefits, until such time that the beneficial
owner is identified by the R&T Apent and conveyed to the Issuer, whercupon the
redemption amount and benefits will be paid to the beneficiaries, as identified.

7.5 Depository Arrangements

The lssuer shall make necessary arrangement with NSDL/CDSL for issue and holding of Debenture in
dematerialised form.,

7.6  List of Beneficiaries

The Issuer shall request the R&T Agent to provide a list of beneficiaries as at the end of each Record Date.
This shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption monies.

707 Application under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along with the
names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories of the Investor and the tax exemption
certilicate/document of the Investor, if any, must be lodged along with the submission of the completed
Application Form. Further modifications/additions in the power of attorney or authority should be notified
tar the lssuer or to its agents or to such other person(s) at such other address{es) as may be specified by the
Issper from time 1o fime through a suitable compiunication.

I case of an application made by companies under o power of altorney or resolution or authority, a
certified true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and/or bye-laws along with
other constitutional documents must be attached to the Application Form at the time of making the
application, failing which, the Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any
application in whole or in part and in either case without assigning any reason thereto, Mames and
specimen sighatures of all the authorized signatories must also be lodged along with the submission of the
completed Application Form,

748 Procedure for application by Mutual Funds and Multiple Applications

In case of applications by mutual funds and venture capital funds, a separate application must be made in
respect of cach scheme of an Indian mutual fund/venture capital fund registerad with the SEBI and such
applications will not be treated as multiple application, provided that the application made by the asset
management company/trustee/custodian clearly indicated their intention as to the scheme for which the
application has beeh made,

The Application Forms duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concemed scheme for which
application is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copies oft
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(#  SEBI registration cerificate
(b Resolution authorizing investment and containing operating instroctions
(¢ Specimen signature of authorized sipnatories

719 Documents to be provided by potential Investors
Irvestors need 1o submit the following documents, as applicable:

{8 Memorandum and Articles of Association or other constitutional decuments
(b Resolution authorising investment

(e Certified true copy of the Power of Attorney to custodian

(e Specimen signatures of the authorised signatories

(el SEBI registration certificate (for Mutual Funds)

(1t Copy of PAN card

(g Application Form (including EF'1YRTGS details)

7.0 Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details

Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the applicant and the
mugnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing direct eredit of redemption
amount and all other amounts payable to the Debenture Holder(s) through cheque/EFT/RTGS.

T Suecession

I the event of winding up of a Debenture Holder (being & company), the Issuer will recognise the legal
representative as having title (o the Debenture(s),

7.k2 Mode of Payment

All payments must be made through ¢heque(s) demand drafi{s), NEFT/RTGS as sel oul in the Application
Farm,

7.13  Effeet of Holidays

() [ any Due Date on which any interest or additional interest is payable falls on a day which
is not o Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due Date shall be made on the
succeeding Business Day.

e} If any Due Date on which any Outstanding Principal Amounts are payable falls on a day
' which is not a Business Day, the payment fo be made on such Due Date shall be made on
the preceding Business Day.

(d) I the Redemption Dale falls on a day which is not a Business Day, the payment of any
amounts in respect of any interest and the Outstanding Principal Amounts 1o be made shall
be made on the preceding Business Day

.24  Tax Deduction al Source
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() All payments to be made by the Company (o the Debenture Holders under the Transaction
Documents shall be made free and clear of and withoul any Tax deduciion unless the
Company is required to make a Tax Deduction pursuant o Applicable Law,

(b} The Company shall promptly upon becoming aware that it must make a Tax deduction (or
that there is any change in the rate or the basis of & Tax Deduction) notify the Debenture
Trustee aceordingly.

(e} If the Company is required o make a Tax deduction, it shall make that Tax deduetion and
any payment required in connection with that Tax Deduetion within the time allowed and in
the minimum amount required by Applicable Law.

(d)  Within the cardier of (i) 60 {sixty) calendar days of making either a Tax deduction or any
paymcent required in connection with that Tax Deduction or (i) 60 (sixty) calendar days of
cach Due Date, the Company shall deliver to the Debenture Trustee evidence reasonably
satisfactory to the Debenture Trustee that the Tax Deduction has been made or (as
applicable) any appropriate payment paid to the relevant Tax authority,

T.25  Letters of Allotment/Credit of Allotment

The letter of allotment, indicating allotmient of the Debentures or the actual credit of the Debentures, will
be eredited in dematerialised form within 2 (two) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

726 Deemed Date of Allotment

All the benefits under the Debentures will accrue to the Investor from the specified Deemed Date of
Allotment. T'he Deemed Date of Allotment for the Issue is Seplember 03, 2020 by which date the Investors
wauld be intimated of alloiment.

727 Record Date

The Record Date will be 7 (seven) ealendar days prior 10 the proposed date on which any paymenis are
required to be made in respect of the Debentures to the Debenture TTolders,

T.28 Relunids

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be dispatehad
within 7 (seven) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.

In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for Debentures in excess of the agprepale of the
application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been made, the R&T
Agent shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer repay the moneys to the
extent of such excess. il any.

7.29  PAN

Every applicant should mention its PAN allotled under Income Tax Act, 1961, on the Application Form
and atlach a self~attested copy as evidence. Application forms withoul PAN will be considered incomplete
and are liable to be rejected,

.30 Payment on Redemption
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Al interest, prineipal repayments, penal interest and other amounts, if any, payable by the Company Lo the
rbenture Holders shall be paid 1o the Debenture Holders by electronic mode of transfer like
RIGS/NEFTAireet eredit to such bank account within India as the Debenture Holders' inform the

Company in writing and which details are available with the Registrar. Credit for all payments will be
given only on realisation,

Disclaimer: Please note that only those persons (o whom this Information Memorandum has been
specifically addressed ave eligible to apply. However, an application, even il complete in all respects,
isliable to he rejected withoul assipning any reason for (he same: The list of documents provided
above is only indicative, and an investor is required to provide all those documents / authorizations /
information, which are likely to be required by the Issuer. The Issuer may, but is not bound to,
revert to any investor for any additional decuments / information, and can accept or reject an
application as it deems fit. Provisions in respect of investment by investors falling in the calegorics
mentioned above are merely indieative and the Issuer does not wareant that they are permitied to
invest as per extant laws, regulations, ete. Each of the above categories of investors is required to
check and comply with extant rules/regulations/ guidelines, ete. governing or regulating their
investments as applicable to them and the Issuer is not, in any way, direetly or indirectly, responsible

fur any statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor, neither is the Issuer required to check or
cinfirm the same.
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SECTION 8: DECLARATION

‘The lssuer deelares that all the relevant provisions in the repulationsfguideling issued by SEBI and ather
Applicable Laws have been complied with and no statement made in this Infermation Memorandum is
cintrary to the provisions of the regulations/guidelines issued by SEBI and other applicable laws, as the
cise may be. The information contained in this Information Memorandum is as applicable to privately
placed debt scourities and subject to the information available with the Issuer. The extent of disclosures
riade in the Information Memorandum is consistent with disclosures permitted by regulatory authorities to
the issue of seeurities made by the companies in the past.

A The Company has complied with the proyisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
hergunder;
B The compliance with the Companics Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder do not imply that

payment of dividend or interest or repayment of the Debentures, if applicable, is guaranteed by the
Central Government;

. The maonies received under the offer shall be used only far the purposes and abjects indicated in
thi= Information Memorandum;

1 am authorized by the Board of Direetors of the Issuer vide resolution number 13 dated January 29, 2020,
read together with the resolution dated July 10, 2020 of the board of dircclors and resolution dated August
26, 2020 of the Loan & Investment Committee of the Company, 1o sign this Information Memarandum and
declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect of the
subject matter of this foem and matters incidental thereto have been complied with.

Whatever is stated in this Information Memorandum and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and
complete and no information material to the subject matter of this Information Memorandum has been
suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the promoters subscribing to the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association,

It is Further dectared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly and
lepibly attactied o this Information Memorandum,

For KOGTA FINANCIAL (I-.‘:E%’lff LIMITED
Qﬁ)‘jﬁgvﬁ“b- AN
l. ~f NZ
Authorised Signatory ( l
Name; Rahul Aprawal \ s
Title: Company Secretary & Compliance Olficer Mty

Date: Q2 092020 L
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ANNEXURE I: COPY OF THE RATING

Cﬁ%ﬁ Ratings

Vintisishana) Bk Cpknion
CARE/IRO/RL/2020-21/1289

Mr. Varun Kogta

Director

Kegts Financlal (India) Limited
206, Ganpati Plars, M, L. Road,
laipur - 202001

Lonfidentizl

Dear 5ir,

osad Non-Convaertible Debenture issue

August 28, 2020

Flease refer to your request for rating of proposed long-term ron-convertible debenture (NCD)

lssue agpregatlng to RE.20,00 erore of your compariy. The proposed NEDs would have tenure of 18

maonths with bullet repayment at maturity,

4, The following fatings have been assigned by our Rating Copiimittee:

A
Iiiatriiime pls . IH!T:H:!::F Rating’ Ratlng Action
CARE A-; Stable
Proposed Mon- R i T ¥
Convertible Debenture ".“?"’“_ N {Single A ::L-:Lt::i outlool: Assignod
30.00
Total lnstr
vl RN e  [Rupees Thirly crore only) -

3, Please refer Annexure | for details of the rated instrument.

4. Please arrange fo get the rating fevalidated, in case the proposed (ssue |s not mada within a
perlod of sk menths from the date of sur Initial communicetion of rating to you (thaet s
AUgust 28, 2020).

5. |n cane there [5any r_han_gr_- [rnthe siza or terms of the proposed lssus, please gat the rating
revalidatec,

B,

fromthe date of placing the Instrurient:

[ tstrenwnt [ 1510 [lssoe | Coupon | Coupen | Terms

Please infarm us the below-mentioned detatls of (e 1rnrr1udia1.:|1,.l, but not later than 'i"-d.il,ls

of | Rodemption [ Name  and | Getalis of

'i'-,ml,l.]'u,-hr:ﬂ'ﬁlrﬁ:n’nm (ot wiatiraras ansafgrmoesd ene oo fllele o swerorpr |m_mu:.l|.u' iy et {.ill'ﬂf;mh.'.!. FITTEN

Page lofll

CARE Ratings Lt

CORPORATE OFFICE: 3™ Hpr, Gndn.-; Colizaum, Somaiya
Heepital Road, O Esctern Exprocs Highway, Sion (8], Mumbai -
4000023,

Tel:490-22-6754 3450 » Fax+01:23- 022 6754 3457

Emaill: care@eararatingscom = ww,carerslngs.com

- LETIDOMH 1923 EOT 1601

&7

200 & 204, Pashupat Akshat Heights, Piet Mo, D91
Madha Singh Road, Mear Calfectarate Circle

Bani Park, lalpur = 203 016

Tal: +21-14 14020113 14



Type Slxe Rale F.‘avmnnt | Redemption data contact top 10
{ks Dates details of | Investors
cr] Debenture

Trustes

7. Kindly arrange to submlt to us a copy of each of the documents pertaining to the NCD ssue,
inciuding the offer document and the trust deed.

B.  The ratlonzle for the rating will be cormmunicated to you separately, & write-up (press
retease] on the above rating |5 propased to be jssued ta the press shortly; a draft of which s
enclosed for your perusal as Annextre 1|, We request you ta peruse the annexsd document
and offer your commants if any, We are doing this as a maiter of courtesy 1o our cllents and
with a view te ensure that no factual inaccuracies have inadvertently crept In. Kindly revert
as early as possible, In any case, If we da not hear from you by August 31, 2820, we will
procead on the basls that you liave no any comments to offer,

8. CARE reserves Lhe right to undertake & surveillance/review of the rating from tme to time,
based on circumstences warranting such review, subject ta at leagt one such
review/surveillance every year,

10, CARE reserves the right to revice/rezffirm/withdraw the rating assigned as also revise the
autleak, as a result of pericdic review/survelllance, based on any event or Infarmation which
in the opinion of CARE warrante such an action, In the event of failure on the part of the
entity ta furnish such Informatlon, materlal or clarifications as may be reguired by CARE so
as to enzble it to carry out continuous monitoring of the rating of the debt instrument, CARE
shall'carry out the review on the basis of best avallable Information thraughout the life time
of such instrument. In such cases the credit rating symbol shall be accompanied by “ISSUER
NOT COOPERATING". CARE shall also be entitled to publicize/disseminate all the afare-
mentioned rating actions in any manner considered approprfate by It, without reference to
YO,

11, Qur ratings do not factor in-any rating related trigger clauges as per the terms of the
facilityfinstrument, which may involve scceleration of payments in case of rating
downgrades. However, if any such clauses are Introduced and if triggered, the ratings may
see volatility and sharp dewnprades,

12, Users of this rating may kindly refer aur website www . careratings.com for latest update on

the owtstanding rating,

Page 2 of 11
CARE Ratings Ltd,

301 & 204, Pashupati Akshal Heights, Plet No; D-9%, Madho Singh Road, Near Collectarate Ciccle, Bani Park, Yatpur - 302016
Tel 913424020213/ 1&
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13. CARE ratings are not recommencations to buy, sell or hold any secarities,
If you need any clarification, you are welcome to approach us In this regard, We are indeed,

grateful toyau for entrusting thiz asslgnment to CARE,

Thankingyou,
Youirs falthfully,

e —

[Yatesh Junoja] [Harshra) Sankhlal
Deputy Manager Senlor Manager
yatesh.junefa@caremstings.com hasshrafsankhla@careratingscam
Encl &= above

Bisclalimes

CARE's ratings are opiniens on the likeliheod of timely payment of the obligations under the rated instrumant and are
el recommendstion: to sanction, rereyy, disburie or reca’l the copcerned bank facllitles or 1o buy, sell qi' held any
sezurity, CARE'S ratings do mat convey sultabllity or price for the investor, CARE's ratings do not constitute an audit on
the rated entity. CARE han based Wo ratinpsfoutiooks on informatien ebtalaed fram scurces balleved by It 1o be
accurate and relfable. CARE does ivct, however, pusrantes the sceuracy, adequaty of completenass of any informatlon
arnd irnat respontible for any errcrs or amissions or fer the results chtained from the use of such Infarmation, Mot
ontitles whose bank faclitios instrumeants are rated by CARE have pald a credit pating fee, based on the ameunt snd
type of lank fmeilitiesfiratruments, CARE ar ltn mlhs'idlnrlnufhsmclall‘:!-u rmay alas have ather commerdial transaction:
with the entity, Incase of partnership/propriotary concernz, the rating foutlenk assigned by CARE fs, inter-alia, bazad
on the capital. deployed by the partnem/proprietor and the financial srangth of the fion at presant. The
ratingfoutiack may undergo change in cass of withdraval of capital or the unsecured loans brought in by the
farlnersfproptelor in additien 16 the finantial performance and other refevant factors, CARE I nat respansible far
any wrros and states that it hasmo finencdal ialility whatioeiser bo the veerc ol CARE's rating.

Chr ratings da net facter in any rating relzied iiggen flauses 3 per the 12rms of the faofiyfinstrument, which may
invelve acceleration of paynrents in case of rating downgrades, Howevor, I any such claunes are Introdused and i
| triggered, the ralings may ses yolatilibyand sharp downgrades.

Page 3 of 11
CARE Ratings Lid,

301 B304, Pashupali Akshat Heights, Plot Mo, 0-91, Madha Singh Road, Near Collectorate Cirdle, Bani Park, Jaipur - 302016
Tol: +55-141-0020213 /14
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ANNEXURE II: COPY OF THE CONSENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

CATALYE den e o - b
f'“"’ﬁ.’“-“‘“‘”’fmﬂlﬁ"-"’éij P f I ig“’mﬂt»

S e S - HEEE B T

CLMTIMAZG-21/DERS30A
Auposr 26, 20000

Ta,

Kogta Finansial (India) Lid
Eopts House, Azad Mohalla
Meor By Slation, Bijainagar,
“Rajinsibin - 05 G2

Kind Atto: Mr, Rahol Aparwal

car Sir,

- i Trusteo l. Serur !
"Debentures NCDS) sggreppling uplo TN 30 crores o be issued by ar £ AN i
private placement busis

This is with reference to the discussion we bad in respect of sppointment of Chinlyst
Trusleeship Limited 1o-act ay Debenre Tousiee for e caplioned WO on o privab:
Hacenient bagis. :

In this connegiion, we are agresable 10 nel as Trastes oo e wems god eonditions an rei bl y
“agreed between the Tristes nnd the Canpny,

The Company wnd tie Trustee shall enter into relevant trustee ngrociticols and olicr
vegessiry Dubenlure documents for the aloresaid issue of NS olso agress & undermbes
eomply with the provisions of the SEBT (Dobanmire Trustees) Fepolations, 1993, the BB
Circular Ma.RBII0I2- 13560 dated June 27, 2013, the Companics Act, 2013, the Conpanies
Ashars Capital and Dewontue) Rules, 2014 and woy other applicable semotes, regulstions moel
provielons as amended foom e o toe,

We ara also spresalle for Bnclusion of our name as Lustees in the Compuny™s affer
documzntfdizelostn: dosumenld any otber document to be filed with the stututory autlority or
wny olhcr suthorily as requircd.

We accopt the sbove torg
For Catalyst Trosteeildp Limbcd Far Kagta Finanelal (India) Lid .

~
h-:ﬁ#{i}:&'r"]ﬁﬁs‘fxﬁup LT \.‘J._HNQ?
e ! w7 e
] by . g e A
: T R Ry il EE-- I
Auvthorized Sigiuatory Autlarized Signalory 'L% fi
e gy
: i -
e
ﬂlfj\'[.ﬁ‘[ mkmmmﬂr:ﬂi.i_fﬁ]"'ﬂn iu}:f_-'r TR i ; . _‘ : ¥ Ir, : [ aed L _cmEE s
] ¥ i L G P BT A i, Hailica, i fut L R i) At Vel S E00E 2N UTE DESH Tosl TH [T AUDR SIS %
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ANNEXURE II: REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

Face Value — Rs. 10,00,000 per NCD

Amount! Invested — Rs, 30,00,00,000/-

Coupo N Hate - 2.50"%:

Montlas Date Met Cash Flow Principal Interest Principal O/5 | Days
03" September, 2020 | {30.00,00,060) (30,00,00,000)
[ 03" Seprember, 2021 L0,00.00,00000 | 2850000000 | (20,00,00,000) | 365
] 5t 03" December, 2021 10, 00,00,000.00 {1000, 00,0007 &1
18" 03" March, 2022 10,00,00,000.00 | 70,79,452.05 - 9{)
[ ll,f'- . _"//1
N
& V |
-I_\-“-\- __.-"'-' g
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ANNEXURE IV: APPLICATION FORM

APPLICATION FORM
KOGTA FINANCIAL{INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: Us7120RIT296PLC011406
A public unlistad lHmited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
Date of Incorporation: January 15, 1996
Registered Olfice: 'Kogta [House' Azad Mohalla, Near Rly. Station, Bijainagar - 305624, Rajasthan
Corporate Office: 8-1, Gopal Bari, Near Ajmer Pulia, Opposite Metro Fillar No. 143, Jaipur — 302001,
Rajasthan.
Telephone Mo.: 491 14] — 6767000
Website, www kogta.in

| APPLICATION FORM SERIAL NO. ] /]

30 (Three Hundred) Raled, Sceured, Senior, Redeemable, Taxable, Transterable, Lisied, INR
denominated Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Ten lakhs) each, aggregating up to Rz 30,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty Crore) on a private
pheement basis (the “Issue™).

Debentures applied Tor:

Mumber of Debeniures; In words
Amount Rs, Hinwords (Rupees Only)
| DETAILS OF PAYMENT:

MNEFT! RTGS
Mo, eawn on Bank

Funds transferred 1o Kogla Financial (India) imited
Dated

Total Amount Enclosed

[In Figures) Rs. f= (In weards) Indian Rupees
Only

'.l"’l_l :
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AI’I-‘_LICANTE-F NAME IN FULL (CAPITALS) SPECIMEN SIGNATURE

APPLICANT'S ADDRESS:

ADDRESS
STREET
CITY .
PIN PHONE FAX
APPLICANT'S PAN/GIR NO, IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT

LAM/WE ARE () COMPANY ( ) OTHERS () SPECIFY

We have read and understood the terms and conditions of the issue of Debentures and have considered the
risk [ictors in making our decision to apply, We bind ourselves (o these terms and conditions and wish ta
apply for allotment of these Dehentures. We request you to please place our name(s) on the register of
holders.

Name of the Authorised Designation Signature
Signatory(ics) ' il

Applicant’s Signature

We the undersigned, are agreeable to holding the Debentures of the Company in dematerialised form,
Details of my/our Beneficial Owner Account dre piven below:

| DEPOSITORY NEDL () CDSL( )

Depository Participant Name N
DP-1d
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'!'3an_:ﬁcinry Aecoum Number

r~ime of the Applicant(s)

Aaplicant Bank Account: !

MNEFT/ RTGS

( Settlement by way of Cheiue / Demand Drafi / Pay

Cxder [ Direct Credit/ ECS { NEFT/R TGS/ other
permitted mechanisms)

FOR OTTICE USE ONLY
[DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(ate: Cheque and Drafls are subject to realisation)

We understand and confinm that the information provided in he information memorandum  dated
Seplember 02, 2020 is provided by the Issuer and the same has not been verified by any legal advisors to
the Issuer. and other intermediaries and their agents and advisors associated with this lssue. We confirm
that we have, for the purpose of investing in these Debentures, carried out our own due diligenee and made
our own decisions with respect lo investment in these Debentures and have not relied on any
representations made by anyone other than the Issuer, if any.

We understand that: i) in ease of allotment of Debentures to us, our Beneficiary Account as mentioned
above would pet credited to the extent of allotied Debentures, ii) the Applicant must ensure that the
sequence of names as mentioned in the Application Form matches the sequence of name held with our
Diepository Pariicipant, iii) if the names of the Applicant in this application are not identical and also not in
the same order as the Beneficiary Account details with the above mentioned Depository Participant or if
the Debentures cannol be credited to our Beneficiary Account for any reason whatsoever, the Company
shall be entitled at its sole discretion to reject the application or issue the Debentures in physical form.

Applicant’s Signalure

FOR OFTFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE
(Note: € Sheqiee and Drafts are subject fo realisotion)

rmneserere{ TRARHERE)




- ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP -

(o e filled in by Applicant) SERIAL NO. I i
Received from
Adress
Cheque/Deaft/UITR - # Prawn  on for Rs.

- on aceonnt of application of Dehenture

Initial of the Officer of Kopta Financial (India) Limited designated (o keep the record

INSTRUCTIONS
I Application form must be completed in full, TN ENGLISH.
25 signatures must be made in English or in any of the Indian languages: Thumb Impressions must be

attested by an authorized official of the Bank or by a Magistrate/Notary Public under hismer
official seal.

3. Application form, duly completed in all respects, must be submitted with the respective Collecting
Bankers. The payment is required to be made to the following account of ICCL by way of an
electronic transfir, in aceordance with the terms af the ERP Guidelines:

ICICI BANK YES BANK HDFC BANK
INDIAN CLEARING | INDIAN CLEARING | INDIAN CLEARING
CORPORATION CORPORATION CORPORATION

Beneficiary Mame | L'TD LTE LIMITED

Account Number | ICCLEB ICCLEB ICCLEDR

IFSC Code 1CICO000 106 YESBOCMSNOC HDFCOO00GE0

Mode NEFTIRTGS MEFT/RTGS NEFT/RTGS

4. The Company undertakes that the applicalion money deposited in the above-mentioned bank

account shall not be utilized for any purpose other than

i) for adjustment against allotment of securities; or
(k) for the repayment of monies where the company is unable to allot securities.
‘]5 " -
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Receipt ol applicants will be acknowledged by the Company in the “Acknowledgement Slip”
appearing below the application form. No separate receipt will be issued,

All applicants should mention their Permanent Account Wo. or their GIR No. allotied under
Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Tax CirclefWard/District. Tn case where neither the PAN
nor the GIR No. las been allotted, the fact of non-allotment should he mentioned in the application
form in the space provided, Income Tax sy applicable will be deducted at source at the time of
payment of interest ineluding interest payable on application money.

The application would be accepted as per the terms of the Scheme ouwtlined in the transaction
documents for the private placement
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ANNEXURE VI: AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF LAST 3 YEARS ALONG WITH
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY DF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE TWENTY SECOND
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE SHAREHOIDERS OF KOGTA FINANCIAL {INDIA)Y
LIMITED HELD ON MONDAY ON 27TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2018 AT 1:00 P.M. AT THE
FEGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT “KOGTA HOUSE", AZAD MOHALLA
BIJAINAGAR - 305624, RAJASTHAN

AUTHORITY TO CREATE MORTGAGE, CHARGE ETC. TO SECURE BORROWINGS UPTO
AN AGGREGATE VALUE NOT EXCEEDING RS. 2000 CRORES.

“RESOLVED THAT i supérsession of the spegial résolution passed by the Members of the
Enmpany at the Twenty Flrst Annual General Meetirig held on 25th August, 2017 and pursuant
to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and olher ppplicable provisians, If any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the-Act”) read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and it Powers)
Fules, 2014 including any statutory modification(s} or re-enactment(s) thereaf, Tor the tirme
being In force, and the Articles of Assoclation of the Company, the consent of the Members
be and s hereby accorded Lo authorise the Board ‘of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as “the Board* which terin shall be deemed Lo include any Committesaf the Baarr)
for creation of charge § mortgage / pledge / hypolhecation / securily In addition to existing
charge / mortaage / pledge / hypothecation / security, in such form and manner and ‘with
such ranking and at such time and on such terms as the Board may datermineg, onall arany
of the movable and / or immovable properties, tangible or Intanglble assets of the Company,
bigth present and future and / or the whole orany part of the undertaking(s) of the Company,
a5 the case may be in favour of the Lender(s), Agent{s) and Trustee(s), for securing the
borrowings avalled / to be avalled by the Company by way af loan(s) {in foreign currency and
Jor fupee eurrency) and securitics (camprising fully / partly eonvertible debantures and/or
non-convertible debentures with or without detachable or non-detachnble warrants and /ar
secured premium notes and [ or floating thke notes / bonds ar other debt Instrumerts), lssiisd
/ te be issued by the:Company 1nr;ludtng,du1’3arred sales tex lozns availed / to be avalled by
various Units of the Company; from time to time, subject to the limils appro ved under Section
180(1)(c) of the Act (i.e. Rs, 20,00,00,00,000/- Rupees Two Thousand crores ulily) tegather
with interast at the respective egreed rates, additional Interest, compound interest in case of
default, accumulated interest, lguldated damages, commitment charges, premium an
prepayment, remunaration of the Agentis} / Trustee(s), premium (if any) on redemption, rall
other costs, charges and expenses, Including any increase as a rasult ‘of devaluation J
revalualion / fluctuation In the rates of exchange and all other Mmonies payable by the
Company In tenns of the Lean Agreement(s), Debenlurs Trust Deed(s) or any other
document, entéred Inte / o be entered into between the Compaty and the Lender(sy |
Agent(s) / Trusteé(s) / State Gavernment(s) / Agencylies) representing various stale
government andfor other agencles ete. in respect of the sajd loans [ berrowings / debentures
/ securltles / deferred sales tax leans and containing suel specific lerms and conditions -and
covanants in respect of enforcement of security as may be stipulated In that behall and agread

Kogta Financial (India) Limited
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Ld between the Board and the Lender(s) / Agent(s) / Trustee(s) / Slate Government(c) |
Ajency(ies), elc.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the securitias to be created by the Company @5 aloresaid may
rank prior / parl passu ¢ subservient with / to the mortgages and for charges already created
ofto be created In future by the Comipasiy of In such other manner and ranking as may Le
thought expedient by the Board and as may be agreed to between the concerned parties.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the putpuse of giving effect to this resolution, the Board or
committee of the board thereof be and Is hereby authorised to finalise, sattle, and execute
such documents / deeds [ writings / papers / agreements as may be required and to do all
such acts, deads, matters and things, as it may In lts ahsolute discretion desm NBCESSHRY,
praper or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arlse In regard to
«creating morlgages / chargés as aforesaid.”

For KOGTA FINANCIAL [INDIA) LIMITED

P"‘?‘}j\gw&

RAHUL AGRAWAL
‘COMPANY SECRETARY &
COMPLIANCE OFFICER
MEM. NO.: - A34034

Date: ©9 } af_:-:n cna
Place: T‘”“FP Vi
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE EXPLANATORY STATEMEN E
102 OF THE COMPANY ACT 2013

Shee the previsions aof section 180(1)(a) of the Companics Act, 2013, Evely Campany is
required to obtain approval of the members in general meeting by wiy of spidial reselution
toauthorize the Board of directors and/or Committee of the Board to soll, I8ase or otherwice
diipose of the Immovable propérty(les) or Undertaki g (s] of the Company.

Further, while borrowing money or monies from ‘any Bank(s), Financial Institution(s)
Person(s), Firm(s), Badies Corporate or others, the campany has to mortgage or create
charge on its properties Including iImmovable properties of the company. Sa, It Is praposed to
atthorise the Board and/or committes of Beoard to create charge, mortgsge, sell, lsase or
dispose of the property and undertaking(s) of tha company in raspaet of the berowings of
the Company. '

None of the Directors and key Managerial Personnel of the Company and thelr relatives Is
concermed or Interested, financial or otherwise, except to the extent of their shareholding, If
any, In the Company.

Far mt;rA FINANCIAL (INDIA) LIH_;.LE

RAHUL AGRAWAL
COMPANY SECRETARY &
COMPLIANCE OFFICER
MEM. NO.: A34034

Kogta Financial (India) Limited
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE TWENTY SECOND
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KOGTA FINANCIAL (INDIAY
LIMITED HELD ON MONDAY ON 27TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2018 AT 1:00 P.M. AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT “KOGTA HOUSE", AZAD MOHALLA
BIAINAGAR - 305624, RAJASTHAN

AUTHORITY TO ACCEPT BORROWINGS UPTO AN AGGREGATE VALUE NOT
EXCEEDING TO RS. 2000 CRORES.

“"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the special resolution passed by the Members of the
Cempany atthe Twenty First Annual General Meeting held on 25th Augutt, 2017-and pursuant
to the provisions of Section IBEI{TI}{E} and other applicable provisions, If any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companigs (Meetings of Board and lis Powers) Rules,

2014, Including any statutory medification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereaf, for the time he:‘__ng
in farce, and the Articles of Assoclation of the Campany, tonsent of the Members be and |s
hereby accorded ta authorise the Board of Birectors of the Company [heramalter refertéd ta
as"the Hoard” which term shall be degnied to Include any Commilttes of the Board), 1o bormw
any surmor sums.of money from time totime at ltsdiscrétion, for the purpose el Lhe busiriess
ofthe Company, from anpy one or mere Banks, Financial Institutions and other Persans, Firms,

Bodies Corporate, nolwithstanding that the imonies Lo be barrowed together with the manies
alieady borrowed by the Company (apart fram temporary loans obtained from the Company's
Bankers in the erdinary course of business) may, at any Lime, eéxceed the agaregate of the
jrald-up share copital of the Company and its free reserves that Is to say, reserves not set
apart lor any specific purpose, provided however that the stims o borrowed and remalning
‘outstanding ‘on account of principal shall not, at any time, excesd e 20.00,00,00,000/-

(Rupees Twe Theusand crores only) and that the Board of committes of the ﬂnard thnrer.'tl' bz
and is hereby empowered and authorised Lo arrange or fix the terms and conditions of all
such monies ko be borrowed from time totime aste interest, repayment, security.or otherwise
as |t may, in its absolute diccretion, think fit.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purpese of alvipng effsct to this resolution, Mr. Varun
Kogta and Mr. Radha Krishan Koata, Direclors of Lie Company be and are hersby severally
authotised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and khings as/it may In Its ebsolute discretion
deem necessary, proper, or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty, doult that may
arise Inrespect of the borrowing(s) aforesald and further to da all such acts, dagds and things
and to execute all decuments and writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or
expedient to glve effect ta this resolution.”

For xnsm FINANCIAL (INDIA) LIMITED
r_’ —A‘-"” _,_l'f'-- "L-

RAHUL AGRAWAL
COMPANY SECRETARY &
COMPLIANCE OFFICER

MEM, NO.: - A34034 ' iL ( W }
Date: dq]uglnq_ﬂ \ ;\ &
Place; “Ja, pu D

Kogta Financial {India) Limited
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CEIRTIFIED T STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANY ACT 2013

Sinee the provisions of section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act; 2013 states that the Board of
diectars of @ company could Borrow money together with the moneys already barrowed by
the Company in the ordinary tourse of husiness, to the extent of -_inid up Ehare capital and
frie reserves of the company and for borrowing menles in excess ol the Paid up share capltal
afd Free reserves, the consent and approval of the members of tha company in General
Meeting by way of Special resclution has to be obtalned.

Further, as you know that for business and operational purpose, the Company borrow
[mupey/manies from time Lo time, So, in Lhis regard authority Is propesed to be given to the
Brard of directors and/or Committee of the Board to horrow manles to the limlt of Rs. 2000
Crres and such approval af the members of the company s ssught | this annual general
rmeeting.

Mone of the Directors &nd Key Managerial Personnel of thel Company and thelr relatives g
cancerned or interested, financlal ar otherwise, in the resolution, except to the extent of their
shareholding, ifany, In the Company.

For KOGTA FINANCIAL (INDIA) LI'I:IItED\\
s

fCRTIAS
2 :':_1; A
. i Wsa!ﬂ‘a FHl o

RAHUL AGRAWAL Jat
COMPANY SECRETARY B :
COMPLIANCE OFFICER

MEM. NO.: A34034

Kogta Financial (India) Limited
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION NUMBER 13 PASSED AT THE SIXTH
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KOGTA FINANCIAL [INDIA)
LIMITED OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-2020 HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 25" DAY
OF JANUARY, 2020 AT S-1, GOPAL BARI, NEAR AJMER PULIA, DPPGSITE METRQ
PILLAR MO, 1ﬂr3. JAIPUR - 30200 1, RAJASTHAN, INDIA AT 03:30 P.M,

1Ko g

TO CONSIDER; R ND APPROVE THE LIMIT T EN L
0 IAL PAPER{S) - SECURITIES

THROUGH PRIVATE PLACEMENT IS A v

COMPANY,

"RESOLVED THAT In suppression of the eariler Board Ftesn!u*lun passed in Board
Meeting held on January 17, 2019 dnd pursuant to the pravislens'of Section 179(3) and
other applicable provisions, If any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Lhe‘“hﬂt“} read with the
Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) other spplicable pmvis[an “of the Companles Act; 2013, 88
amended (the “Companiés Act") and In accordance with the provisions of SEBI (1ssue
£ Listing of Dabt Securltias) Hegulations, 2008, as amended (the “SERY Rngulatiann"}
and w}th ‘enabling provisions of Mermorandiam of Adsnclati on and Articles. nf Azsnciation of
the Company, the Board of Directars (hereinafter referred to as the ® Board”) of the
anpany be and hereby accorded to issue of redeemable non-conyvertible debt securities
in the form of secured/unsecured and senlor/or subordinate debts (hereinafter referred
to as the “NCDs") / bonds / commerclal paper(s) and other debt securltbes,. theaugh
“private placement  issbe’ in one of or morel serles I."trElnn:hlEs. Lo debentire
holder(s)/Tnvestar(s) (the “Identified persons™) as may b decided by the ‘Board,
upon such terms ond conditions may be agreed wilh the Ellg}hl¢ Pl s0s, whj:ecl. Lt tue
compliance ‘with Reserve Bank of India Directions to the extent applicable and alse any
other |law, rules, directions lssued by any other regufatary authorities, In this regard,
provided that the outstanding amaount at any time during the naﬂﬂd shall not excesd TNR
5,00,00, 00,000 (Indian Rupees Five Hundred Crores).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpase ta give effect ta this resolution Mr. Varun
Kogta, Whole Time Directar & Chief Financial Officer and Mr. ‘Radha Krishan Kogta,
Chalrman of the Company be and are hereby severally | authorized op behalf of the
Cornpan:,,r to do all acts, ‘deeds, matters and things as deem necessary, proper or
desirable and to sign and execute all necessary ::it}cuments, applications and returns for
the purpase of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution alnng with flling of necessary e-
forms with Whe Reglstrar of Companles.” [

o
For and on behalf of the board, T
For KOGTA FINANCIAL {mnm} LIMITED : G

fm}"t 5"%-
i <

RAHUL AGRAWAL
COMPANY SECRETARY &
COMPLIAMNCE OFFICER
MEM. NO.:- A34034

Pate: 170 5} 2o

Place: 5 {pua- YT . o X

Kogta Finaneial (India) Limited
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE CIRCULAR RESOLUTION NUMBER 07 FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR 2020-21 PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KOGTA FINANCIAL (INDIA)
LIMITED (THE “"COMPANY"”) THROUGH PASSING OF RESOLUTION BY CIRCULATION ON
FRIDAY ON THE 10™ DAY OF JULY, 2020.

TO _CONSID PPROVE MATTERS ELATED T 15 ON-C RTIBLE
EEEN ROUGH v PLACEMENT BASIS ERIALISED FO

“RESOLVED THAT In accordance with the resolution passed in the Board Meeting held on January
29, 2020 and pursuant to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Assaciation of the
Company, Section 42, 71, 179, 180(1)(a), 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companles Acl, 2013 ("Act”), and In sccordance with Rule 14(2) and other applicable provisions
of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securltles) Rules, 2014, Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014, all other applicable provisions of the Act, the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Jssue & Listing of Deht Securities) Regulations, 2008, Listing Agreement to be
entered into by the Company with BSE Limited ("BSE"), In accordance with the REl's (as defined
below) master direction on “Nen-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016", and RBI's master directions on Non-Banking Financial Company
- System[caily' Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016 and/or the Non-Banking Financlal Company -
Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated
September 1, 2016, the Issuance of private placement of NCDs Is propesed with minimum
subseription of Rs. 1,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Crore) per Investor and having no limit on the
number of subseribers, and In accordance with other clreular(s) and clarification(s) Issued by the
Reserve Bank of Indla ("RBI") as applicable to non-banking financial companies, from time to time
and other applicable laws, If any, and pursuant to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
in their meeting held on August 27, 2018 pursuant to Sections 1B0O{1){a) and 180(1)(c) of the Act,
the consent of the Board be and Is hereby accorded for the Issue, coffer and allotment of Nen-
Convertible Debentures, of aggregating amount of Rs, 1,90,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupecs One
Hundred Ninety Crores) ("Debentures") on a private placement basis to Public Sector Undertaking
Banks (“Eligible Investors”) (as mentioned belew and being the Identlfied person(s) for the
purposes of Saction 42 of the Act) on a face value, no. of NCDs and aggregate amaunt as mutually
decide with the ellgible inveslors till September 30, 2020 and get the said Debentures listed In the
Wholesale Debt Market segment of BSE Limited.

Name of Public Sector Undertaking Banks (“eligihlc-lnvesturs")
State Bank of Indla Indian Bank
Bank of Baroda - Bank of Maharashtra
Union Bank of India Bank of India
Punjab National Bank Central Bank of India
Canara Bank Indian Overseas Bank
| Punjab & Sind Bank UCO Bank

. . - \ Aonrg
Kogta Financial (India) Limited N e—r""
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Lean & Investmenl Committee (as constituting of Mr. Varun
Koga, Whole Time Director & Chlel Financial Offlcer as Chalrman, Mr. Arun Kogta, Managging
Director & Chief Executive Officer as Member, Mr. Amit Mehta, Nominee Director as Member, Mr,
Nayan Kogla, Chiel Operating Officer as Member & Mr. Shobhit Nawal, Finance Controller as
Mermber) of the Company be and Is hereby autherized and empowered to offer and allot the sald
Debentures to the eligible Investors, as identified by the Board, in one or more tranches.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Loan & Investment Commiltee ("Committee”) be and Is hereby
authorized to:

{1} negotlate, approve of and decide the terms and conditions of the offer & allolment of
Debentures and execute the term sheet subject to the balow terms and conditions:

o) Coupon Rate: Not more than 10% p.a.
b) Tenor & Maturity: Not more than 18 months

€) Security Coverage: Not more than 1,20 times or 120% of the aggregate amount of
principal outstanding at any time

(il finalize terms and conditions of the appointment of an arranger (if any), a debenture trustee,
a reglstrar and transfer agent, a credit rating =gency, a deposltory and such other
intermediaries as may be required Lo be appointed, Including thelr successors and their
agents;

(i)  make offer, Issue the private placement offer letter for each series of Debentures and accept
the funding of the subscription amounts for each series of Debentures In accordance with
the offer schediilé prescribed in the Transaction Documents:

(lv) execute, file and deliver any documents, instruments, deeds, amendments, papers,
applications, notices ar letters as may be required in connection with the Issue and deal
with regulatory authorlties In connection with the Issue including but'not limited Lo Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Registrar of Companies, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Central
Reglstry of Securitisation Asset Raconstruction and Security Interest of India and such other
authorities as may be required;

v} approve, negoliate, sign, execute Lhe debenture tryst dead, debenture trustee agresment,
deed of hypothecation, any other requisite documents for the ereation and perfection of the
Collateral/Security (including any powers of attorpey In connection thereto) and any othar
document in relation thereto (collectively, the Transaction Documents);

(viy  create and perfect the Collateral/Security in accordance with the terms of the Transaction
Documents {if any); AT

- - " " .'1. - - ."
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(vii) authorize the maintenance of a register of holders of the Debentures and issue Jumbo
certificate for the Debentures to pay stamp duty on the debentures:

(viil} direct any officer(s) of the Company to do such things and to take such actions as the
Company Is entitled to do or take {as the case may be) In terms of this resolution;

(ix) take all steps and do all things and give such directions as may be required, necessary,
expedient or desirable for giving effect to the Trancaction Documents, the transactions
contemplated therein and the resolutions mentioned Herein.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and Is hereby authorizes the bank account of the
Company bearing account No. 36735099002 maintalned with the State Barik of India, SME Branch,
Church Road, Jalpur in the name of “Koala Financial (India) Limited = NCD A/c” ("Bank Account”)
as.a separate bank sccount for the current Issue of Debentures and the application money will be
kept n the Bank Account. Mr, Varun Kogta, Whole Time Director & Chief Financlal Officer and Mr.
Radha Krishan Kogta, Chairman of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorized te sign
and execute all necessary documents with the Bank Account In relation to all cheques and other
negotiable instruments drawn, accepted or endorsed and all other incidental acts, thing and deeds,
as may be deemed fit, on behalf of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the seal/stamp of the Campany be affixed to such documents, deeds,
evidences, wrilings and undertakings and/or other related papers executed In furtheranee of the
afcresald resolutions, wherever necessary.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aforesaid resolutions shall come Into effect immediately and a
copy of the foregoing resolutions certifled to be a true copy by any of the Director or Mr. Rahul
Agrawal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company be furnished to such parties
cancerned with respect to the Issue, offer and allotment of the Debentures.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
For KOGTA FINANCIAL (INDIA) LIMITED

MA{,& WL
it

RAHUL AGRAWAL
COMPANY SECRETARY &
COMPLIANCE OFFICER
M. NO.: A34034

Date: |o !b:}-fﬂ.m.m
Place: j—ﬂjpur

Kagta Financial (India) Limited
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION NUMBER 01 PASSED AT THE 12t
MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF LOAN & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE OF KOGTA
FINANCIAL (INDIA) LIMITED (“COMPANY”) OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21
HELD ON WEDNESDAY ON THE 26" DAY OF AUGUST, 2020 AT 04:30 P.M. AT
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT $<1, GOPAL BARI, NEAR AJMER PULIA, OPPOSITE
HMETRO PILLAR NO. 143, JAIPUR - 302001, RAJASTHAN, INDIA. :

.CONSIDERED AND Af
00_ (THREE_HUNDR

ACEMENT OF -
i -

EMATERIALISED ©
PEES TEN LAKH)

- "RESQLVED THAT In éccordance with the:resolution passed In the Board Meeting held on’
January 29, 2020 and ‘the Board resolution passed by circulation’ o July 10, 2020, and "
pursuant to the provisions of the Memarandum and Articles of Association of the Company,- -
Section 42, 71, 180(1)(a); 180(1)(c) and - ather applicable provisions, if any, -of .the
Companies Act, ‘2013 {("Act”), ‘and In" accordance with Rule 14(2) @nd_other appliczbie
“provisions of Companies (Prospectus end Allotmént of Securities) Rules, 2014, Companles

- (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, all other applicable provislons of the Act, the

- ‘Securitles and Exchange Board of India (Issue & Listing of ‘Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008, Listing Agreement to be entered Into by the Company with BSE Limited ("BSE"™), In
accoerdance with the RBI's (as cefined below) master direction on “Non-Banking. Financlal

. Companles Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016", and' REIl's
master directions on Non-Bankirg Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company .(Reserve Bank) Directlons, 2016 dated
september 1, 2016 and/or the Non-Banking Financial Company - WNon-Systervically

- Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directicns, 2016, dated September - |
1, 2016, the Issuance of private placement of NCDs is proposed with minimum subscription - ©
of INR '1,00,00,000 (Indian Rupées One Crore) per Investor and having ne limit "on the .
numbet of 'subscribers, and In accordance with other ::'Irﬂuiari;s} and clarification(s) Issuved
by :the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI”) as applicable to nen-banking financial companles,
from time to time and other applicable laws, [f any, and pursuant to the approval of the
shareholders of the Cofmpany in their meeting held on August 27, 2018 purstiant to Sections
180(1)(2) and 180(1)(c) of the Act, the cansent of the members of the Loan and
Investment Committee (“*Committee”) be ‘and is hereby  #ccorded for the offer and

ellotment of 300 (Three Hundred) Rated, Secured, Senior, Reédeemable,. Taxable,
Transferable and Listed Non-Convertible Debentures in dematerialised form each having a2
face wvalue of INR .10,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Ten Lakhs) aggregating upto - INR

30,00,00,0004- (Indian Rupeés Thirty Crores anly) (the "Debenturés”) on a private
placement basis to eligible particips nt who shall be identified through the electronic bidding
platform; (the "Investors®), which shall be subject to identified persons as identified by the
Board in the resolution passed by clrculation on July 10, 2020, (being the |déritified
. pefsan(s) for the purposes of Section 42 ¢of the Act) and get the sald Debentures listed In
the Whaolesale Debt Market segment of BSE Limited. i P A :

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the members of the Committee be arid ls
hereby accorded to appoint Catalyst Trusteeship Limited, as the debenture trustee (the

"Debenture Trustee”) for the issue of the Debentures,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Varun Kogta, Whele Time Director & Chicf Financial Officer
and Mr. Surendra Singh, Manager Taxatian & Compllance and Mr. Rahul Adrawal, Company
Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company (“Authorised Signatories”) be and are

. (f): )
Hogta Financial (India) Limited ‘ | 4k i
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hereby severally authorized to negotiate, finalise, approve, execute, sign and deliver the
Necessary or requisite agreement{s) with, and provide other relevant documents to, the
National Securitles Depository Limited ("NSDL") and Central Depository Services {Indla)

Lmited ("CDSL") for the issue of the Debentures in the dematerialised form.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the Committee be and Is hereby accorded to
appaint. KFin Technologies Private Limited as the Reglstrar & Share Transfer Agent for

transfer and derngte'_rlaiis_atrqn of Debentures of trl'e_ﬂi}_q"lﬁﬁ fy with NSDL and COSL.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the  Authorised Signatories of the. Company, be and’ are
hereby severally authorised to-apply for and obtain credit rating for the lssuance of the
Debentures fram CARE Ratings and abtain any ratification-subsequently thereof @5 may be

required forand on behalf of the Company:

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the. Authorised Sigratorles of the Company, ‘be and are
hereby severally authorlsed to prepare, neaotiate, finalise, approve, execute, sign and
deliver the ‘private placement offer cum application letter In Form PAS-4 ("Offer Letter"),
and the Information memorandumy/other debt disclosure docurient (collectively, the "Debt
Disclosure Documents") to the Investors for the issuance of the Debertures on'a private

placement ba sis,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the Committee be and is hereby accorded to
(a) crezte a first 'ranking, exclusive and continuing charge on Identified receivables (up to
steh fimlts and security covar as may be agreed and within such timelines as may be
~agreed in the term, sheet), In favour of Debenture Trustee for. the benefit of holders of

Debentures. (b) suéh other .secutlty or contractual comfort (Including perscnal end/ar

_ Corperate guarantees) as may be required in terms of the issuance of the Debentures,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Signatories of . the Campany, be and are
hereby severally authorised on behalf of the Company,'to "n_e'got]ate, approve, finalise, sign, -
deliver and execute the necessary definltive documents including, the term sheet,. the
debenture trust deed, the: debenture trustee agreement, the deed of hypothecation, the
Debt Disclosure, Documents, the debenture certificate and other agreements, documents,
instruments, certificates, papers, writings and any amendments or modifications thereof, on
behalf af the Company with respect to the Debentures and a5 may be required to create

. and perfect a valld security over the Hypothecated Recelvables and other relevant property
of the Company (If so required) In favour of the Debentures Trustee (for the benefit of the
holders of Debentures) and to take such steps as may be necessary for filing of the sald
documents with the respective authority(ies) and te abtain approvals, statutory, contractua|
or otherwlse, in relaticn to the above If requlred and to settle all matters arising out of and
Incidental thereto, on behalf of the Company and genefally to do all acts, deeds and things
that may be necessary, proper, expedient or Incidental for the purpose of alving effect to

the offér and allotment of the Debentures {Including their listing an BSE Limited).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT tho Authorised S[Qna‘rﬁ:rics of the Eompa'ny,_.bf: and are
hereby severally authorised to pay stamp duty ‘required to be pald for the offer and

allatment of the Debertures In accordance with the laws of India.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Signatorles of the Comwipany, bé and are
hereby severally authorlsed to record the name of holders of the Debenture in the register
of debenture helders and to undertake such other acts; deeds and things.as may be

required to give effect to the offer and alletment of the Debentures,

Kogta Financial (India) Limited ==t
CIN - LT 20FIT 99605011406 : ety

S:1, Gopadul, Magr Abner Palls, Opp, Watro Rillr Bo, 143, Jali-302001, Bajasther, nda A Tel Mo 901 - 1416767000
Megiztered Office : Kogta Haute, Adad bkl Dilabnzsyerr - 300424, Waalhon, bdia | Emet - InfofRingtein | waw,koglaln




FINANCI

ElKog

ta

FREEDOM T
GROWEESS

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Signatorles of the Company, be and are
hereby severally authorised to do all such acks, deeds, things and execute or ratify all such
documents whatsoever as may be required In connection with the offer and allotment of the
Debentures including without limitation the opening of demat accounts, listing of the
Debentures on BSE Limited, appointment of legal counsel, arranger(s), the Registrar to the
Issue, credit rating Company and other advisors as may be required and making payment of

thelr fees,

'RESOLVED FURTHER THAT. the Committee be and is hercby authorises the Bank account

o the Company bearing accolint No. 36735099009 malntained with the State Bank-of India, -~
SME Branch, Church Road, Jalpur In the name ef *Kogta Financial (Indla) Limited — NED -

Afe" (“Bank Account”) as@ separate banl account for the current Issue of Debentures and

“the application mbney will be kept in the Barik, Account. Mr, Varun Kogta, Whole Time ™ -
Director & Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Radha Kishan Kogta, Chainman & Whole Time
Director of the Company, be and are hereby Severally authorized to sign’ and execute all -
necessary documents with the Bank Accouht in relation to all cheques and other negotiable.
Instruments drawn, accepted or 'endorsad and all other incidental acts, thing and deeds, as .

may-be deemed fit, on behalf of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Signatories of the Company, be and are
hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things as:are necessary for
registaring any of the documents, being executed by the Company, with the relevant sub-
registrar ‘of assurances, the relevant reglstrar 'of companies, Centrdl Registry of
Securltisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Inlerest, the relevant reglstrar of
companites, the Minlstry: of .Corporate Affalrs or any other avthority and for filing of the

charges belng created thereunder, and for filing of necessary forms, returns and such other
documents pertalning to the aforesaid issuance of Debentures with the relevant registrar of

companles, Securities and Exchange Board of Indla ("SEBI"), or afy other authority.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the seal/stamp of the Company bé affixed to such docuiments,

deeds, evidences, writings and undeftakings and/or. othér related papers exccuted in

furtherance of the aforesaid resolutiors, wherever necessary,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aforésaid resolutions shall come into efféct Immediately
-and a copy of the foregoing resolutions Certifled Lo be a true copy by any of the Director or
Mr. Rahul Agrawal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the LCompany be furnished

to such parties concerned with respect to the offer and allotment of the Debentures.”

".For and on he_hﬁlf of the Committeeg,
For KOGTA FINANCIAL (INDIA) LIMITED

RAHUL AGRAWAL

COMPANY SECRETARY & L - ) 3 e N
COMPLIANCE OFFICER = ~~——— : c 0 T T g
M. NO.: - A34034 ' ' . RS I PR
Date: 28,/08/2020 ! N
Place: Jaipur . S

Kogta Financial (India) Limited

CIN = LT 20R01 39EL00 11 408
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MBEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Kogta Finanelal (India) Limited

Feport on the Flnancial Statements

L We have audited the accompanying financlal stalements of Kogta Financlal {india) Limited (the
"Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at Mareh 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss
and Cash Flow Statement for {he year then ended, and a surmmary of significant accounting pelicies and
ather explanatory Infermation,

Management's Responsibllity for the Finaneial Statemente

2 The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 13405 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“lhe Act") with respect to the preparation of these financlal statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Indla, including the Accounting Standards
specified under sectlon 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
the Companies (Accounting Standardsy Amendment Rules, 2016, This responsibility alse ncludes
maintenance of adequate accouniing records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for
sateguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fravds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policles; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the deslgn, Implementation and maintenance of adequate
Internal financial control thal were operating effectively for ensuring the sccuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that olve
a true and falr view and are free fram material misstatament, whether due to fraud or error,

Audlitor's Responsiblilty

3. Qur responsibllity Is to express an opinion on these financial statements based en our audit, We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters wiich
are required to be Included In the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, We conducted cur audit in aceordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accduntants of India, as specified under Sectlon 143¢10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethica requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from materlal misstatement.

4. An audit Inveives performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and diselosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, including the
assessment of the rlsks of malerial misstatement of the linancial statements, whether due to fraud er
error. In making those rlsh assessments, the auditor conslders Internal financlal control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the financial statements that dive a true and falr view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances. An audit also Includes evaluating the
apprepriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates mada
by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sulficient and appropriate lo provide a basls for
our audt apinfen en the financial statements,

Oplnion
= In our opinion and to the best of our Infermation and according to the explanations given ta us, the
tinanclal statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a Lrus

and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India af the state of affalrs
of the Cempany as at March 31, 2018, its profit and Its cash flows for the year ended on that date,
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Auditor's repert for the year ended March 31, 2018

Frport on Other Legal and Regulatory Regulrements

& As required by the Companies (Auditor's repart) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of fndla in {erms of sub-sectlon (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give n the Arnexure 1
statement on the matters specified In poragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder,

7. As reguired by scctidn 143 (3) of the Act, we rapor! that:

(&l

{h

{c)

e

(e)

i

@)

We have sought and obtalned all the Information and explanations which to the best of our krowledge
and beliel were neceéssary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinlon proper baaks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of thase boaks:

The Balance Sheel, Slatement of Profit and Less, and Cash Flow Statement deall with by this Repart
are in agreement with the books al account:

In our opinlan, the aforesaid financlal statements comply with the Accounting Standards speclfied
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
Companies CAccounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016

On the basis of written representations recelved {rom the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is disqualified as on March 3L, 2018, from
belng appointed as a direcior In terms of section 164 (2yaf the Act;

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate Repert In
"Annexure 2" to this report:

With respect to the other matters (o be Included in the Audiler's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companles (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, In our opinion and {o the best of our information
and according to the explanations glven to us:

I The Company has disciosed the Impacl of pending [igations on fts finanelal position |n its
financlal statements - Refer Note 24 1o Lhe financlal statemeonts:

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

. There has been no delay In transferring ameounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protectlon Fund by the Company,

8. The flnancial stalements for the year ended March 31, 2017 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmaodified opinion on these financial statements on May, 25 2017,

For 5.8,

Eatlibol & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants
IEAIFire Realstralion Mumber: 301003E/ES00005

per Jitendra H. Ranawat

Partner

Memborship Number; 103380
Place of Slgnature: Mumbai g 7 :
Date: May 14, 2018 e
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Aonexure § relerred to under the heading “Report on other legal and requlatory requirements" of our
riport of even date

Fi; Kogta Finanelal (India) Limited ¢'the Campany)

(' (a) The Company hes malntained proper records showing tull particulars, Including quantitative details

()

()

LIl

Ciifl

Civy

v

vl

and sltuation of Hxed assels on Lhe basis of available information,

Flxed assets have been physically verified by the management during the vear and no material
discrepancles were fdentified on such verification.

According o the Infarmation and explanations glven by the management, the tlile deeds ol

immevable properties, Included in property, plant and equipment are hald In the name of the
Company.

The Company |s a service provider and primarily rendering assel financing services and does not
invelve inventarles and, accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 2iy of the Order are nod
applicable to the Company.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Cotnpany has gramted unsecured

loans to other partles covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Aet,
2013, In respect of which:

2) In our aplnion, the rate of interest and ether terms and cenditions of Uhe grant of such loansg
are, prima facle nol prejudiclal to the Company's Interest,

by The repayments of receipts of loans so granted are regular andias per stipulated,
t) There is no overdue amount in payment of principal and interest In respect of such loans

In eur oplnion and according to the Infarmation and explanations given to us, (he Company has
complied with provisions of Section 1B5 and 186 of the Companies Acl, 2013 In respect of isans,
investments, guarantees and securltles,

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companles (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not appllcatie.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company |s not in the business of sale of any

goods, Theretore, In our opinlon, the previslons of clause 3003 of the Crder are nat spplicable ta the
Company.

(vil) (e} The Company Is regular In deposlting with apprepriate authorities undisputed statutory dies including

(@

F'jr
.-'\\:'
(R 'l.i‘“'

provident fund, Income-lay, employee's state Insurance, goods and service tay, service tax, coss
and other statutory dues applicable to It. The provision relating to sales tax; custom duty, excise
duty and value added tax are currently not applicable to the Company,

According tothe Information and ex planations given o us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
cf provident fund, income-tax, employes's slate Insurance, goods and service tax, service tax, and
other statutory dues applicable to It were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months frem the date they became payalile, The provision relating to sales tax, custom duty, exclse
duty and value added tax are currenlly nol applicable to the Company. —
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(ed  Aceprding to the [nformation and explanations alven to us, there are no dues of goods and servies

Cwiiid

i)

£

Cxi

iy

Cxili)

Oy

tax, service tax, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute.
According to the records of the Company, the follewing dues outstanding of Income-tax have nol
Lh_e_ﬁ_n l:_IapnsIted on account of disputes:

i) Kl il ] M e
Ii‘l;fg{lne Ttk Incame Tax 27424 AY 200607 Assessing Olficar
T;;TE Tt Income Tax ) 8461~ AY 200607 | Asspssing Officer
Ilrg:g?@ Fax Act, Income Tax 1,74,723" AY 200607 Assassing ﬂ.lii;:.e-r
EETE YRR Agh Income Tax _ 7.200" Ar"r‘. 2006-07 fssessing ﬂ-l-ﬂcer

“ Anplication for rectiflication of demand is flied and pending with Assessing Officer
hs Informed, the provision relating to sales tax, custom duty, excise duly and value adided tax aro
currently not appllcable to the Company,

In our oplnion and according to the Information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, banl ar
apvernment or duas ta debenture holders;

In our apinion and according to the information and explanations glven by the management, the
Company has utilized the monles rafsed by way of debt Instruments in the nature of nen-canvertible
debentures and term loans for the purposes for which they were rafsed,

Based upon the audil procedures performed for the purposes of reporting the Lrue and falr view of
the financlal stalements and accordlng 1o the information and explanations given by the
management, we repoert that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Cempany has been notlced
or reported durlng the year,

According to the Information and explanatlons given by the managemeont, the managerial
remuneration has been pald/provided In accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule ¥ to the Companies Act, 2013,

In cur epinfon, the Company 15 net a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 30D of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commaented upan,

fecerding Lo the Information and explanations given by the management, transackions with the
related parties are In complisnce with section 177 and 188 of Companles Act, 2013 where appllicable
and the detalls have been disclosed In {he notes Lo the financlal statements, as required by Phe
applicable accounling standards,

fccording to the infermation and explanations glven to us and an an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has net mads any. preferantial sllotment or fully ar partly convertibla
debentures during the year under review. However, the Company has made privete placement of
0.01% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares. The reguirements of Section 42 of the Companies
Act, 20132 have been complied with and the amount ralsed has teen used for the purpose for which
the fund was ralsed,

According te the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
sntered Into any nop-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred Lo
insectlon 192 of Companles Act, 2013,
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L) According te the information and explanatlons given to us, we repart that the Company has been
roglstered as requlred, under the pravisions of section 45-14 ol the Reserve Bank of India Aok, 1934,

for 5.1, Batlibol & CO, LLP
thartered Accauntants
LA Firm Reglstration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Jtendra H, Ranawat
Farinar

Membership Number: 103380
Flace of Signature: Mumibal
Cate: May 14, 2018
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF CVEN DATE OM THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KOGTA FINANGIAL (INDIA) LIMTED

Beport on the Internal Financlal Controls under Claise (1) of Sub-section 3 of Sectian 143 of the Companles
Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

To the Members o Kogta Flnancial {Indla) Limiled

Vie have audited the Internal financlal controls over financial reporting of Kogta Financial (ndia) Limited ("the
Company”) as of March 31, 2018 In eonjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
fur thie year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financlal Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Interpal financial conlrols based
an the Internal conlrel over financial reporting criterla established by the Company consldering the essentlal
cimponents of infernal contral stated o the Guldance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting jssued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of India, These responsibilities Include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal Mnancial controls thal weee operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficlent conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errers, the
atcuracy and complefeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliabla financlal
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibllity

Cur responsibility is to express sn opinlon on the Company's internal financlal centrels over flinanclal
reporting based an our audit, We conducted our avdit in accordance with the Guldance Note on Audit of
Internal Financlal Controls Cver Financial Reporting (the “Guldance Mote") and the Standards on Auditing as
speciflled undar section 142010) of the Compantes Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal
financlal controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla. Those Standards and
{he Guidanee Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to abtain
reasciable assurance about whether adequate Internal financlal cantrels over financlal reporting was
established and malntained and I such contrals operated effectively In all materlal respects.

Cur audlt Invelves perfarming procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the aceguacy af the Internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and thelr operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal
financial controls over financlal reporting Included obtaining an understanding of internal financlal controls
aver financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exlsls, and testing and evaluating the
deslgn and oparating effectiveness of Internal contiol based on the assessed rlsk, The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's Judgement, Including the assessment of the risks of materlal mlsstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar,

We Leliave that the audil evidence we have oblained 18 sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system ever financial reporting.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repoerting

A company’s Infernal flnanctal controel ever financial reperting Is a process designed to provide reasanatile
assurance regarding the rellablliity of financial reporting and the preparation of financlal statements far
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting princisles. A company's internal
fimanclal cantrol over financlal reporling includes those policles and procedures that (1) pertain te the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactlons and
dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasenable assurance that transactions are recorded
as ngcessary to permit preparation of financial statements in acdordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendiures of the company are being made only In accordance with
authorisatlens of management.and directors of the eompany;and (3) provide reasanable assurance regarcding
prevention or Umely detection of unautharised acquisition, use, or gispasition of the company’s assels thal
ol have a materlal effect on the financlal statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrals Over Flnancial Reparting

Bocause of the inherent limitatlons of internal financial contrels over financial reporting, Including the
rassibility af collusion or impraper management cverride of contrals, matertal misstatements due Lo error ar
fraud may occur and nat be delected. Alse, projections of any evaluation of the Internal financial controls
aver financial roporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
linancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degres of
eempliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinlon

I our epinlon, the Company has, in &ll materlal respects, an adequate interpal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financlal cantrols over Mnanclal reporting were operating effectively as
al March 31, 2018, based on the Internal eantral over financlal reparting criteria established by the Cempany
tansidering the essential components of Internal condrol stated in the Guidance Note an Audit of Interpal
Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Instifule of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R, Batlibol & CO, LLP
Chartersd Accountants
ICAl Firmn Registration Number; 301003E/E300005
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KOGTA FINANCIAL (INDIA) LIMITED

Dalinee shoet as at 31 March, 2010
r—

Hotes 31 Mareh 2010 31 March 2047
e Chmaunt tn Rs.) (hmoont ln 124.)
LEaehy-ari Hobiiies "~ SE . L e ]
Shafthalders' lunds
SrnalEcaplial I £3,44,058,000 L2920 1,000
s Sves S0 sl 2 54,74, 18,8249 A4, 08, P2 bR
ol 10, 18,60 B7.01,53,628
Mo *tarranl llabllitles
Lengterm borrowlngs 3 156,79, 32,256 79,05,99.106
LanQlerm provisions a4 2,70, 86695 a8 A4 TIT
15%,09,16,95% ¥9.95,65.023
Currat flabiitlez
Shorierm barrawings G 47 15 80571 A7, 1830016
Traclt paysbles & 26,004,039 13,689,037
Othet turrent liabilitios & 116,043, 77691 B7.25,02,070
Shartterm provisiony i 1,45,2L,16% 59,456,262
lﬁﬁ.ZA,EE.dTEI'_ 108,17,27, 2858
TOT AL a83.52 372,248 A2, 14, 44 930

[Rerek e

Non-tirrent assate

Froperty, plant pnd equipment 7 236,22 440 2,01,50,482

Inta rgibie assets ¥ 49,28,373 36,771,993

Hon currenl invesLients B 3;01,30 361 -

Oetottod tax assel g {not) ] 35,32,710 BA7.841

Loart and advances 14 20,590, 60,540 10122,51,0648

Othernon-cwrent assets 11 £,306, 16,700 413,308,324
£16,35,14,681 107,02,59, 208

Current assots

Curresl lwestments 12 . 10,30,00,000

Casly and benk balances 13 18,03,44,531 LO99.51,677

Learsand advancns 10 14856, 65,543 104,07,12,268

Othercurreat Bssels 11 18,57,07,.160 6,45,21,796
176,1T,17,624 134,31,85,647

TOTAL A03,.52,32,245 242,14,44,930

Summary ol sigalficant accounting pofleles |

The accompanying nates ore an Intearal part of the financsl statemonts, ]

For 5., Batilbol & Co. LLP Forand on behall of (he Boand of Directors

Charterod Accountants of Kogta Financlal {Indla) Limited

ICA Flrm Req, Mo, : 301003E/E3000056 \ {
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Jitendre H. Ranawal FRATRG T 5'“ - ., Ko Hogha A

Partrier i, {Chalrman} {Man thor & CEG)

Membeeship Ne, LF3380 .."’l;fr*. DI Q0187552 DI D51097T22

Place: Jalpur
Rate: 14.05.2018

e

Rahul &grawal

{Company Secretary)
Memberalilp Mo, 434034

Flace: Jalpur

Dated 14.0%.20168
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Varun Kogla
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Statement of pratit and loss tor the voor ended 31 March, 2018

Rotes 31 March 20140 3L Mareh 20LT
Chamount In e {Aamount n ks,
came - SRR Sl
Reda e Iram operalivie id 63,61, 39 635 _19,!'.:-'.[,'."2,3 G
Tl Ingarmi L I, Ak 51,054,040
Foka| povenie &1 64,1756, 120 Al 12,57, 507
E'Jll'lm;:n;'- i = fEn R SR T TR
Ermplayes banelits eugangy Lix 11,9220 3459 5,?1:.39.3_?:2
Begsractatian and amorlizatlon sxponse iv V4,415,339 A, S
fMinance costs 18 20,30,67 865 20,1052, 840
ither eipenses 3] 10,05,07,802 TALAZ17E
Frondsiong & weite oifs 20 3,14 33,202

fotal exponses (I

W, Profit hefore exceptionsl lboms and Lax €-11)

¥, Becpgllanal items @ Prafll an sale of land & Larllding trodor nate ne, 8,13

Y, Pradlt Befare tax 011193

I, Taox axpeénso;
Cibireil fox

FPertainiig to prafltfass) for the curront parlod

Mchiustsent of Law relating Do o ler pariads
Deferrad tax
Total Tax expensy

il Profit{tassd dar tho yoar from sontiouing asperetians &yl

Eqrnlng per equity shire [Homlia! vakse of siaron Re. 10y-

01 Mareh 2017 fis. 10/-3)
dasie

Compiled on the basis of Latal profi for fhe LT

Diluted

Comnpubed on s basis of fotal proflt for tha yoar

Serimary of slilticant accpemting pollcies

The acecmpanying notes are an Intogral part of (h financlal statements,

Fur 5.R. Batllhol & Ca, LLP
Chartered Accountants )
ICAL Flrm Ry, Moo @ 3010036/ E300605

“ovlomened

diteridra 4, Ranawat
Pariavg
Memborship Ma. 103380

laee: Julpur
Dated 14,05.2010

1,16,02,205

H4,1%, 63,3061

FE,00A4, 235

100,038,767

1,685,240, 500

512,135,660

207,76, 7LY

o ALTLINETS

- 7,10,68,381

RIN RS TESE

o

=

fiahul Agrawal
(Company Socretaryd
Mernbarship Mo, AZ4034

Place: Jalpur
Cote: 14.06.20L0

A6, B0, 00 225,060,000
4,65% G5, 065
26,54, 809 {3,34,108)

__ 33650763 2E BT
B, 3268400 A,97 2T 006
n41 5.8
16 4,53
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LRGTA TINARLIAL O NGIA) LIMITED
fash fow statoments far the yonr ondid Marsi 31, 5010

Iastlc

oy

L EL March 2038,
SitAmiunt In R

a1 March 2017

ok In Re3

F.3

Cavah ot froin eporoting setisitles:

Profit before fox

Adjasliment to reconctlo profil Bofore tax 1o net cosh flaws

Depprociation &nd gmartizstion

Impairmentf odher write off ar tasgible/ Iidanglile assots

Pravision for standard aad nem peflarading assets
Frovledon e Sraluily

Rossi{Meafity on sols of praperty, plant and egulpmiang
Mel onln} lass on s of current lovestmonls
Inderost papdnses an winlele lbans

Fontal Incamae

Aumneblration af ancliary cogl

Coerating prafit belore warklng capital elonges

Maviements v worhing sapliai
Cinereasenfdecrosad B oams and advances
tincrsasdl/ decrsase In allier cirrent ssgels

11,71,30, 273

74,45, 337
1,785,568
1,36,24,634
LB, 0040
L1, P02, 200)
1L, 00, #35)
378972

{4, a54)

1,667,137

L3 58:01,024

(1,50,60,43.261)

7,10.00,208

49,06, 544
72050
44,018,365
&5, 500
(2,09,55,150
(6,40, 1 248
450,572
(3,02 90
1,23,1E,391

Tl 83,417

{61, 40, 5506

(2,54,27,904) (5,33,10,792)
(Inceeaseyfdocrense In ather nen current assels 9,123,060 (11, 2 K0
neressei'decrease (i Dank deaosliy (283882610 {4,252 1,745)
fnereaselfdecrense |n Insstmonts (381,332,351 36, 15,475
Increace /e eagel n lang Lerm boimowlivgs TT,49,07,.877 22,00, 50,002
Ircresseficeerensed Inshorl Ledm Borrowligs L A0, 3450 E20,A3,82,99%
Incressmf{docrease) In other currsrt Babiiiies $8.55, 15,621 L6 B5 G507
Ingreasefidecroase In trade payatiles TEA5.002 (764,105

Losh gankratod fromfiused Iny eporations (764,26, 8560} {3,70,95,6565)
Cerwcl Lapes palddned of fefunds) LS D000 41,67, 13,150
Het Cash How fromi{used [0} operdting activithes (A} (10,17, 206, 550 (5,306,000 19y

Bl Canh Flow tram Investing activitios s -0 1

T

Ly

Furchage al iked assels, Including CWIF end capiial advances

545 30 1805

1, L6,56,575)

Proceed frmm salo of dixid as50is 1,94.24,700 2, 14,40, 785
Furchast of curien! nvesimonts (00, 00003 {55, 00,00, 000
Praceads from sale/maturity of current Investmend s 42,14,00,235 Al 0B,A0,124
Rental Incame 4,008,454 agd g
hiet Cash Fiow tromf{usad lnd Investing Activitios (O} 10, 6, 73,200 R
€. Gash Flew Irom Financlng Ackivifles © T Tt
Procesds from lisuance af preleronce share caplla 51,20,000 332,081,000
Securltlos Premium recelvod on issue of Share Cagliat 3.408,32,000 21,3520, 647
Interest pald on vehlete loon AT6.972) 4,58, 5T
Praseads from vahlele loans BL.67.500 s
Bepayment of wehicle loang a2, 220 {2Y64,670
Dividand pald an dquliy shares (96.00,100) (3,44, 00,100
Cilwidend palf oo preference sharss (14772 .
Tax on enuily dlvidend poid (15,54, 3000 (29,30 875
Tax.on preference dividend palz (301 E:
_Het Cael Frow drom/usad In) Finanaing Aclivilles (&) 3,00.44,005 22,62, 50,733
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BT A FINARE AL SINBIAY LIMITED
Caxls [low statoments dar the year endod March 31, 2018

A

{3 Maren 2017
g hmat T I s

Pt ineroass/tdecrease) In cashand cash squivalénts (A & 8 &£

3,52,90,007 B AR, 231
Simhand cash enulvaiants at the beglnning of Lh Wl L0, 77,299,577 246,05, 445
by and covh oguivalonts ot the ond of the year L, 38, ATV 2ETT
_Canpanents of c2sh ond cash equlvalints
LCizky o hand 2,33,56,030 124,26, 700
Tagues { orafls on hand
Mith Lnnics—on ewtrend secaupd B,7%,42,224 .5 3,08.867

- on cepedll secoan JRER2, 00 .

Mikal Eashiand cas Boaulvalents s 5 v bea | e 0

i e S A O,

i A0, T RS G

Lsmpry af sigelllcant accountlag palichys
Tia accompanying rale leem an intagral parl of e Misanclsl statemmts

Fie SR Batlibol & Cow LLP
Churierod Accowntanis

FCAL Fiem Reg, o, :wlnnawzi::iﬂns-
?574 M»L

Jllsrdra H, Fanasal
Firlaer
WEmberdhig Ma. LOSI80

Phece! Jalpm
Dite: 14052018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

o the Mamibers of Kogla Financial (ndias Limitpad
Report en the Audit of the Financial Statements

Orpinlon

Wiehave auditad the accompanylng Hinanc/al statements ol Kopta Financlsl (ndiad Linited (the Company™), which
comprise-theBalance sheot as at-March 31 p2AS he Statemant 'of Profit.and Loss and the Cash Flaw Stalemon}
Tor the year then ended, and netes lw the financial stiteimenls, Ineteding a summary of sionifican eccinting
pelicies and other explanalary inforinsllon,

I oy nniili'p_n_a'ér_ln:l to the lest-of our infermptian. and aceteding to the e':c;'aranar:lsm]s dilven to us; the aforesald
financial statemenls glve the linfarmat lan fequirad by the Companies ot 2053, se alnended {tha Aoty inthie

MERNer so regquived and give & drueand alf vigw I canformity with the.accounling principles sencrally accepted.
inlniciz, af the state oF aifsirs of the Company-gs abMArelHL, 2009 tsprolit and te casli fowe for the yearendad

on that date,
Basls for-Opinian

W{f.emrlucteﬂ'ﬁunaudlt glthe fnanciatetatements inacenrdanos Withohe Standdrdz on Autditing (5hs), as specified
Anidersgiction 1430103 of the Acl, Qur responsibiiities underhose Standards arefurt s déseribed in the ‘Auditer's
Respansibllities for the Aldit ot the Financial Statements’ section of pur report, We are independent af the
Company'in ackordatizs with the *Codd o1 Eites! Issued by thednstity ot Chartered Adcountants of India (1A
tagether with the ethical requiresnents that are rileant 1o our audlt of the fingncial statements under the
RrEovislans 6 thi Act-and the Rule s thereunder, ayidive hayefulfiled our otherelhics] tesponsibilitiosin accordance
with these réquirements and:tha Code of Ettics, We finlleiie that-the iidit evidence we have obfained is sufficient
and appropriate 1o provide - biasis for ouratdit oplnicn on the financlal statements,

Key Audit Matters:

#ey andit-matbers are those matters thal, fiy pur prafessional judament, werg of mnsk significance In our auditef

thie finangial staterhents tor the vearended Marchaa, 2048, Thase matters wereaddressed In thevonte xt af our

aud|l ol e Tifancial stétements as s-whale, and I farming Gur apinien (h BrECH, and we do nol arovide g separsfa
oiindonenihoss matters, For edchmatierhe low our description of how gur auditaddressed the mattar s prowvided
I thiat ‘contex,

We have determined the tatter des cribed belowto be'the key sudit matier Lo be communicated In our report, We
have fullilled the responsibitities described In fhe Audibor's responsibilities for the aydit of the financlal statements
section ofour reparl, Inéluding in relation to fijese matters, hocordingly, oy audit ineludled the porformance af
pracedires. designed ko respond Yo our assessmeht of the risks of material missiatemuent o the financial
stalements. The résilts of ol audit procedures, h];iu#irjg';lhi’.'ntmgﬂuﬁ;s' performed fo address the matter Lo,
previde the basis for nur-audit opinion on thie aceempan ying financial statomants,

oy audlt matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter
tdant|fication Nan-Perfarming Advaneces and provisloning for Advances (as deseribed in note 2,1 (B of e
finanelal siat armints)

Loans and advarcos censtilute & majar portion of | our ket audll provedures ingluded:
the Company's assets and lhe quality g AR .
Enmrﬁhﬁ'{a'r;. 145:’:'."'1#1 portfolie ism Eastni‘ﬁ"ln“:t erﬁ:m J' *  Assessed (He desigh, Implemantation and aperaling

- : At : flectivensss at kay Interhal controls over monltering
the proportion of non-performing assets tPAz) Lo i i A
the total loans snd alvances, As al March 31, 2019, process of lovans, Identiflcation of NPA accounts,
the Company has reporled tokal gross fosne and measurement of provision and Bssessing the
advantes of s, 54,834.54 lakhs (Marcy 31, 2018; | Telabilly of managament Information, incfudling
Rs. 34,893,951 [akhs), gross nan-oerfarming overdye reports,

advances of Rs, 1,858.73 lakhs (March.31, 201 8: 3

: : Tasted of manaoement's conbrols over ientilication
ks 1,078.26 lakhs) and a carrespanding provislan

ol NPA'S ang measuremenl af pravisions and

for non-pecfaliming advances of 'Ry, 254.20 Ik disedosures in ﬁr.angrm_g:'gfm-_._uu;,‘,-,

LdMarch 31, 2018: Rs. 137.05 lakhs),
[r i
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Key audit matters .
lrlu_n}iﬁf:,alim:_amr1:-|'<.|vis'lnn1r1;| of WRASL s governil - :
by thie prutential norms presciired by the Reserve:| * Redd accounting - poficles  adopted by  the

How our audit addressed the key audit matier

Bank of India 4RBI Directions), These norms management and tested data used In  the
proseribe several criteria fora loan to be classificd MF-’.“““C””“” Wl NPAS and measurement of provision
5 BINPA Ircluding overdue aging, amutints

= Traced celculation of NPK provision as al 51 March
2019 calcylated by the managemant and &ésessed
compliance: with the dninimium REY guidelines and
Company's aceatinting pelicy as desciibed Innote 2.4
(0} o the: lnancisl statermznts, Unterstood the
Judgements applied By the Company B respect of
“reas wheredne ascceintingtreatment sdopled dr the
dlisglosures miade unien tho accounting Tramewark

| i . trom thie extant RBIDR@knns,

Givan the volume of loans, Judgernent bs invalved in
| the shlication. of RO ddems for classilicalion of
loans as MEA and in view of {he signif kcance ol thts
ared to theo vedall audiltal-Tinancial statermants, B
has tgeh considered asa ey -aud|t matier,

aitherinfermation
The Lomppank's Boatd.of Diféclyes Is responsible dor the.other information, Theptige Ifarmation rompriséd the

dntarmiation Included ie thegnnua! teprrl, but-doss not Includs (he financhal statement s and our-audiler's repart
thereon,

DUEBEINEoN an e Tinenclal SEtE s does tol cover the other intormation and weda nolexpeass any farm of
assurance-conclusion thereon, . '

I cennactiorWith utsuditof the financial stafements; our respensibilily 15 o redd ili# ciher Infekmatlon identified
abave d@nd; ' ‘doing S0, congitlel whothior sueh olher information ls migkerlally inconsiEtent with the ffnancial
statements, or our' knowladberoblalied In the audll of otherivise appears 1o be malecally misstated. If, based A
thie o We bave:parformed, b_nﬂi'hg' ather informatian that e have obtalied priorts 1he date of this auditor's
reparl, we coneli e tiatindre s maler & misstatoment of this other ihiermation, Wi are réqulred 1o report thet:
fact, Wi have nothing Lo reiort 10 1hsvegard,

Rasponsibilities &f Msnagement and the Bosrd of Directors for-the Financlal Stateiments

Thé Company's Board of Directérs is-responsible forithe mattors stated Iy decion 134(5) of the At with resprct
ta-the prepartion of these financial statements:ihat ‘glve atrug and far view of tie finantial position, financial
Herformanic and césh Tlows of the Company in sccordance with the seeounting printlples generally sceefited in
Indla, ineludisig the Campenles (Accounting Stanidayds) Rules, 2006 ¢as-amendet) speciiied under section 133 of
ibe Act, read with the Companies (Accounls) Rides, 2014 25 amiended, This besponsiility alse inclades
faintenshce of ddeqiateaciunting records in aecordance wilh the proviskons of e Actf of saleguarding of the
acselsof the Company and [of preventing and deterting trauds and other réqblanties; selection an Aaplication
ofanpropriste accounting palicles; making Judgments and wstimakes thal e reasopable and prodent; and the:
design, impigmentation-and malmtenance of sdeqyste internal fnahcial coitios, Hhat-wiere operating effectively
fof enstiring the acturacy wind complateness of the accounting fécords, relevant to Mhe prepacation and
presentation.of the finantlal Statements that glve & trug and fair view and are feeefram material imisstatement’
whelher due Todfraud srsrror,

I preparing tha finangial stalervients, mansgement s responsible for asspssing l!_ae:{"-;pm'pnny's ability 1o continue

as:a going concern, disclosing, as apnlicahle, mnllers fé¥ited to going concern and using We aeing condern basis

of accounting unless managenient ellher intends 4o lguidate: tha Company ot to cease operations, or has no
reallsticialforaative bal to.de 5o,

Those Board of Direglors dre plsd respondible for overseeing the Company's financial Feprting process,

Au;!lirﬁsr'-sRes_pnnﬁlbllltles for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Fobiectives are-to obtaln reasdnalileassurance aboul whether the finandial sbaleinents as a whale are free from

pvintecial nlsstalement, whether due |o fraud or orrorp, el fo lssoe an audibor's ceport Thal ineludes our oplnion.

L
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f-%%,n'ﬂibﬁ‘* assurance i5-& high level of assurance, bul ks nol a guarantes that an audit canducled In aceordance
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with She wiil dlways detect a material misstatement when il exists. Misslatoments can arise Trom fraud or errar

£il areconsitierad material ily individusily or in the agaregate, they coutd reasol ualily e exprcled to influence the
economic declsions pf userstakion on the basis of thise financial slatemants.

Asrarl SLan sodit inaccordanco with Shs, we

: EROTGISE professional judgment and maintain prefesslanal <k epticism
ihreughout the g, Weals;

3o Identify bnd assess the risie of materlal misstatemant of 1he financial stéteinents, whether due to fraud
B erter, desion and perterm audit proceady res responsive to those risks; alsd abtain audit evidence that 5
sufficient and appripiriate to provide a bdsis for bur oplnion. The Fisk of not delceling a material
misstatement resulting fram fraud is hilgher-Lhaly for dne resuiting trom erice, as fraud Moy nvniee
ealluslon, Fargery, intantional omissions misreprosentations, or Hie overrfde of Internaf contral,

2. Dhtalran undorsianding of internal contial refevant Lo e audit in order to dasign audil procedures Hiat
are pprapeiate i the circumistances. Lr'rﬂi:fc'.ﬂe-:t_[nn 1a3c3xn of thie Aict, we are also, responsible for
Epressing oun apinlén on whelher the Company has adeguate internal finanakal gintrols systers n place
and the-operating effecliveness of suchtontrols.

. Evalate the approbriateness of accounting pbliclas used and the reasanablenass of accquling estimates
and refated distlosares inade by managemenit,

de Conclude anthe:anpropriateness.nf mansgemiept’s use ot Lhe galiin Lonceny basis of acaounting and,
bazid on’ the: i gviditice: obitained, whicther & matarial unicertainly: tosts relaled to events o
eenditions that may vk slgnificant deubtin the'Company's auilifty to.contlnue a5 a polng conceri, IEpe
cariclunethat a:material un;c-rtg!nw.-q:{f_sgt;;:y.rp.-q_afjg_:‘.r_ﬁm;srr_ri.;ij_1.q;ﬂr'.‘a_'iﬂ.{ai.‘tt’é’:iﬂﬁ:'r'ifln our audiler’s report to
‘e Telated diselosures Inthe financial slatements or, if such, distlosures arg inadequate, to modify. our

opinlin, O ehriclosling St hised on the auditevidence oltained up ta-the date.bt ourauditor's repiort,

Hewaver, futun __ﬁyh_ms-"n_r"hérjﬁi_t_f;}nsm'g-,r'ﬁ_@'gﬁ:tﬁia‘:comp'ahy;in.ceaae'lu‘fmnl.l_nueas a gaing-eoncern,

5, Evaluate the guérall presentation, strueclure: ang contenl of ihe pancial stalaments, Tncluding the
distlos ures; ant whethisr iy finangial stitemerits représentihe underlying transactions and eveiits in a
ranner hat achleves fair prasentation.

Wecorimunicale with those chargad wilk govetnancesragarding, smong ofher matters, the planned scopa and

timing of the =udilwnd sianificant auditfingings, incliding'any sionificant deficiencles d4n nternal eofitrol that wa
idantity ouring our audit.

We also pravide these charged With-govarniance wilh a-statement fhat we have complied with relevant ethival
requlmmantsiregqminlgin’li_é'pe_'nddﬁi:_e, and to cammunicate with themall relationships-and other fatters thal mey
reasonably betholight te bear 'on sur Indepanidence, and Where Apmlicable; refatad Salediards.

Fram the tialters commilnleated with those cherged wilh gavernanice, we determine those-matlérsthal were of
mosk signiticance in the-aud(l of e tinancial statetnents for the financlal year ended March 3%, 2019 and are
therefare the key aidit matters. We describe. those: matlers in our sudiiars Fepant Arless law or regulation
nieclidas publicdisclosird-about the maltar orwtien; Invexdremely rare circumstaices; wa detecnilie fhol & matier
should not be cnm'rniilﬁiﬁatpg{ in e repoet Lratatize: Lhe adierse consedquences of dnifg. &0 would reasonably b
srpected to outwelgh the public interast benefils of sush communical ok,
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Report an Gther Legal and Regulatory Reguitems mts

1. As reguired by the Companes {Auditon’s: Reporly Qrider, 2016 (“the Order™, lssusd by (he Ceantral

Government of Indio In terms of sub-sectiai (11} of seclicn 142 of the Acl, we-give in the "Annexire 15
tatement oo [he matters speciticd In paragrapts. and 4 of the Order,

2. hs renuired by Sectlon 143(2) of the A, we rapert 1lat:

{2y We have soughl and olilained a0l thesinfermation and explanalions which to the best of cur knawledae
andbelichwire pecessary for e purposes of oufaldit

&) Nrigiur opinien, proper botks of Zceolint dsrequired by law have bien _i-:gr}_l__';.}--;},lgg Company 5o far as It
appears lrom our examination of these bigks;

‘o) The Balance Sheet, Wie Stetement:of Profil and Loss-and the' Cash Flow Staterent dest with by this
Report are it doréetment with the beoks of dccount; Lai, bici

(e In our-tpinian, the aforesald financial statomenis comiply willi the prnp‘é‘ﬁh_s-{ﬁmodntlﬂu Standards)

Riles, 2006 (a5 amendedy spreified under section 133 of the Act, redd with fhe Companies (hccounts)
© Ruies 2014 as agrended; Tl '

(03 O Ihis basis'of the Willtah fepreséntalions recelved fromthe directors asion Mirch 31, 2019 (aker o
recoed by:the Board nf Di.m.tlfﬁ:;r.s;&ﬁp!i?‘.ﬂ'lﬁﬁ:le.tf.étb'r:.-_ I disqualified as e March 31, 2019 from bejhy
appninled asa directorIntaring of Section 164 (2hof the Act; i

13 With resiicet:to the atequacy of the Internal financial contrals over financlal reporting of e Company

witl reference o these ndngial statémentsand the operating effectivenass of such controls, referto

ourseparate Repsel Iy SAniakure 2% 4o this répoit;

{@) Wrddrapinion the mznageral fetiineration for the ye ar-endedMarch 31, 2019 hiss been pald/provided
iy ]T_ub'l:f{:rtipam']i:_:l'lEs_'d[rq?l:t_{:ffﬂﬁ,-;;ggiétﬂ_gp;g;Infu'ifh {he.provisions of seclion 197 read wilh Sehedule o
the:Att; ' ' h

{h. With respret to the other mattersito b ficludsd in the Auditorts Heport inagsordance with fuls 11 of
The Companics At NG Auditors) Riles, 2014, #% amenddd in sur oplnlon and ta The best of ir

intermation and zceording to theexplanations alven to us:
I The Company dbes not ave Any pending litigations which-would Impacl is financial position;

i, The Compary did qot have any long-term eontracts Inghiding derlvative contracis for which there
were-any malecial loresoeible osses: and

Hii.. There were no ataounls which were rewiired fo, be trarisferrai'to {he Investor Educslion and
Pratection Fudd by, the Company,

Tor S, R: Batlibal & Co, LLP
Chartered Acgountants N
Qﬂlﬁﬂ Flrm Reqistration Numbior: 301003F/E300005
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per Shrawean Jalan
[*artner )
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Anmukuie 1 referred to under the heading "Reportan
of even datoe

Page 5 of 8

othier legal and regulatory requirements” of our seport

fie: Rogta Financlal Gndia) Limited Cthe Company's

Az
£ixh)
(e
(it

Liiey

vy
)
vy

{viigda)

il

(wiidc)

According to the Information and explanations given ta us, Were are no dues

The Company has maintained propsr retordiShawing full partiowlars, Inciyding guantitative detalls and
lteation of fieod assets,

Fixed aseets have booi TS ksaily werllied By (he managoment dw‘]uu. e year and ne mabigia)
distrapancies were noticed o sus heyeiificstios,

According Lo the Infarmation and explanations glven by the management, the {itle doeds of immavablz
Prepertiesincluded W property, plantand eauipiment/ fised agsots are hatd in the name of the Company,

The Cotapanls bilsiiess dops ot invalve Inventoriesand, accordingly, the fequiremants unier paradrapli
AtilYol the Qrder are not appl icabile-to the-Cdmpany.

Acordin {b.thu-!‘qibrmatlan andf explanations yiven 1o us, the Company hias granted ursecured laans to
'_is_!!:ist:;I i yf;?]g_&-ﬁﬁveruﬁ'lﬁ the reglster maintalned linder.seekion L8 el he Compantes Act, 2013, In respect
tiwhich: - '

# Wibyroplnton, the rale of fiiterest ant pther tarms anid:conditions ot ffve granl of such loans are,
primiafacie not prefudicial to-the Compali’s tnterest.

b), The schedule el repayment of prinlaal and payment of Interest tag Hetn stipllated for the loans:
granted and the fepayment/raceiils dra regular,

(] ”1‘1_1?: rechs no avdrdié amount i payment iof Brintipal and interast i fespectol such loans,

I aur aplnion and accarding bo th infarmation and explaiatisps gven t4/4s, the Company has romplied
with-provisions of Section 185 wod. 186 0f tha-Companies Act, 20239 respect.of aans, Investments,
buafanteps atd secuiilies,

TheCotmirany b not accepled any-tlepesits Within the meaning of Sectiofis 73 to 76 of the Aet and the
Cempanivs (hrcoptanca of Deposits) Revllis, 2014 (a5 aimignided), Arcordinglyi e frovistons of clause 300
of' the:Qrer arenatanplicalis,

Tothe hest of euknowlede-anid a5 explajned, thie Company-isnel Inthe bisliess of sale of any goads,
Théretare, Inoyr .n_p1n|3:m_, the provislons of ¢lause. 3oy of Pho Qrder arenot applicable to the Company.

Undisputed statutory dusyincluding piovident fund, employvess’ slate Insurance, poods and service tax,
cessand ofber slalutory, dues have generally besn reaulasly deposited wilh'lhe appropriate aulhoritics
thisigh thiere have been delays in'few cases. The provisions'relating to duty o customs, duty of excise,
value added tax afd cess are notapplicanle torthe Company.

According to the Infprmation and explanations givin to s, fo undisputed amoupils payable in respect of
provitienl funid, iicome-tax, goods and servizes fﬂx._ employees” stale Insurangs and other statutory doos
were outstanding, al tho yaar end, for a porlad of forethan six menths from $hie date they begame

payahle. The provisions refating to duly of customs, duty of excize, value added tax and cess are not
applicable to the Company,

] of carme tax, sales-tax,
sofvice Laey customs duly, excise tuly, value added tax and cess wihilch have 1ol baan depasitad on
accountof any disaute.

In aur opinion and accerding fo the informationand explanations Given by the mansgement, the Comps
hits not dafauited- i repavment of loans or Borfowing to's financlal nstitution, Bank or governmen
dues bo debenture folders,

my
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{ix) According to the information and explanations given by the mansoement; 1o Company hez not aised

L)

4l

@

b4 H]

€ihey

vy money by way of Initial pullic gfler orfurther pullic gfier

Further; money ra Istd by the Company by way of non-converiibie desentures-and lerm foans were applicd
for lhﬂ_purpﬂﬁe__:r’{}r sl thgse were ralsed, Ehoygh jole/ surplus funds which were not eoauited foi
immediate utillzation were gainfully Invested in lguld assets payatila diri dEmantt,

‘Based upon the audit prosedwesiperformed 15r'the purpases of reporting the true and tair view of the

finandial statements and according to the infaimation and exianstions aiven by the managament, e
reper] thal o fraud by the Company or na‘n‘i_aieul'lql'irr'uuq an the Tompany by the dfficers and employecs
bithe Compsny has heer npticed or répndedduting the year.

Aggording to the Jn[nr:rrratlun_-:ﬁmi exelanation given by $he Mdnagenient; e imdnager|al remunerallon
has gen paidin‘ateotdance With the requisite appravals mandated by {h e provisions af sactjon 197 rond

with Schedule ¥ to the Companles Act, 2015,

In.our-bpinion, theCompany Isnita Nkiicompany. Tlmrelqﬁg_ﬂr[na p}_rgﬁﬂqhé_,_ﬂf:; laise 300 af the order
are ot dpplicablé to 't Company Bid henge hot.commanted upan. iy
JActording Lothe foformation and gxplanations given by the management: transactions with the related
wetalls have haen disgloged in the noles Lo the finantil stalements, @5 reauired by ‘the -appllcable
aedgunting standards, - 3 :

Aectriing Lorthe ftoroatianang egptanations dlven to.us and or:an averaliexaiination of the halance

 sheet, e Company has-not amade any préferentisl NOtmERt or illy orpartiy converlibld debenturcs

Auting the year under review. However, (he: Company has mide private placement of 0.0001%

| Compulsony Convartible Préferdnce Shares: The requirements ol Sectivndz ol the Compan|ssidet, 2014

G

Lyl

éf?jﬁrﬂﬁeﬁﬂ wosnplied with ard the amolnt ralse has been ysad for-thepurpase for which 1he Tond was
cilte: . _ RN ., :

:-ﬁ_r:_i:h_rr‘ﬂﬂ'g fathe Infarmation ahd explanations given by the management; the Company hasipol entered

Inta any non-cash transactions with directors or persons coniected with Him asreferred 1o In section 162
of Eoniganies Act,:2013:

According do tfh'e"nrrr:rma.ﬁqﬁ'_z_inq.ﬁzx_pmr‘ahj ons given to us, we reporl that the Campiany has teglstered ds
reduijred, under section 451 of the Reserve Banko! ndja Act, 1954,

Fors, R, Batiiinl & Co. LLP

Parkpe)

Membership Number: 102408

Place:NMumbaj
Dote: May 16; 2y

Chartared figeountants oy e
Gl Riron eoiatration, Number: 301003E/E300005.

marllesidne i conipliance with section 377:and 188 «f Companies-Ael, 2013 whers: applicable and 1S
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN BATE ON THE FINAKCIAL STATEMENTS
OF KOGTA FINANCIAL (NDIAY LIMITED

Report on the Internat Finanelal Controls under Clause £ of Sub-sectian 3.of Sectlon' 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act™y

We have audited the lntarna! financlal tontrals aver finantial reporting of Hedta Finaledal (ndia) Limited ¢“the
Company™yadof March 31, 2015 in conjunction with curaudit of Ehe Minaricial stiflerients of lhe Company far tha
year ended-pivthatidate,

Management's Responsibllity for Internal Financial Controls

The E;}mparw‘s'-Man_aa;cemerst'_ 1¢ regpunsiole for estatilishing and miaintaining internal financlal controls hazed. on
the Inléenal tontral owver financlal reporting criterin established by the Company. consldering the sssonlial
Gempanenls bf iternal éontral stated inihe Guidance Nole on Audit of Internal Firancial Controls Dver Financlal
Reportiig lssued by the Institute of Charlered Atioiintan!s of nd)a. These responsibilies. nelude the desig,
Implemeritation and maintenarce of atéguste: inia) finaniclal esnfrols that wers wperating effectively for
ensuring e oiderly and efficiant conduct of its businpss, including edharerice 16 the Company’s jpolicies, the
LEalequarding of s Basgls, Hh & prevention-ahd detectlon of fraitds and errars, Hie mecoracy-and. complatenass of
dhe accounting recopde; and the timely. prefaraticn ol refiable finoncial informalion, s required under the
'fﬂﬂ'{nn'eiﬂ'nésJ!l:‘t,.‘&'{:iis'. i

Auditors Resporisibiity

Our Fesponsibity g exprassanopinfonon he Comipany's intermal financial eonirgly over financlal reporting with
rolerence o'{liese financial statements hased oen-our audit, We conducted -qur i Boeordance with' th:
Guldance ote o Audil of Interial Finanelal Contrals Bver Financial Reporting fhe “Guidance Mota") anid the:
Standardson Auditinipas sj_:ec'ifiﬁti-L..rr:.:j.g.r'mgilqn_'-:i,'{t_?,;l_ﬂ,h aflhe Gompanies A, 2013, Ya'tha extent appllcsble o

anaudiy of Ttécnal fasncial controls and, botiissued by the dnstitute of Chartered Actotantsiof India. Those

Standaridsang .t.li.ﬁ:-ﬁt!id?.d.thiéﬁ't;'.t.i.i.é'rjﬂﬂultﬁztnﬁs W comply With ethical reguirerments ang plan and perform thi audit

to plitain reasonable assurar e aboyt whether adequate internal financial contepls puer'financial Teporting with:
roferance ta'these finkncal stalements was established and maintained and i such contfals operater effactivaly
i all misterial respects,

Our auditiinvolves perfertiing procedures o abtain aufit evidehce about the adegiiacy of the nternal financlal
cantrols over Hnancial reporting with referance to'{ivese | inencial stalements and it herating ef fectiveness,
Our audit’ pf iriternisl 1 Inancial controls.over financial reperticg indudad obilalningan Understanding of Intarna|
fimanelal gontrols-over fitiancial reporting With referenca bo 1hiese financial stelements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness ‘exists; and testing and evaiuating the design anil cperaling effgctivenass of internal contral
based on the assussed rigk. Tho pracedures selecied depend on tha.ﬂ||_-'_li_i"r:|r“s-ll;sg-;gm_a:qt;-:lh;_lm;l_lnq e acgessmotl
of the risks of maledial misslalement of e Hhancia) statements, whelher due'fa frauedior gmrpr.

We believe that:the audit evidence we have ebtzined is _sL_t_'ﬁ'iE-i_anL-a;_nd.:—:_nnm_m'iae;f&_-m_‘ﬁib_wuq a basls for our auil
eriniai on the intarnal financlal cantrols.over financial reporting with Feterencedn khese financlal slatements,

Meaning of internal Fliancia) Coritrol 5 Over Finanelal Reparting Willy Reference to'these Financial Statemente

A company’s intarnal fnancta) controt pver findnclal raperting with reference to Ihesa fnarcial slatervants s a
frocess dosigned to provide reasonable assurancs regafding (he reliability of firanclal reparting and the
preparation of financis statements for external purpses |} accordance wilh, yenedally accepied accounting
principles. A company's diternal financlal control over findncial reporting with reforents to these finapclal
statements includes those policles and procedures that (1) peclain to bhe maintenance of records that, i
reasonatils delail, acculately atel falrly refiect the transaelions aned tisposifionsof thesassets of tho Eipany; (2}
privide reasanable assuranze. (hat transactions are. récorded 85 necessary to permiit preparation of financial

statoments in accordance with generafly ac cepled abcounting principles, and that recelpts and expaniditures of the

company aré being made only in accordance wilh authorisations of managament and diréctors of thi compa ny;.
and (33 provide reasshalile assuranes regarding prevention or timely detectlon of unaklligrised acquisition, yse,

P 'iﬁ?ﬁﬁi'ﬁpuﬁiﬂuh of the bompany's assets that could have & materlal effect on the financial stalemants.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls Qyer Financlal Reportlng With Reference te these Sl andalone
Flnangial Statements

Recause of tha inherenl it ons o Internal finanelal conlrols over financil reporting with referenca to these
Hnancial statements, Including the. possibility of ‘callusion o Improper management Grerdide of controls, materfal
missfatements due to error o Traud may oceur and not be dalectod. Alsn, projactions of any evaluation of the
internal financlal controls over Tinanglal reportiog with reference to these financlal stafements ta fulure periods
wressublectta the risk (hat the Internal finanicial conliol over financial reporting wWithréference ta thase tnancial
statemiehts sy become insdicaate because of changes I conditions, or that the'dety'es of compliance with the
policies or pratedures may eleridrate., h

Oplnlon

\n our opinton, the Compagy las, Il all inaberisl raspeets, adanuate Tléinal lincal controls over financial
renorting with reference to these. financlal statements and such Iriternat inaicial contrdls over linandial reporting
with vefergnce Lo these flhanclal staternents were operaling effectively as ﬁﬁg;ﬁg@nﬁl, 2018, basar bp the
Internal controlover fihancial renortng criteria 2stanlished i the Gampany censidering the essential compenents
(ol internal control stated Intha Guidatics Hote o AL ol Internal Financial Conlebis Oyer Financial Reporting
issiied Byrthe Institute 6f Chartered Acountants ofndia. - i

Far SR Balllbe) &:Ce; LLP
Charlered Acrountants i
ACR} Firm Reglstration Numbor: 201 OOAE/EIQ00DS, -

iiﬁﬁt'ﬁhmﬂaﬂﬁihn
Padnar, 0 -
Membirship Nimber:d0z102

Place: Mumbai
Ble: May 18,2019
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KOGTA FINANCIAL (INDIA) LIMITED

JBalnhico shget ng ol 31 Mareh, 2019
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KOGTA FINANCIAL (INDIA) LIMITED

Sratodnent of profll and losy for 4w year endogd 31 March, 2076
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S.R. BatLiso1 & Co. LLP 20 St aga or
Chartored Accountants Mumbe - 429 026, ndle

Tel: +01 22 8819 go00
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Kogta Financial (India) Limited

Report an the Audit of the Indlan Accounting Standard (*Ind AS") Financlal Statements

Opinlon

We have audited the accompanylng Ind AS financial statements of Kogta Financfal CIndfa) Limited

{“the Company™), which comprises the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit

ind Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and

lhe Statement of Changes In Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financlal

;‘tal:en'rents. including a summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory
formation,

In our opinlon and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financlal statements glve the Information required by the Companles Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and glive & true and falr view In conformity with the
dccounting principles generally accepted In India, of the state of affaks of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, Its profit including other comprehensive income Its cash flows and the changes In
tquity for the year ended on that date.

Basis fer Opinlon

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financlal statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs"), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described In the *Auditor's Responsiblifties for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements’ section of our report, We are in dependent of the Company In accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financlal statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned
Is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basic for our audit opinlon on the ind AS financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter - Assessment of COVID 19 Impact

We draw attention to Note 40.1 (G) to the financial statements, which describes the uncertainties
arising from COVID 19 pandemic and impacting the Company’s operations and estimates related to

impairment of assets, which are dependent on future developments regarding the severity and
duration of the pandemic.

Our opinlon Is not modified In respect of this mattar,
Hey Audit Matters

- Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of most slgnificance In
our audit of the Ind AS financlal statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whaole,
and In farming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate apinion on these matiers, For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context,
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| Bank of India ('REI) directions.
(b) Impakment of financial instruments (expected credit losses)

(as described In 1.17 of the standaione Ind AS financial statements)

S.R Batiisor& Co. LLP
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We have determined the matters described below 1o be the key audit matters to be communicated

in our report. We have fulfilied the

responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the

audit of the Ind AS financlal statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the

performance of procedures deslgned to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
our audit procedures, Including the procedures performed to

AS financial statements. The results of
address the matters below, provide the

basls for our audit opinion on the accompanylng Ind AS financial

statements,

Key audit matters

| How our audit addressed the key sudit matter |

(8) Transitlon to Ind AS accounting framework

(as described In note 33 of the Ind AS financial statements)

In accordance with the roadmap for
implementation of Ind AS for non-banking
financial companles, as announced by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has
adopled Ind AS from Aprll 1, 2019 with an
effeclive date of April 1, 2018 for such
transition, For periods up to and including the
year ended March 31, 2019, the Company had
prepared  and presented s financlal
statements in accordance with the erstwhile
generally accepted accounting principles in
India (ndian GAAP). In order to give effect of
the transition to Ind AS these financial
statements for the year ended March 31,
2020, together with the comparative financial
Information for the previous yesr ended March
31, 2019 and the transition date balance sheet
as at April 1, 2018 have been prepared under
Ind AS,

The transition has involved significant change
in the Company's policles and processes
relating to financlal reporting, including
generation of reliable and supportable
Information. Further, the management has
exercised significant judgement for giving an
appropriate effect of principles of First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards ¢ind
AS 101), as at transitlon date and to determine
the Impact of the new accounting framework
on. certain  accounting and  disclosure
requirements prescribed under extant Reserve

L]

Read the Ind AS Impact assessment
performed by the management to identify
areas Impacled on account of Ind AS
transition and the resultant changes made
to the accounting paliclies consldering the
regulrements of the new framework,

Understood the financial statement closure
process (Including disclosures In notes to
accounts) and the additional controls
established by the Company for transkion
to Ind AS. We tested the design and
Operating effectiveness of key controls for
processes Identified by the Company for
Impact assessment.

Assessed the judgement applied by the
management In applying the {first<time
adoption principles of Ind AS 101,

Perfermed test of details on the accounting
adjustments posted as at the transition
date and in respect of the previous year to
convert the financlal information reported
under erstwhile Indian GAAP Lo Ind AS.

Assessed the disclosures prescribed under
Ind AS,

Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments (“Ind AS
109" requires the Company to provide for
Impairment of ils Loans & Advances {“Financial
Instruments™) using the Expected Credit
dosses ("ECL") approach, ECL involves an
‘estimation of probabliily-welighted loss on

Our audit procedures included considering
the Company's accounting policles for
impalrment of Financlal Instruments and
assessing compllance with the policies Jn
terms of Ind AS 109: Financial
Instruments,

Fingriclal Instruments  over thelr life,
FPI'_ISiH'i}I"I'IIJ reasonable and supportable [ ¢ Read the Company's policy with respect to
-in'\‘nrmal': n_about past events, current moratorium pursuant to the RBI Circular
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conditions, and forecasts of fulure economic
conditions which could impact the credit
quality of the Company’s loans and advances.
In the process, a signlficant degree  of

judgement has been applied by the
management for:
a) Defining gualitative/ quantitative

thresholds for ‘significant Increase in
credit risk’ ("SICR™) and ‘default’,

by Determining effect of less frequent past
events on future probability of default,

¢) Grouping of borrowers based on
homogeneity by wsing appropriate
statistical techniques;

d) Determining macro-economic  factors

Impacting credit quality of recelvables:

Additlonal conslderation on account of COVID-
19

The spread of COVID-19 has severely Impacted
many economies around the globe. Businesses
are being forced to cease or limit operations
for long or indefinite periods of fime. Measures
taken to contaln the spread of the virus,
Including travel bans, quarantines, sociai
distancing, and closures of non-essential
services have triggered significant disruptions
to businesses, resulting In an economic
slowdown and economic uncertalnties.
Measures have also been taken by the
Government and the Reserve Bank to ease the
burden on businesses from hardship.
Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of Indla circular
dated March 27, 2020 and May 23, 2020 ("REI
Circulars™) allowing lending Institutions to
offer moratorium to borrowers on payment of
Instalments falling due between March 1, 2020
and August 31, 2020, the Company has
extended moratorium fo Its borrowers in
accordance with its Board approved policy as
described in Mote 40,1 (G,

In management's view and considering the
quidance provided by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India CICAI,
providing moratorlum to borrowers at a mass
scale, based on RBI directives, by ftself is not
considered to result In a SICR for such
borrowers. The Company has recorded a
management overlay as part of Its ECL, to
reflect among other things an increased risk of
deterioration in  macro-economic factors

| caused by COVID-19 pandemic. Given the
il Unique nature and scale of the economic

‘Irmpact of this pandemic, Its timing being close

; ﬂj;ﬁ?e year-end, and na refiable data belng

and tested the Implementation of such
policy on a sample basis.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
management estimates by understanding
the process of ECL estimation and related
assumptions and tested the controls
around data extraction and valldation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans
based on their past-due status to check
compliance with requirement of Ind AS
109, Tested a sample of performing (stage
1) loans to assess whether any SICR orloss
indicators were present requiring them to
be classified under stage 2 or 3.

Assessed the additlonal considerations
applied by the management for staging of
loans as SICR or default categories In view
of Company's policy on moratorium,

Tested the ECL model, Including
assumptions and undertying computation,
Tested the input data used for determining
the PD and LGD rates and agreed the data
with the underlying books of accounts and
records.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision performed
by the Company.

Performed Inguiries with the Company's
management and its risk management
functlon to assess the Impact of lock-down
on the business activities of the Company.

Tested assumptions wused by the
management In determining the overiay
for macro-economic factors {including
COVID-19 pandemic) pursuant to Reserve
Bank of Indla guidelines issued on March
13, 2020,

Read and assessed the disclosures
Included in the Ind AS financial stalements
In respect of expected credit losses with
the requirements of Ind AS 107 and 109,
Reviewed specific disclosures made In the
Ind AS financlal statements with regards
to the Impact of CoVID-19 on ECL
estimation.

| available regarding the Impact of various
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requlatory packages, the macroeconomic
overlay estimate Is based on various highly
uncertaln  and unobservable factors. In
accordance with the guidance in Ind AS 109,
the macroeconomic overlay estimate takes
Into account reasonably and supportable
informatlon without incurring significant cost.
The actual credit losses could be slgnificantly
different than the ECL estimates prepared by
the Company depending upon the Impact and
duratlon of the pandemic and various
requlatory and pollcy measures announced by
the Government.

In view of the high degree of management's
judgement Involved in estimation of ECL,
accentuated by the COVID-19 pandemic, it I= &
key sudit matter.

(c) IT systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting
systems of the Company are fundamentally
reliznt on T systems and IT controfs to process
significant transaction volumes. Automated
accounting procedures and IT environment
controls, which inctude IT governance, general
IT controls over program development and
changes, access to programs and data and IT
operations, are required to be designed and to
operate effectively to ensure accurate
financial reporting.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the
assessment of the general IT controls and the
application controls specific to the accounting
and preparation of the financlal information Is
considered to be a key audit matter.

We performed the following procedures,
assisted by specialized IT auditors on the IT
infrastructure and applications relevant to
financlal reporting:

« Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of IT access controls over
the information systems that are critlcal o
financlal reporting.

e Tested IT general controls (logical access,
changes management and aspects of IT
operational controle). This included testing
that requests for access to systems were
appropriately reviewed and authorized,

s Tested the Cempany’s periodic review of
access rights. We Inspected requests of
changes to systems for appropriate
approval and authorization.

= [In addition to the above, we tested the
design and operating effectiveness of
certain automated and IT dependent
manual controls that were concidered a:
key Internal controls over financial
reparting.

¢ Where deficiencles were [dentified, we
tested compensating contrals  or
performed alternate procedures,

P
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Dther Information

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included In the Directors Report but does not Include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financlal statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance concluston thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financlal statements, our responsibllity s to read the other
information and, In deing so, consider whether su ch other information Is materially Inconsistent with
the financlal statements or our knowledge obtalned In the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
nisstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing toreport
in this regard. .

Responsibifities of Management for the ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134¢5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that glve a true and
falr view of the finanelal posltion, financlal performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company In accordance with the accounting principles generally
#ccepted In India, Including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies {Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibllity atso Includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design, Implementation and
malntenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accourit] ng records, relevant ta the preparation and presentation
of the Ind AS financlal statements that glve a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the Ind AS financlal statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appficable, matters related to going
concern and using the going coneern basis of accounting unless management elther Intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic afternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are alco responsible for overseelng the Company's financlal reporting
Process,

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
& whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our oplnlon, Reasonsble assurance Is & high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a materdal
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material If, individually or in the aqgregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the
economic decislons of users taken on the basls of these Ind AS financial statements.

soehs part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professlonal judgment and mafntain
Pl ) .ﬁm{e’_‘qgrqnal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

£ ) Ideitify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financlat statements,
.,,:,I'L her due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,




SR Barusois Co. LLP

Chartersd Accountants

and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contrel,

*  Obtaln an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audi(t
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances. Under section 143(3X1} of the Act, we
are also responsible far expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate Internal
financial contrals with reference to financlal statements In place and the u'paratinq effectiveness
of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonablencss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the galng concern basls of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue az a
going concern. I we conclude that a material uncertainty exksts, we are required to draw
attentlon in our auditor's report to the refated disclosures In the financlal statements or, if such
disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our eplnion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as & golng concern,

b Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
Including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achleves falr presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amaong other matters, the planned
‘cope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficlencies In
Internal controf that we Identify during our audit.

We alse provide those cha rged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our in dependence, and where ap plicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial staternents for the financial yaar
ended March 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters In our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, In

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order'), Issued by the
Central Government of India In terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

2. Asrequired by Sectlon 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

el

In our oplinion, proper as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
1 from our examination of those books;

s
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(€) The Balance Sheet, the Statemenl of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes In Equity dealt

with by this Report are In agreement with the books of account:

{d) In our oplnion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards spacified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Account na
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020 taken on record by the Baard of Directors, none of the directors is disqualifled as on
March 31, 2020 from belng appolnted as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

€f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financlal reporting of
the Company with reference to these Ind AS financlal statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to aur separate Report In “Annexure 2" to this report;

(@) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been
pald / provided by the Company to Its directors in accordance with the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinfon and
to the best of our informatlon and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending Htigations which would impact its financial
position;

fi. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

. There were ne amounts which were required to be fransferred to the Investor
Education end Protection Fund by the Company. /

For 5.R. Batlibel & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Q;:m Firm Reglstration Number: 301003E/E300005

auq-ﬁ"-ﬂ"‘ ""‘CB'-'_P

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Mumber: 102102

UDIN: 20102102AAAAGK 5863
_.I‘-I‘?"T-"_-.‘
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Datel June 18, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to under the heading “Report on other lega! and ragulatory requirements” of
bur report of even date

Re: Kegta Financial (india) Limited ("the Company'™)

iXad
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The Company has maintalned proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
detalls and location of fixed assets,

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management duting the year and no
materlal discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets are held In the
name of the Company.

The Company's business does not Invalve inventories and, accordingly, the reguirements
under paragraph 3¢ of the Crder are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations glven to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companles, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the reglster malntained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Accardingly, the provisions of clause 3Gi)Xa), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upan,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no
loans, Investments, guarantees and securities granted In respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companles Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented
upan.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicabla.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company Is not in the business of sale of
any goods, Therefore, in our opinlon, the provisions of clause 3(vl) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company,

Undisputed statutory dues Inclugling provident fund, employees' state insurance, goods and
service tax, cess and cther statutory dues applicable to it, have generally been reqularly
deposited with the appropriate authorlties though there have bean delays in few cases. The
provislons relating to duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess are not
applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax
and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a perfod of more than six
months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to, duty of customs, duty
of exclse, value added tax and cess are not applicable to the Company,

According to the Information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income-tax,
employee's state Insurance, goods and service tax, service tax, value added tax and cess
which have not been deposited on account of dispute, The provision relating to sales tax,
custom duty, excise duty and value added tax are currently not applicable to the Company.
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v In our opinlon and according to the information and explanations given by the management,

2.,:_.,_‘-,1";';., ithe Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowling to a financial institution,
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According to the information and explanations glven by the management, the Company has
not raised any money by way of Inltlal public offer or further public offer. Further, money
raised by the Company by way of non-convertible debentures and term loans were applied
for the purpose for which those were raised, though Idle/ surplus funds which were not
required for Immediate utilization were gainfully invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purposes of reporting the true and falr
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by
the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported durlng the year,

According to the Information and explanation glven by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been pald In accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 127 read with Schedule V to the Companles Act, 2013,

in our oplinion, the Company is not a Nidhi com pany. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(x)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

Accarding to the Information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are In compllance with section 177 and 188 of Companles Act, 2013 where
epplicable and the details have been disclosed In the notes to the financlal statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards,

According to the Information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the batance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or fully or partly
canvertible debentures during the year under review. However, the Company has made
private placement of 0.0001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares. The requirements
of Section 42 of the Companles Act, 2013 have been complied with and the amount raised
has been used for the purpose for which the fund was ralsed.

According to the Information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered Into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companles Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations glven to us, we report that the Company has
registered as required, under sectlon 45-A of the Reserve Bank of Indla Act, 1934,

For 5.R. Batlibel & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
131 Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KOGTA FINANCIAL (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause () of Sub~section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™

We have audited the internal financlal controls over financial reporting of Kogta Financial (ndia)
Limited (“the Company™ as of March 31, 2020 In conjunction with our audit of the standalone
linancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management Is responsitie for establishing and malntaining Internal financlal
tontrols based on the internal control over financial reporiing criteria established by the Company
tonsidering the essentlal components of Internat control stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Indla. These responsibllities Include the design, Implementation and malntenance of adeguate
Internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
tonduct of its business, Including adherence to the Company's policies, the safequarding of its
issets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
secounting records, and the timely preparation of rellable financlaf Information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013,

Audltor's Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinfon an the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
dur audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financlal
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™ and the Standards on Auditing as specified under sectlon 143¢10)
of the Companles Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financlal controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Hote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internel financial controls over financlal reporting
with reference to these standalone financlal statements was established and maintained and If such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our gudit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements
and thelr operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
Included abtalning an understanding of Internal financial controfs over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material wealiness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, Including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to fraud
or error,

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audlt oplnion on the Internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements,

Meening of Internal Financlal Controts Over Financlal Reporting With Referance to these Financlal
Statements ;

A company's internal financlal control over financlal reporting with reference to these standalone
" inanclal statements s & process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
“ of-financlal reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's Internal financial control over financial
--:ﬁepn&'tqu with reference to these standalone financial statements Includes thase policles and
prq;gghms that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and
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lalrty reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the campany; {2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and ex penditures of
the company are being made only In aceordance with authorisations of management and direetors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detectlon of

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the campany's assets that could have a material
sffect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting with Reference to
lhese Standalone Financlal Statements

Because of the Inherent llmitations of internal financlal controls over financlal reporting with
reference to these standalone financlal statements, Including the possibliity of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occyur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal financlal controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financlal statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the Internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Dpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all materlal respedts, adequate Iinternal financlal controls over
fimanclal reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal
inanclal controls over financial reparting with reference to these standalone flnancial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company consldering the essential components of Internal
control stated In the Guldance Note on Audit of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For §.R, Batlibol & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
CAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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Koped nanclal inafln Limbted
Balar ¥t Sheet ag at March 23, 2650
(Al @ ety n Bk, except o stated otherwise)

Pamictarg Hata

Al A5t Ax
March 37, 2020 March 31,2033 Aprll1, 2018

e
ASsETS
Flrjgewshl Asgats
Cagly @l cash ggubalents

2 €700 1,140.78 £ADA15
Bank Bilances other then cash and cash squivelents 3 10,751.64 661237 59,95
Loans 4 98,055.45 65,851 60 39,043.48
Ciher Fronciat Assery 5 §a08 8¢ ENZ 66 Axd.4m
Sub-talal-Finaneial asiets 174 787,01 7411736 4173210
Mon-Firnclal Ascowy E
Daferm® Tay Assats {nei] i | ko] IIRA3
Fropert, plant and equlgnisnt [ 639,74 43805 236.23
Tight e¥lUsp Asears 7 Hr5.13 - =
Other Usnigile Assots 8 270 7058 48,18
Dher TEn-financial agcets 4 17331 ET4.7E 4287
Sub-totzkhon-llnandsl arpats 3, B06.58 Lh1%6% 30,54
Total = Msets 135 £33.50 75E5% 04 ALsETES
LIARMITES ANG EQLUTY
UABILIMES
Flazncii Ustiftics
Trade Fivables .10 100542 15481 1746
Dokt setarities 13 E5O92T8 6,301 34 283781
Barrgwlsge {Gthar than debt securites) 12 50,803.96 44881 31 3034500
Stiboreated Lishiities f 13 - 145016 143756
Lease Lhlilley 14 #28.02 = "
Dkt Flaenchal bl les b LA £059.73 547,11 355,47
Sub-total-Flnancial okl 0, 789,54 53,182 44 36,077.49
Mon-Firanetsl abiliEas
D.nirnllhu lalailigies fnat]
Provizioag 1: f55.47 140L56 12907
Crther rer-finacdal kabilges 17 13738 £3.93 Fe54
Sub-total-Mon-firmme 1 Rabiliches 57185 131.47 207,61
EQLAITY
Equity share eanhs| 18 7.652.04 638774 1,324 .01
Qhier eduity 13 47,217,841 15 E7) 30
Suta total - Egqulty — SANYORS 2337918 837764
Total - LlabiBtes and Egulty 135,633,508 J5639.00 &y EEdps
Summary of siznificant occountlng policies 1
The accompanying netes ar foeming part of financlal statemenits
fis per ot aitsched report of ovan date
For . R. Batlibol & Ce. LLP Far and on behal! of the Roard of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Kewgta Finandinl (kdia) Limbed
1CA) Firm Rop. Mo, : 3000036360005 P
~ =T
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 Kogta i
-'f'gé.}hm' ] II-. | :_ ] g {Chaleman} {Managing Directay & CEC)
Hler Ve, 2021 DM 0017563 DIN O5E09723
- P
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Warun K3gT Rahul Agraal
[Exocullve Director & CFO) (Cumpariy Secretary)
DN DA77 Memilsérehip M. 434004
Flace; Mumbal Flage: dalpur

Dibe: 106, 2000 Data: 1062020




Eagt=Faancial tndia Limined
STk of Pislit or Loss for the porod ended fasch 31, 2020
[adl #Ftanty |n lakdvs, eecept per hara dats mnd oo Ftuted ethonwise)

el
Faribctar Maty  Forthe pariod andad  For the perled endod
tarch 31, 2020 NMarch 31, 3419
Fana N focun oparations
Inter2finsmma ] L5.B79.32 BR18.67
Few # M Comrrisslon incama un 480,50 LG54
Wet @ah on falr value clanges 2 65,18 £349
Taizl Mvenue brom operations 16,4%1.00 10,891,090
Cthar Roine 2 £95 575
Totaf Famg 16,937 85 10, 84%.65
Exprntey
Fingrcefon: 2 EISEBE 5. 086.36
Impalreinr an nanclal nstrumente 5 B1887 1,735
Crnplaye Senefits Enprnases it 47100 1,407.23
DeprEcation, amortiothon and Wnpairmaent 7 42073 134299
THhers Bpangos 20 143635 a8a. 0
Total =honses 13,652.31 8,677,853
Frofit belore euceptional e sad tan 2205640 1,108
Exception) ten E -
Profie brore tocey 3,245.64 137082
Tox aEpinges "
~Lurreh Tanes 24006 563,58
- Defarind Tares {10.27) f12297)
Profit #6i the perlad i 2,094, 0 E20.21
Other Canprahenalve Ivcome
Al Teems that will nat be mcksssifled 19 prodit ar bass
{al h-maamamnnt;dnttdtﬁwhmtﬂtplms {15.63) 23R
[} Ivemme Lax ralating to ems that will not be feelasshiod b profit or o {238 o7
Subi-notsl (&) [La.rol 1.68
B (4} teams that wll) b reckansifled th proflt or loas = -
Suh-tatal fo) .
Dther Comprehensbe incoma [A+8) (LR 1.6E
Totel Comprahanshe bcaiine for the poriad 2,883.50 BILED
Earnlng per oqulty share ]
Basic 1543 EE7
Olluted 10484 526
Kemine valug par share Loy~ e
The sccamparyTng notes sre fermlng part of fnsncil stataments
A por our sttsched pepoel of even data
For §.0. Batlibo & Co. LLP For 2nd on behalf of the Boord of Divecton
d Accountants of Kogts Financial {Indla) Umnited
Firm Reg. ho. 1 301000E/E300005
e M \l t{l ‘]
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T
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Rortmeflsf 1L0L {Chaleenany b (Mtavinging Dlrsctar & CEQ)
S ,ggg._—uhn'mﬂp T ] P R197552 DI 051087 2
L I.j i )4-
) Varun Rl Ajrawial
(Exucistlye Ciractor & CFO) [Company Seeretary]
G 40307 Membarship Mo, A34054
Place: Bvinbal Flasa: daipur
Dsto: 14062010 {huter 15.05.2020




KO0y Financlal Indle Umited
CAN Naw statament far the year ended March i1, 2020
{AYemmoumits In lakhs, exeept os siriod otlerwise)

Ti;rtmgn Year ended March 33, 2020 Year endod Miarch 31, 2019
M Ush flow Iram operating activities:
kst profit before texns per statement of proflt and los 3,245,564 1,270.82
Mjustments to reconcle profit before tax to net cash flgws:
Lepreclation and amontication af £PE, RO and other Intangllle nssats aT0.73 133,99
bure & ndvarices wiltben off 51408 155.96
fmortiration of anelllany easi 124,05 10384
Feversal of peoulsion for erpectod tradit loss (ECLY {15.27] EBIAT
L2 rpceivable on asslgniment transactions B LT {37.12)
Fowiskon for employee benefits 16.70 (1.75)
Eoszf{Proflt] on sale of property, plant and equlgmant (020 (51,04}
Fiat: {galn)/ Inss on £ds of current Ivastment (65.1E) (8.25)
EOP Expanses y : 12588 14,52
Fterest enpanses on vehiche loans 13,37 BB
Fensial Tncome {4.52) (4:52)
Operating profit before wearking capltel chonges ' 4,599,60 225171
Changes Tn workdng capltal .
{Weresselfdecrease In Loaps (#2,411.98) f27,704,67)
{herezsel/docrease in hank deposits {15,204.37) [5.752.33)
Incranse In financlal and ather assets 12,886.51) © (23473
Incraasefdetr=ase] I financlel and offer Takiites o045 P0G
Tetal of changes In warking capital [48,212.43) (33,474.73)
Direct taxes pold 104,01 547,64
Pet cash flow used In oparatlng acthitles (1) {a5,716.62) [31,769.65)
B Cash flow trom Imvesting activities:
Urflow (outlow] on sceount of : !
Furchase of Property, plant and eguipment {Includinig capital work-n-prog ress)f {£97.15) (393201
Intapgtide nssets
Sile of Proparty, plant and equipment (including coplial werkin- prograss) 25.30 #ga2
Purchose of current Investments [%,500.00) (3,000.00)
Procesds from salefmatueity of currant lnvas bronts 356518 500529
Funda! Income 4.52 4.52
Pt cach flow used In Investing sctivities {2 * {802.15) {292.27}
€ Cesh Mow from financing setivitles: ‘
Iztet of equity shares {including share pramilum) l 30,100.00 1542528
Share/ debenture lssue expanses . . (65.44) . {42014
Dividand pald on praference shargs . o {003 i (0.04)
Ty ot preference dididend pald ' L s ! L ooy T oo
Unterest pald on vehiche koan e T BALE ' Eome i 1z i : [3.84)
Frogstdh from borrewings R . s ; . iaB49530 . 2258738
Fepaymants of boreowings ' ' (2z2875.31) T (5607)
B Tash flow from flaonding sctivites {c] ' ' A5ea024 - Y 3ag7sE
*r.ie{?éf:i'gm I sash 2nd caoh equivalents (A+8+C) _ - A I ERRE . &/ I (25437)




Jurteulars Veas onducl March 31, 2020 Yosr ended Morch 21, 2019

Cashanid cashy equivalents as at the beginning of the year 1,148.7E 1,4064,15
Cash and cash equivibonts ot the end of the year G71.00 1,140.75
Companets of cash and cash eqiivalonts

Cazh o hand E9.6% 51162
Balance In frenking machine® - -
Batance with benks - -

Ik ewrent acccinds f1.31 UERN L

In cash credit . .

In deposit account 500,07 -
Total cash and eash aquivalonts 67101 L,199.78
Dporational Cash Flow from inerest

Interest Recalvad 14,E78.06 ' 8,345.98

Interest Puld b, 72618 5,016,480

The sccompanying notes are farming part of financial stotements
A3 per our sttached repart of By dite

For 5.R. Batfibo| & Co, LLP Far and oi bshall of the Board of Blrectors
Chartered Accountants of Kopgta Fiancial findia) Limivee

I Firm Reg. Ko, 1 301003E/£300005
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Wog T ranalal ndla Lenlad
Sta®=tant ol Chanzes b Equlty for tho yase endad Marh 31, M0

n, EAWy Stapn Caplial
Handboimyy - himeurt
Mald ™% a2t ApdloL, 2018 LEenl
SharElsued curling thae year gnded Barch 31, 7005 _5niaTa
Bapi e ay at March 31, 20238 [ETEET]
har @b dirlng the year eodod Mwich 31, 3020 129570
EAlAEI oy pt March 51, 3020 A 165104
b, vt Baudey
Ecul Y (v ponent of canspeunded financinl s Mesarvie mnd swirifai 4
Satutory Caplial Sanurllles Gararal Btack Ratalryed
eiene o LS nreelem Riratweg aplion aaerings
per outatamd s e
Factlon afac W Aoyt
of the RE|
Aol
1034
Babariee s d Fpall 0, 2GEE 554.77 AQLK) LA08§7 00,00 O 514,75 5,635,543
Fraf? far e yaue (4 . - . . . 3021 BED,11
ther trepraterntye oo for the yeoe (I - = - . - 162 143
Totul Comprebanadvs income for i yasr {reE) - B - . . [ETET] BILAE
Adeitlu dising Yhe yaar L) - . 10000 1852 . 33563
Transfe to ressniy fraim retained satnings durlng tha period - - - - - 137503 {325.09)
lzmiz ofshora caplisl = - 411,54 . - . 1a.42150
Trans Ak ost = - J4x0.44) - - . 20,24)
vy kel dinchudieg 0OT) . - - - - Ha04) Jtima)
Balareeas ol March 31, 2009 THi 41 0,00 13,008 g7 060,00 1457 1,031,540 15,871,598
Predit fer vl yaar [5) - - = . - 2 484m HAS500
Onbeer cenprafinnshes ncorva fof dha vear () - - . - . [ir.7a0} 1170
Tedal comprehenshug ineome far the yior (Cr0) - - . . . 148251 148238
Acditiurs dusing flm yaare T - + (7T 11550 - Titaa
Tiaeefarto resarve Fran tatsbied ssrings g the porlod - - ’ . s {506.4¢) [588.4)
lesije of thare canktad - - 28,804,739 - - - TR B0 TS
Trandacdar sagl - - [&R,a4) " ’ v {Eaa)
Otuidene i (I ludiing DOT) founzy janay
Bataneas vl tanch 31, 2020 i FB6.37 40,60 [TREEEF 1,005,00 140,43 291742 a7,717.81
Tae actimpanying nodet Bra forindng peet of Tnanal staleneats
Bz e our s beeed repen af g date
For 5.F Balfbo| & Co. L8 Far aned gn behall of 1he Bosrd of Dlrectors
Chimtasrud Aepor snie ] of Megta Flrenctal {ndis] Limlesd
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Place: haigsinr
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A, Corporate Information

"Kogta Financlal (India) Limited {‘the Company’} s a public company domlciled In Indla and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companles Act, 1956. The Company is holding a cartificate of registration as Non Deposit taking Asset
Finance Company (‘AFC-ND'), with Reserve Bank of Indla {'RBI') under section 45-1A of Resarve Bark of India Act, 1834
vide certificate of registration no B.10.00086,

The Company is primarily engaged I lending activitics to the retall customers under varlous product lines."
B. Basis of preparation of financial statements

a) Basls of preparation

"The financial statements have been prepared In accordance with (ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) g5 per the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under sectlon 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act} along with other relavant provisions of the Act and the Master Direction — Nan-
Banking Financial Company — Systemlcally Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (‘the NEFC Master Directlons’) lssued by RBL The financlal statements have been
prepared on a gaing concern basis. :

The Company uses accrual basls of accounting except in case of significant uncertalnties. For all periods up to and
including the year ended 31 March 2019, the Campany had propared its financlal statements In accardance with
zecounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companles Act 2013 read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companles {Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companles [Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the NBFC
Master Directlons (hereinafter referred as ‘Previous GAAR), Thesa financial staterments for the year ended 31 March
2020 are the first the Company has prepared In accordance with Ind AS. The Company has applied Ind AS 101 "First-
time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’, for transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS. An explanation of how
transition to Ind AS has effected the previously reported financia!l position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company ks provided In note no, 33,

The financial statements are presented in Indlan Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated, :

The regulatory disclosures 25 required by Master Directions for Non-Banking Financlal Company - Systemically
Important Non-Daeposit taking Company Directions, 2016 issued by the RR {'RBI Master Directions’) to be induded as
2 partof the Notes to Accounts are also prepared as per the Ind AS financlal statements.”

b} Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an acerual basls as a golng concern and under the histerical cost
convention, except for, derlvative financial Instruments and other financlal assets held for trading and foreign currency
borrowings denominated in INR which have been measured at fair value at the end of each reporting date as required
under relevant ind AS.

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

1.1 Use of estimates

"The preparation of financlal statements in confarmity with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgmants,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabllities and the
accompanylng disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liablilties, at the end of the reporting year, Estimates and
underlying assumptions zre reviewed on an ongoing basls, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognlsed |n the
vear in which the estimates are revised. Although these estimates are based an the management’s best knowledge of
turrent events and actions, uncertainty about these sssumptions and estimales could result In the euteomes raguiring
a materfal adjustment to the carrylng amounts of asgets or labilities In future years,

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critlcal Judgments in applylng
accounting palicies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is
induded in the followlng notes:" '

1.1.1  Business Model Assessment

"The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financlal assets
te achieve its business objective,

e The Company considers the frequency, volume and timing of dishursements in prior years, the reason for such
'.i:l_{.*gt.ll'(ﬂsl‘}me nt, and its expectations abaut future business activity. However, Information about business activity is not
Cons ,ﬂ’gfed in isolation, but as part of a Holistic assessment of how company’s stated objective for managing the
_ _Ifiﬁq';ni‘a EI! %ﬁﬁeti is achicved and how cash flows are reglised. Therefore, the Company considers information abio ut ,pa:sz
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tlshursements in the context of the reasons for those disbursements, and the conditions that existed at that time as
Compared 1o current conditions

Based on this assessment and future business plans of the Company. the management has measured its financial
Bisels 2t amartised cost as the asset is held within a business made! whosa objective Is ta collact contractual cash
flows, and the contractual terms of the financlal aszat glve rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principle and
Interest (“the 'SPPIefiterion’).”

112 pefined employee benefit assets and liabilitios

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the pratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations.  An actuarial valuation Involves making various assumptlons that may differ from actual
developments in the future. . These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities Involved in the valuation and its longterm nature, a defined beneflt obligation
s highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. All assumfitions are reviewed at esch reporting date.

1.1.3 Impalrment losses on financial assets
"The measurement of impalrment losses across all categories of financlal assets except assets valued at Fair value
through PEL (FVTPL), requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a slenificant increase in credit risk.
These estimates are driven by & number of factars, changes In which can result in different levels of allowances.
The Company's Expected credit loss (ECL) caleulations are sutputs of complex models with & number of underlying
assumptions regarding the cholce of variable inputs and their nterdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are
tonsidered accounting judgements and estimates include:
*  The Company's model, which assigns Probability of default (PD)s
* The Company's criterla for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit Flsk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a Lifetime expected credit loss (LYECL) basts
The segmentation of financlal assets when thelr ECL ks assessed on & collective basis
Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the cholee of inputs
o DRetermination of assoclations between macroeconomlc scenarlos and, economic inputs, and the effect on
v PDs, Exposure at default (EAD)s and Loss given default (LGD)s"

114  Share-based paymonts

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the mast appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the
most appropriate Inputs to the valuation madel! including the expected life of the share option, valatllity and dividend
yield and making assumptions about them.

1.1.5 Falr value measurement

When the fair values of financlal assets and financlal llabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value Is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF
model, The Inputs to these models are taken from observabile markets where possible, but where this is not feasible;
& degree of Judgement is required in establishing fair valuas, Judgemenits Include conslderations of inputs such as
liguidtity risk, credit risk and volatility, Cha nges in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
af financial instruments,

1.1.6 Effective Interest rate method

The Company's ER methodology, recognises interest income using an Internal rete of return that represents the best
estimate of a epnstant rate of return over the expected behavioural fife of |sans and other characteristics of the
product life cycle {including prepayments). This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgemant regarding

the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well other fee Income/expanse that are Integral parts of
the Instruments.

1.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprises cash In hand, demand depasits & time deposits and short term investments with
original maturity of less than three months,

£ 13 - Revenue recognition

T2 1.3 Intérest and similar Income

3 A ,Interest lncome, for all finandal instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through othér

oy w0 comprehensive incoma, s recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIfL Is the rate that exactly discounts the.
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Estimated future cash paymentsar recelpteaver the expocted life of the finsndal inst Ument or a shorter year, whera
¥ppropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial ssset, The calculation of the effective interest rate takas
nto atcount all contractual terms of the finandsal instrument (for example, prepayment options) and Includes
iransaction costy and fees that are an integral part of the contract but not future credit losses. Transaction cosls
nelude Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financlal asset,

F expectations regarding the cash flaws on the finanelal asset are revised for reasons other than credit rigk, the
sdjustment is recorded as a positive or negative adjustiment 1o the carrying amount of the assat in the balance sheet

with an Inerease or reduction in nterest income, The adjustment is subsaquently amortised through Interest income
ir the Statement of profit and loss.

The Company caleulates interest Income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, ather
than credit-impaired assats, When a financial asset becomes credit-impaiced and [5, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3,
the Company caloulates Interest Income by applying the effective Interest rate to the net amartised cast of the

financial asset. If the financial assets eures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating Interest
income on a gross basis.

1,3.2 Fee and commission income

W ather financial charges pertalning to loan agrecment are recognized only on receipt basis. The Company has
‘hanged Its accounting palicy for accounting of cheque bounce charges from accrual basis to realization basis. As a
‘esult of such change in the recagnition of cheque bounce charges end réimbursement of expenses, the profit for the
turrent period is lower by Rs, 486,70 Lacs,

tommission Income is hooked on accrual basis:

1.3.3 Other Income
flental income is recognized on accrual basis of accounting,

Rcome on units of mutual funds is recagnized an recelpt basis as and when redeemed In cash based on the NAV of
tedemption date.

14" Property, plant and equipmeant (PPE) and other Intangible assets

PPE and Capital work in progress are stated at acquisition cost (including Incidental expenses directly attributable to
bringing the asset to its working candition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
il any. Cost comprises the purchase price, non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowlng costs If caplitalization criteris are
met and any attributable cost of bringing the asset 1o fts working condition for its intended use. Su bsequent
expanditure refated to PPE s capitalized only when It Is probable that future economic benefits assoclated with these
will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured raliably, Other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed off as and when Incurred,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised Is derecognised upon disposat
or whin no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset {caleulated as the difference between the net dispasal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included In the statement of profit and loss when the asset Is derecognised,

Intangible assols

Intangible Assets are recognized only iF it s prabable that the future econamic benefits that are attributable to assets
will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured relia bly,

Computer software which is not an integral part of the related hardware Is classified as an intangible asset, Intangible
as5els are measured and recorded at cost and carrfed at cost less sccumulated amertization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Intangible essets are amortized on a straight line basic over the estimated useful economic life as determined by
management,

The amortization period and the amartization method are reviewed at least at each financlal year end. If the expected
useful life of the asset &5 sgnificantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
accordinghy.

Galns or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference betweern the nat

disposal proceedsand the carrying amount of the assetand are recognized In the statement of profit and loss when
the asset ls derecognized.”

T
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The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a
cantract contalns a leass, at inception of 2 contract, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract convays the right
to contrel the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange far consideration, To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control thie use of an identified azset, the Campany asscsses whether:

*  Thecontract invalves the use of an identified asset

* The Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the assat through the period of the
lease and

=  The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

Measurement and recognition

At lease commencement date, the Com pany recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use asset Is measured at cost, whichis made up of the initlal measurement af the lease [ bility, any Initial
direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remaove the asset at the end of the
leaze, and any lease payments made In advance of the lease commencement date (net of any Incentives recelved),

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets an a straight-ling basis from the lease commentement date to the
earfier of the end of the useful life of the right-af-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses
Ihe right-of-use asset farimpaiment when such ingicators exist, At the commencement date, the Company measures
the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
Implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company’s Incremental borrowing rate.

subsequent to initlal measurement, the lability will be reduced for payments made and Increased for interest. |t i
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or If there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When
the lease liability s remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss
IF the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero,

Shart term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of property that
has lease torm of less than 12 months or where the lease security deposit Is less than 50,000/-. The Company
recognises lease payment associsted with these leases 25 an expense on a stralght-line basls over lease term,

Under Ind AS 17: In the comparative period, as a lessee the Company dassified leases that transfer substantlaily all
the risk and reward of ownership as finance leases. Assets held under other |eases are classified as operating lease
ancl were not recognised In Company Balance sheet, Paymant made under operating lease were recognised in profiy
and logs on @ straight-line basis over the term of lease,”

1.5.2 Company as lessor

The Company's accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period. As a lessor the
Company classifics fts leases a5 ether operating or finance leases, A lease Is classified as a finance lease If It transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, and classified s an aperating
lease If it does not.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 *"Leases™ and applied the standard to all long-tarm
lease contracts existing on Apeil 1, 2019 using modifled retrospective method, The Company recarded the loaze
liability and the right of use assets at the present value of the leasa payments discounted at the incremental borrowing
rate at the date of Inltial 2pplication. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 hawve not been
retrospoctively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported as per accountlng policles Included as part of our
financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2018,

The Company has given Impact analysis of Lease on financial results In note no 37 *"Transition to Ind AS 116 an

Al i

Leasa™,

1.6 Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on Written Dewn Value Method (W.DM.) at the rates
eyllated with reference to the estimated useful life of assets preseribad in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013

“pp dctiial useful life of assets whichever is lower, Depreciation s recognlzed on a pro-rata basls to the Statement of

Prluf“' 1‘d Loss an the assets acquired, sold of disposed off during the year till the date of a:quiﬂﬂ%ﬁ!e or
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Asset Useful Life {years)
_Property, Plant and Equipment

| Buildings 60
Furniture & fixtures 10
Computer & data processing units

a) Server & netwarks [

| b} End user device 3
Office equipmant 5
Air conditioner & 0G set 15
Vehicles

&) Two wheelers i 10

b} Four wheelers 8
¢} Four wheelers {given under car policy to specified employees) d

All fived assets Individually costing %5,000/- or less are fully depredated in the year of installation/purchase,

Amortization

Intangible sssets are amortized on a straight line basls over the estimated useful economic life. The Company
estimates the useful life of an Intangible asset will not exceed five years from the date when the asset is available for
use. If the persuasive evidence exists to the sffect that useful Ife of an Intangible ssset exceads five years, the
Company amortizes the intangible asset over the best estimate of It useful lIife.”

1.7 Impalrment of nen-financlal assets

The carrying amount of assets ks reviewed at each balance sheet date if there Is any Indication of impalrment basad
on internal/external factors, An impalrment loss is recegnised wherever the carrylng amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, The recoverable amount Is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In
assesslng value In use, the estimated future cash Mowe are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discaunt
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset, |n determining
ret selling price, recent market transactions are taken Into account, if avallable. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation mode| [s used.

After Impalrment, depreciation Is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

1.8 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as 3 result of @ past event,
ItIs prabable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision Is presented In
the statement of profit and loss net of any relmbursement.

Ifthe effect of the time value of maney = material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tas rate that reflects,
when eppropriate, the risks specific o the Hability, When discounting Is used, the Increase [n the provision due to the
passage of thme is recognised as a finance cost, :

1.9 Contingent Habilities and assets
The Company does not recognize a contingant liabllity but discloses its existence in the financial statements
Contlngent llability is disclosed in the case of;

*  Apresent obligation ardsing from past events, when it ks not probable that an outflow of resources

will nat be required to settle the obligation,

*  Apresent ebligation arlsing from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

= Apossible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote,
Contingent liabilitics are reviewed at each balance sheet date, Cantingent assets are not recognlsed. A contingent
assat s disclosed, as required by Ind &5 37, whare an nflow of economic benefits is prabable.

1.10 Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement henefit in the form of provident fund ls a defined contribution scheme. The Company has na abligation,

i ther than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recagnizes contribution payable to the
1 ﬁiﬁwf[dent fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service., If the contribution payable to
' "H'tﬁﬁi};:&aeme for service recelved before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
_F;gl-,i'ggfgm the scheme is recognized as a liability after dedueting the contribution already pald. If the contributlion
b N T

I‘j.:ji pald exceeds the contrlbution due for sepvices received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
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fecopnized as an asset to the extant that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or
& cash refund.

The plan provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while In employment or on separation from
employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under *The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972", Liabilities
with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation at each Balance Shest date using the Projected
Unit Credit Method,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset cefling, excluding amaunts included
In net Interest on the net defined benefit liabllity and the return on plan assats {excluding amounts Included In net
Interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised Immadiately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through O in the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent years,

Past service casts are recognized In Profit or Loss on the earlier of: The date of the plan amendment or curtallment,
and The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit lia bility or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes In the net defined bereflt ebligation a an expensa in the statement of
profit and loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and |osses on curtaliments end non-routine
settlements; and Net interest expense or income.

Earned leave |s granted at the start of the financlal year and lapsad st the end of the year therefore, the company Is
not required 1w previde for the leave encashment.”

1.11 Tanes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current Income-tax s measured at the amount expected to be pald
to the tax suthorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevalling In the
respecthve tax jurisdictions where the Company oparates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
these that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current Income tax refating to lters recegnized
directly in equity |s recognized In equity 2nd notIn the statement of profit and loss.

Deferred Income taxes reflect the Impact of timing differences between taxzble income and accounting Income
erlginating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier vears. Deferred tax ks measured
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, Deferred Income tax
relating to lems recognized directly In equlty s recognized in equity and not In the statement of profit and loss.
Deferred tex liabiitles are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certalnty that sufficient future taxable incorne
wlill be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realizad,

At each reporting date, the Company re:assosses unrecognized deferred tax assets, It recognizes unrecognized
deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certaln or virtually certain, 8s the case may be, that
sufficient future tasable fncome will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the
carrying amount of deferred 1ax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certzln, that sufficlent future taxahle
income will be available against which deferred tay asset can be realized. Any such write-down Is reversed to the
extent that It becomes reasonably certain, as the case may be, that sufficlent future taxable Income will be available

Peferred tax assets and deferred tax labllitles are affsed, a legally endorceable right exists to set-off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authorlty,"

1.12 Earning per share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period sttributablae to equity
sharehelders [after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the pariod.

For the purposes of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the perlod ateributable to equlty
sharcholders and the welghted average number of shares outstanding during the period sre adjusted for the effects
“ofall dilutive potential eguity shares:




Equity-settled share based paymients to employees and others praviding similar services are messurad at the f3ir values
of the equity Instruments at the grant date. Detalls regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled
shiare based payments transactions are set out In Note 31.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a stra ight line
basis over the vesting year, based on the Company’s estimate of equity Instruments that will eventually vest, with
corresponding increase In equity, At the end of each reporting year, the Company revises [ts estimate of the aumber
of equity Instruments expected to vest. The Impact of the revision of the original estimates, if sn y. s recognlsed in
Statement of Profit' and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options s reflected as additional shara dilution in the computation of diluteed
earnings per share,

1.14 Financial Instruments

A financial Instrument Is any contract that ghees rise to a financial asset of ene entity and & finandial lia billity ar equity
instrument of ancther entity,

Financial Assaty

1.14.1 inftial recognition and measurement

The financial asset is held within a business madel with the objective to collect cantractusl cash flowe and the
contractual tarms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

Financlal assets, with the exception of lvans and advences to customers, are inltially recognised on the trade date, L.,
the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. Loans and advances to
customers are recognlsed when funds are disbursed, The classification of financial Instruments 2t initial recognition
depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention when acquiring them, All financlal
assets are recognised Inttlally at fair value plug, In the case of financial sssets not recarded at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financlal asset.

Accordingly, the Company meassures Bank balances, Loans & advances, Trade recelvables and other financial
instruments at amortised cost."

1.14.2 Classification and Subsequent moasurement

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest methad, The
amartised cost is reduced by [mpairment losses, Interest income, forelgn exchange galns and losses and impalrment
re recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any pain and loss on derecognition Is recognised in Statement of profit
and loss,

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classifled in four categories:
= Debt Instruments at amortised tost
= Debtinstruments at fair value threugh other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)
*  Debt instruments and equity instruments at falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

1.14.2.1 Debit instruments at amortised costs
A'debtinstrument’ Is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions sre met:
* The asset [s held within a business model whose obfective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and
*  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and Interest {SPPI) on the princlpal amount cutstanding.

Alfter Initial measuremant, such financial assets are subsequently measured at smortised cost using the effective
Interest rate (EIR) method fess Impalrment. Amortised cost Is calculated by taking Into sceount any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs thatare an Integral part of the EIR, The EIR amertization Iz included in Interest
income in the statement of profitor loss. The losses arising from Impalrmant are recagnised In the statenient of profit
and loss”

4*"*1,!421 Debst instruments at FYTOCI

_Aldebt instrument” s classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:
i -\ The objective of the business maodel 1s achieved both by collecting cantractual cash flows and selling the
"-,. financial assats, and




Debt instrumants included within the ENTOC category are measured Inftially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Falr value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest Income, Impalrment losses & reversals and foreipn exchange gain or loss in the PRL On
cerecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equlity to PEL
Interest earned whilst holding FYTOC| débt instrument is re ported as interest income using the EIR method.”

1.14.2.3 Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does not meet the eriterla for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC, is classified as at FVTRL

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, 3as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowad only If doing so reduces or ellminates a measurement or
recognition Inconsisteney (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments Induded within the FYTPLcategary
are measured at fair value with all changes recognized In the P&L.

3.15 Financial Liabllicies

1.15.3 Initlal recognition and measurement

Financlal llabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
It it Is dlassified as held-for trading or It s designated as on Initial recognition. All flnancial labllities are recognlsed
Initiatly at falr value and, In the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable \ransaction
costs, Other financial liabllitles are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method.
Interest expense are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition Is also recognlsed
in Statement of profil and loss, '

Fhe Company’s financlal liabllitles Include loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis end trade & other
payables."

1.15.2 Loans and borrowings

After Inftial recognition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowlngs are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the Eit method. Gains and losses are recognised In profit or loss when the [abilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amartisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amertisation Is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss”

1.15.3 ReclassHication of financlal assets and Nabilitles

The Company doesn't reclassify Its financial assets subsequent to thelr Initisl recognition, apart from the exceptiona|
tircumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financlal liabilitles are never
reclassified. The Company did not reclassify any of its finandal assets or labilitles in 2019-20 and 2018-19.

116 De-recognition of financial assets and labilities

1.16.1 Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a finencial asset or part of 2 Company of similar financial assets} is de-
fecognised when the rights to recelve cash flows from the financial asset have explred. The Company alse de-
recognised the financial asset If it has transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifles for da recognition.
Tha Company has transferred the financial azeat if, and only if, elther:

* It has transferred its contractual rights to recelve cash flows from the financial asset or

= It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed ag obligation to pay the recelved cash flows in full
without materizl delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement,"

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retalns the contractual rlghts to receive the cash
ficws of a financlal asset {the 'original asset'), but assurmes & contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to oneor
mgre entitios (‘eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met:

*  The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the sventual recipients unless it has collected equivalemt
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount
lent plus accrued Interest at market rates,

*  The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventusl reciplents.,

* The Company has to remit any cash flows It collects on behalf of the eventual reclpients without material
delay.

_,fllj,:.ﬁ aeition, the Company ks not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents
Ir-iflulr_.ling interest earned, during the year betwean the collection date and the date of required remittance 10 the
M .é‘u"_n‘.‘,;,[l{ial recipients.
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A transter enly qualifies for deracognition if elther
*  The Company has transferred susbstantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or

= The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset,™

The Company considers contral to be transferred If and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset
in its entirety to an unralated third party and Is able to exerclse that ability unllaterally and without im posing additienal
restrictions on the transfer,

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retzined
control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only 1o the extent of the Compa ny's continulng
nvolvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an assoclated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on 2 basls that reflects the rights and abligations thatthe Company has retalned,
Continulng involvement that takes the form of a guarantee aver the transferred asset Is measured at the lower of the
sriginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum zmount of consideration the Company could be required to
fay.

f cantinuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased optlon (or both) on the transferred asset, the
tontinuing invelvement is measured at the value the Com pany would be requlred to pay upon repurchase. In the case
of a wrltten put option on n asset that Is measured at falr value, the extent of the entity's continuing Involvement iz
imited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

In case where transfer of a part of financia! assets qualifies for de-recognition, any difference between the procesds
tecelvied on such sale and the carrying value of the transferred asset ic recognised as gain or lass &n de-recognition of
tuch financial asset previously carried under amortisation cost category. The resulting interest anly strip Initially |s
reeognised at FVTPL"

L16.2 Financial Liabilities

h financial liability is deracopnised whon the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancellad or expires, Where
in existing financlz] liability Is replaced by another from the same lender an substantially different terms or the terms
of an exlsting Rability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification s treated as a derecognition of the
origingl fabllity and the recognition of a new lla hility. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financlal liability 2nd the conslderation paid Is recognised In profit or loss.

117 Impalrment of financial assets

117.1 Overview of the ECL principles

The Company records allowznce for expected credit lasses for all taans and other debt financial assets not held at
FVTPL, {in this section all referred to as financial Instruments"). Equity instruments are not subject to Impairment
under Ind AS 109, .

The ECL allowance |s based on the credit lasses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit
loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase In credit risk since origination, in which case, the allawance
It basad on the 12 months’ expected eredit loss (12mECL) as outlined further in notes,

The 12mECL Is the partion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on 2 financial instrument
that are possible within the 12 monthe after the reporting date,

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are ezleulated on Indlvidual basis, depending on the nature of the underlying partfolio of
finanglal instruments,

The company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting perled, whether credit
risk of a financial asset has Increased slgnificantly sinee inltial recognition and while determining this & estimating
expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that = relevant and available
with the company. This Includes both fuantitative and gualitative inforination and analysis, including on historical
experlence and forward-looking Information.

Based on the above process, the Company group Its loans Into Stage 1, Stage 1, Stage 3, a5 described below:

Stage 1: When leans are first recognised, the Eroup recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans alsa
include Tacliities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassifisd from Stage 2 or Stage 3.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a signlficant increase in credit risk since origination, thé company records an
altowance for the WTECLe. Stage 2 loans also Include facilitie 5, where the eredit risk has improved and the loan has

_. been reclassified from Stage 3.
"‘:;.it?,ge 31 Loans consldered credit-impaired. The com pany records an allowance for the LTECLs.™
AR,
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Tha Company calculates ECLs based ana probability-welshted scenarlos and histarical data 1o nmeasurs the expected
cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the BIR, A cash shortfall is the difference botween the cash flaws
that are due to an entity in 2ccordance with the contract and the cash Mows that the entity expects to recelve,
The key elements of the ECL calculations are as follaws:
* PD-The Probability of Default Is an estimate of the fikelihood of defaull over a given time hotizen,
A default may only happen at a certain tima over the assessed year, if the facllity has not been previousiy
derecognised and is still in the partfalis.
EAD - The Exposure at Default is the current exposure as on the reporting date,
LGD - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the lass arishng in the case where a default occurs gt a glven
time, It s based on actual cash flows recelved from the financial asset, including from the realisation of any
collateral and discounted by EIR. 1t 15 usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD,
The maximum year for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial instrument,

The mechanles of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL Is czleulated as the portion of LTECLs that reprasent the ECLs that result from default events an
8 financial instrument that are passible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company calculates the
12mECL allowance based on the expectation of 3 default eccurting In the 12 months following the reporting date.
These expected 12-month default probabilites are applied ta an EAD and multiplisd by the expectad LGD.

Stage 2: When a Joan has shown 2 slgnificant increase in credie rlsk since orlgination, the Company records an
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those axplained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over
the difetime of the Instrument,

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these
Ivans, The method Is similar ta that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%."

1.17.3 Definltlan of Default
The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and considered it as Stage 3 (credit-impalred) for ECL
caleulations In 2l cases, when the borrower becomes more than 90 days past due an Iis contractual payments,

1.17.4 Significant Increase in credit risk

The Company continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or &
portfolio of instruments is subject to 12mECL or LTECL, the Company assesses whether thare has been a significant
increase In credit risk since initial recognition. The Company considers an exposure to have significantly increased in
tredit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

1.17.5 Forward looking information

While estimating the expected eredit lasces, the Company revlews macro-economie developments occurring In the
economy and market [t operates In. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses I thare Is any relationship between
key economic trends like GDP, Consumer Price Index, Uno mployment rates, inflation ete. with the estimate of PD, LGD
determined by the Company based on its Internal data, While the Internal estimstes of PD, LGD rates by the Company
may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the methodology to reflect
such macro-economic trends reasonably.

1.17.6 Collateral repossessed

Based on operational requirements, the Company’s policy ks to determine whether a repassessad asset can be best
used fer its Internal aperations or should be sold, Assets determined to ba useful for the Internal operations are
transferrad to thelr refevant azeet category for capltalisation at their falr market value, The Company generally does
not ese the assats repossassed for the Internal operations,

These repossessed assets which are Intended to be realised by way of sale are considered equivalent to Stage 3 assets
and the ECL allowance Is determined based on the estimated net reslfisable value of the repossessed asset, The
Company resorts to regular repossession of collateral provided against vehlcle leans.

1.17.7 Write-offs

Firmancial assets are written off elther partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no reasonable

expectation of recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference
=recorded as an expense in the period of write off, Any subsequent recoveries are credited to irmpairment on financial

aaiwh
Insttument on statement of profit and loss,
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The Company measures financial Instruments, such a3, derivatives at Flr value &t each balance sheet date
using valuation techniques,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sefl 4n assiet or pald o transfer a liabliity in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lla bility takes place either;

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability The principal or the
most advantagedus market must be accceslble by the Company,

The fair value of an asset or a liabllity Is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or Habllity, assuming that market participants act In thelr economic best interest

A falr value measurement of a non-financial assat takes imto account a market particlpant's ability 10 generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset In its highest and best use.™

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the drcumstances and for which sufflelent data are
available to measure falr valug, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
uncheervable inputs, '

All assets and labifities for which falr value ks measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorizsed
within the falr value hlerarchy, deseribed as fallows, based on the lowest level Input that |s significant to the fair value
measurement as 8 whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjustad) market prices in active rarkets for Identical assets or llabifities

Level 2 — Valuatlon technigues for which the lowast fevel input that I significant to the fair value measurement Is
directly or indirectly observable '

Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that s significant to the falr value measurement is
unobsarvable

For.assets and liabllities that are recognised in the financial statoments on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have ocourred between levels In the hlerarchy by re-assessing categorisation [based on the lowest
leve! Input that is significant to the falr value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year.”




Kogta FIfnckatindin Wimited
Heteg FEmMing port of the fnanclsl etatamenss

1 C3h and cash equbvalents

T [% In Takhs)
P Bliculy 45t P Asal
i msmas Blarch 31, 2020 arch 41, 2034 Aprif 1, 1018
Cathon hand Ba.6G 51163 231,56

B2hfces witl banis
i8] In curren accounts BL3 BILI5 Bi0.41
b) I cazh ericlit or ovesdraft oot . . 0.3
2V In dopatits whire aelginal maturiny & lose then theay manths BT - 300,35
Toul E71.04 114571 404,15

3 BE% Balances othor than cosh ond cash aquivalants®

{% I lakhs)
Faniculam AR Bt s ae Ax wt
Paarch 11, 20219 March 31, 2019 Apedl 1, 2019
¥ fepolts where arlghial maturhy b mare than Bhpee metaie : .
buitias phan taslve months 17,801 70 B Ad6.4) T
I Sepratts witere orlginal moturity b mere than tweke monta 1870.24 1,115.85 TRIVT
Tat 19,751,858 6,611,392 R55.55

Otber bank bolanes in depok acocouns tnclude depotliy wnder lien ngeregating to Re. 1,733.93 fakia (P.Y. Rs, 1,030,100 dakhs) towards the eredip
arhancament provided byt the eompany undar the seeurhiation sgreemnaents,
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4.1 Leans granted by the Company sre sevwed by equleble monpape/reglstared morigage of the property and liypethecstion of vehiclss,

.2 Leans Includes unsecurad loans o employees and related portles appregating to fis. 100,57 kakhe (PX. 44,33 fakha), Flezti
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.5 The Cormpany has ghien Impalrment assossment and meastrement appraach lnnete e, 1.17 of the Summary of significant :nuuurrr_lr@ palices,
4.6 Tha Copnpary bas dafined risk assessment meded innote o, 0, . | )
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ket b chleneed and appropiiate ECL estoulstion con be undertaken,
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Kogta Flroi ™| Indla LUimited
Hates for? ™ part of thae financlal statamants

27 Trans$%mn ta ind AS 116 o5 Leare
The cP¥¥gas Iy the carrying value of ROU assgis for tho year ended Maorch 31, 2028 arg o follows

[y
'

e {% i bakhs)
Parglethin At
Gross Srnying valus !

Balan Coas et April 1, 2013 {Cn adoption of Ind A5 116) 565,64
Addiric 47600
Trans!&an adjustments s
Ealastas ol March 81, 2020 1.041.61
Aocumilative amortidation
BalanSiRs at April 1, 2014 -
Depradition ] 166.44
Transda%n adjustmants B
Balancens of Macch 31, 2020 IEE.&E‘_
Nat ca fiylag value as at March 31, 2020 875.12
The fothwing b the movement in lease liabilitdes during the year ended March 21, 2020,
(% b Bakhis)
Particitiars Amount
Leege Fhbliities |
Balanceas ot Apifl 1, 2048 {0 adoption of ind AS 115 565,61
Additiony 476,00
TrensTalion adjustmernts .
Fintfceaupense 87,63
Paymert of lease Nabiiios {201.23}
Balanceas at March 31, 2020 R g2E.0d
Amaunt resagnised In profit & foss dm‘ln:l the year ended March 31, 2020
(% In Enkhis)
Partleubirs March 31, 2020
- Depreclition expense of right-cfuse aisets 16649
Interestexperze on legse liabilites ET7.63
Total 284,13
Total cash outflow for laasos:
Particudars Parch 21, 2020
Total eash cutlow for loases 20423
Totul 01,22
Thia table balow provides detslh reparding the contractus) matorities of fease Mebidtles as at hzrch B2, 2020, on an undiecounted basls .
. <N 1% In lakis)
Particulirs E : i Anicimit
Liss than 1 year Ay ' i 1 e - et R L
1-3 yeary ' ; 105,00
5-5years ' 24727
Maee than S yoars 574.'r7
Balance g1 at March 31, 2020 S28.02
‘The eompady fas pald folléwing rent on account of short term leases ar where the lease Securily deposit is less than 50,000: ek L
3 % I Ik hes)
Partkculars Amount
"Sha Term Leasa T
e kawyalue Lease 92.67
5l

54.86
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SCHEDULE YO THE

BALANCE SHEET OF A NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY
A5 Bequired In torms of Parageaph 12 of
n=Bzanking Flnancial Company-Syitamati bposit taking
Lompany (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016

(For the year ended 31st March, 2020)

—

{Rs In lakhs)

PARTICULARS

|[_1-“|.hl1.111£5 IDE

21.02,2020

1 |loan: end advences ovalled by the nonlanling fnancial
Campany Inclusive of Interest acerued thereon but not pald :

(3] Debankurs:
- Secured
= Unsecured
(Qrher than falling within the meaning of public deposits)

Deferred credits

Term loans

(d]  mter-corporate loans and bomrowing
(e} Commerclal paper

{11 Public deposits

(e} Deherloons s

- Speurad Losns ;

Cash cradit imit

Warking capital demand laan
Overdraft facliity

(b
<)

4,067.26
504.40

B, 242,25

~ Unsecured Loans from Directors & Sharcholders :

Amount
outstanding

7,093.18
1,495,60

46,630.33
12.73

-

12,813.81

- 12,813.91

Amount overdue

2 |Break-up of (1) {f] pbove {outstanding public deposits inclusive

(3}
it
e}

In the form of unsecured debentures

In the form of partly secured debenture 1e.
Ciher public deposits

ASSETS SIDE :

BL.03.2020

“Amount
uutlundlng

g E‘EBLHF of leans and adwgml_nchdurg hills retehrgglgg_
(a} Secured t
(b) Unsécured
4 |prenk-up of leased assels and stock on hire and other nssets
] wwmwwu
{a} Flnancial lenda
{B) Operating lease

1o e ineludin
[a) Assets on hire
(b) Hepossessed asscls '

i) Other loans counting towards AFC Activities ¢

] {8) Loans where assets have been repossessod
" {b] Loans ather than {a) above

{i} hire charges un d

_ 99,419.00
323.90




Break-up of Investmeant »
Curmnt invagtments ;
1 Quoted
] Shares:
{a] Ecpuity
() Preference
(i) Debentures and bonds
(1) Unlts of mistual funds
(v} Goavernment Securlties
. (v} Others
2 Unguoted !
(i) Shares:
{2} Equity
{b} Preference
(i) Debenture and bonds
(I} Units of pautwal funds
(Iv] Government Securlties
* {v) Others
Long Term Investments ;
1 fuoted:
(i) Shares:

{a) Equity

(b} Preference
{it) Debenture and bonds
{ill} Unlts of mutual funds
(v} Government securlties (GOL Bonds)
(v] Others

2 Unguoted:

(i} Shares:

(n) Equity

B} Preference
{11} Debenture and bonds
(i1} Units of mutual funds
() Govd rnment securities
{v] Othars

0.00

Bomrower group wise @ssﬂ‘@& of assets financed as In{3)

Cotegory Amount net of Provislons i
Secured |  Unsecured Total . i
1. Rslated porties : ' - daowlog
(3} Subskdlaries - - -
{b) Companles In tha same group - - -
() Other related partios - - 65,06 6506
2, Other than related parties 89.419.00 258.83 98 7784
TOTAL 92,419.00 323.90 §9,742.00
Investor proup f wise classiilcation of all Investments {earrent and la pres and I atly )
Category iarket value / break Book value
up or falr value or NAY (ret of provisions) f "Pﬂ"’&L/ il
1. Related vertles I_ }é i
{8} Subsiciartes 3 . \ Sy
{b) Companies In the same group - : =il
ol e} Other related parties - . o
; 2. Other than Felated partles ; e
x "f:ﬁand E: securlty . - - gri i
& .-"‘_-.'?",,r"""'"‘{.:,_
i TOTAL 0.00 £.00 1 {" e }
% b \?f ):.,-
1 l 1._:|\. ..||I



A=
& {0char infommat|on
Particitiars Amotnk
(1} |Grows Hon - Perfarming Assets
(8] Fetatod Parties =
o L (b} Othar than ralated parties HinsEL
e (W) |Net Non - Performing Assits.  *
i la] Metatod Parties ' %
25:4.74

{b]  Other tan related pariles

(ifl)_{Assets aequired in satisfactian of dabt

Mote: Flguresare regrouped or reamanged wherever notecsary,

For and on behalf of the Doard of Directoss

e ok of Kegta Finandal (India} Uimived
i i 'I' ka&;%
T a
sbi ptec el R W, Kogta Arun
R e [Chalrman) {Managing Dlrector & CED)
=0y DIN 00157552 DIN 05108722
Yarun Kegta Rahul Agraws]
[Executive Direcior & £FO) [Carmpany Secratary)
DN DEES4307 Membership Mo, A34034
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